SADHANA NITRO CHEM LIMITED

CIN : L24110MH1973PLC016698

Registered Office : Hira Baug,1st Floor, Kasturba Chowk (C.P. Tank),
Mumbai - 400 004, INDIA

Tel. : 022-23865629 / 23875630
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Date: 04th September, 2019

To

BSE Limited,

1st Floor, P.J. Towers,

Dalal Street, Mumbai — 400001

Scrip Code: 506642

Subject: Annual General Meeting of the members of the Company and intimation of Record
Date.

Dear Sir / Madam,

This is to inform that the 46th Annual General Meeting of Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited will be held on
Wednesday on 25t September, 2019 at 03.00 P.M. at Sheth Hirachand Gumanji Trust Hall, Hira
Baug, 1st Floor, Kasturba Chowk (C.P. Tank), Mumbai - 400004 Maharashtra India.

On 1st September, 2019 we have intimated to Stock Exchange about the Annual General Meeting but
due to technical difficulties and issues relating to the size of the report, we were not able to upload the pdf file of the
Annual Report and instead of that we uploaded the website link of the annual report where the entire report is available.
The Integrated Annual Report for the Financial Year 2018-19, including the Notice convening the
Annual General Meeting which has been dispatched to shareholders of the Company is attached
herewith.

The Company will provide to its members the facility to cast their vote(s) on all resolutions set out in
the Notice by electronic means ("e-voting"). The e-voting communication giving instructions for e-
voting, being sent along with the Integrated Annual Report is attached herewith,

The Directors have declared. Equity Dividend of Rs. 0.75/- per equity share of Rs. 5/- each to be
approved by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.

The Company has fixed Wednesday, 18th September, 2019 as the "Record Date" for the purpose of:
» Determining the members eligible to receive dividend for the Financial Year 2018-19 and
» Determining the members eligible to vote on all resolutions set out in the Notice.

The Company’s Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed
from 19th September, 2019 to 25th September, 2019 (Both Days Inclusive.)

This is for your information and records.
Thanking you.

For Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited

Nitin Rameshchandra Jani

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Membership No.: A4757

Address: - Plot No. 177, Room No.16,
Jawahar Nagar Road No.2,

Goregaon (West) Mumbai - 400062

Factory: 47, MIDC, Roha-402 116, Dist. Raigad. Maharashtra. Tel.: Dhatav-02194-263801/02/03, 263525 » Fax: (91) 02194-263522
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NOTICE TO THE MEMBERS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE FORTY-SIXTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE COMPANY WILL BE HELD AT SHETH
HIRACHAND GUMANJI TRUST HALL, HIRA BAUG, 1ST FLOOR, KASTURBA CHOWK (C.P. TANK), MUMBAI - 400004. ON
WEDNESDAY, 25TH SEPTEMBER, 2019 AT 03.00 P.M. TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS: -

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement (Including the Standalone and Consolidated Statements) of
the Company for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2019 together with the Reports ofthe Directors' and Auditors' thereon.

2. To confirminterim Equity dividend declared for Financial Year 2018-19 and to approve Final Equity Dividend for the Financial
Year 2018-19.

3. Toappoint a Director in place of M. Asit D. Javeri (DIN: 00268114) who retires by rotation and is eligible for re-appointment
onsame terms and condition.

4. To appoint Auditors and to fix their remuneration and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT Pursuant to the provisions of section 139 and other applicable provisions if any of the Companies Act, 2013

“Act") and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time M/s. Jayesh Dadia & Associates LLP
{Firm registration No: 121142W / W100122), be and is hereby appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company due to
resignation of M/s. Chandrashekhar lyer & Co, Chartered Accountants (Registration No. 114260W) to hold office from the
conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held inyear
2024 at such remuneration and out of pocket expenses as may be mutually decided between Board of Directors of the
Company and Auditors.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all acts and take all such
steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution including filing of forms to Registrar of
Companies and submitting necessary intimation with Stock Exchange."

SPECIALBUSINESS:

5. To ratify remuneration of the Cost Auditors for the Financial Year ending 31st March, 2020 and in this regard to consider and
if thoughtfit, to pass, the following resolutionasan Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant tothe provisions of Section 148 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 {including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time
being in force), the payment of the remuneration of Rs. 75,000/~ P.A. plus applicable taxes and out-of-pocket expenses at
actuals plus applicable Goods and Service Tax payable to M/s Vinay Mulay & Co., Cost Accountants (Registration No: M/8791),
who were appointed as "Cost Auditors" by Board of Directors of the Company on the recommendation of Audit Committee, to
conduct the audit of Cost Records maintained by the Company for Financial Year ending March 31, 2020, be and is hereby
ratified and approved.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all acts and take all such
steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution including filing of forms to Registrar of
Companies and submitting necessary intimation with Stock Exchange.”

Registered Office:
Hira Baug, 1" Floor
Kasturba Chowk, (C.P. Tank),

Mumbai - 400004 By Orderofthe Board

CIN: 124110MH1973PLCO16698 N.R.Jani

E-mail: sadhananitro@sncl.com Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Date: 08th August, 2019. Membership No: A4757
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NOTES:

1. Amemberentitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of himself and
a proxy need not be a member of the Company. The proxy in order to be effective must be deposited at the Registered Office of
the Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.

Aperson can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more thanten percent of
the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. Amember holding more than ten percent of the total share capital
of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any
other person or shareholder.

Corporate members intending to send their Authorised Representatives to attend the Meeting are requested to send to the
Company a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf.

In case of joint holders attending the meeting, the Member whose name appears as the first holderin the order of names as per
the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled tovote.

2. An Explanatory Statement pursuant to section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to the special Business to be
transacted at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) is annexed hereto.

3. The Equity Dividend for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2019 as recommended by the Board, if approved at the AGM,
will paid on or after Sunday, 29th September, 2019 to those Members whose hame appears in the Register of Members of the
Company as on the book closure date.

4. The Company has appointed Link Intime India Private Limited, RTA, C 101,247 Park, L B S Marg, Vikhroli West, Mumbai 400
083 as Registrars and Share Transfer Agents for Physical Shares. The said (RTA) is also the Depository interface of the Company
with both NSDL & CDSL. Following information of RTAs as follows:

Telephone No. 022- 49186000,

E-mail address: mt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in

Fax No.022-49186060.

However, keeping in view the convenience of Shareholders, documents relating to shares will continue to be received by the
Company at its Registered Office

Telephone N0.022-23865629

Email: sadhananitro@sncl.com

5. During the period beginning 24 hours before the time fixed for the commencement of the meeting and ending with the
conclusion of the meeting, a member would be entitled to inspect the proxies lodged at any time during the business hours of
the Company, provided that not less than three days' notice inwriting of the intention so to inspect is given to the Company

6. Members who hold shares in electronic formare requested to mention their DP ID and Client ID number and those who hold
shares in physical form are requested to mention their Folio Number in the Attendance Slip for attending the Meeting to
facilitate identification of membership at the AGM.

7. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by
every participant in securities market. Members holding sharesin electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN
to their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical
form can submit their PAN to the Company /RTA.

8. The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Book of the Company will remain closed from Thursday, 19th September,
2019 to Wednesday, 25th September, 2019 {both daysinclusive} for the purpose of Annual General Meeting.

9. All documents referred to in the accompanying notice and the explanatory statements are open for inspection at the
Registered Office of the Company during office hours on all working days, except Saturdays & public holiday, between 11.00
a.m.and 1.00 p.m. up to the date of the Annual General Meeting.
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10.Members are requested to notify immediately change of address, if any, to their Depository Participants (DPs)in
respect of their electronic share accounts and Link Intime India Private limited {RTA), or to the Company at its Registered Office
inrespect of their physical shares.

11.The Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which Directors are interested, maintained under Section 189 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Certificate provided under Regulation 13 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based
Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 will be available for inspection by the members at the Annual General Meeting.

12.Entrance Pass and Proxy Form is annexed. Members are requested to bring their duly filled in attendance slip with copy of
Annual Report to the place of meeting.

13.Members who hold shares in Dematerialized form are requested to bring their client ID and DP 1D numbers for easy
identification of attendance at the meeting.

14.Members desiring any information are requested to write to the Company 10daysin advance

15.Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far are requested to register their e-mail address for receiving
all communication including Annual reports, Notices, Circulars, etc. from the Company electronically.

16.The Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2018-19 is being sent by electronic mode to those Members whose e-
mail addresses are registered with the Company / Depositories, unless any Member has specifically requested for a physical
copy of thesame.

17.The Members who have not yet registered their e-mail addresses are requested to register the same with RTA /
Depositories. Members, who want to receive hard copies of all the communication, have to make a specific request to the
Company by sending a letter in hard formin this regard to the RTA or the Company.

18.Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 36 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI (LODR) Regulations") and Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute
of Company Secretaries of India, a briefnoteon the background and the functional expertise of the Directors of the Company
seeking re-appointment along with the details of other Directorships, memberships | chairmanships of Board Committees,
shareholding and relationships amongst directors inter-se is set outin the Brief Resume appended to this Notice.

19.The voting rights of members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share capital of the Company ason
cut of date 18th September, 2018.

20.A persons, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial owners maintained by the
depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting as well as voting as the AGM
through ballot paper.

21.Any persons, who acquires shares of the Company and become member of the Company after dispatch of the notice and
holding shares as of the Record datei.e. 23rd August, 2019, may obtain the login ID and password by sending arequest at Issuer
/RTA.

22.A member may participate in the AGM even after exercising his right to vote through remote e-voting but shall not be
allowed tovote again at the AGM. :

23.Mrs. Kumudini Paranjape, partner of M/s Makarand M Joshi & Co., Practicing Company Secretaries, has been appointed as
the Scrutinizer the voting and remote e-voting processina fair and fransparent manner.

24.The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the resolutions on which voting is to be held, allow voting with
the assistance of scrutinizer, by use of "remote e-voting" or "Ballot Paper" for all those members who are present at the AGM
but have not cast their votes by availing the remote e-voting facility.

25.The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the general meeting, will first count the votes cast at the meeting and
thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of

5
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the Company and shall make, not later than three days of the conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated scrutinizer report of the
total votes cast in favor or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign the
same and declare the result of the voting forth with.

26.The Result declared along with the report of the scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the Company and on the
website of NSDL the results shall simultaneously be communicated to the Stock Exchange (BSE), Mumbai.

27.Voting through electronicmeans

l.In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies
{Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended by the Companies (Management and Administration)
Amendment Rules, 2015 and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, the Company is pleased to provide its
members, as on the cut-off date being Wednesday, 18th September, 2019 the facility to exercise their right to vote by electronic
means on any or all of the businesses specified in the Notice, at the 46th Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means
and the business may be transacted through e-Voting Services provided by National Securities Depository Limited {NSDL).

1. The facility for voting through ballot paper shall be made available at the AGM and the members attending the meeting who
have not cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their right at the meeting through ballot paper.

1Il.The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend the AGM but shall not be
entitled to cast their vote again.

IV.The remote e-voting period commences on Saturday, 21st September, 2019 at 9:00 am and ends on Tuesday, 24th
September, 2019 at 5:00 P.M. During this period members' of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in
dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of Wednesday, 18th September, 2019 may cast their vote by remote e-voting. The
remote E-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter, Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the member,
the member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

V. How do | vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?
The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of "Two Steps" which are mentioned below:

Step 1: Log-in to NSDL e-Vating system at https:/ Jwww.evoting.nsdl.com/
Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDLe-Voting system.

Details on Step 1 are mentioned below:

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?
1.Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ eitheron
a Personal Computer or on a mobile.
2.0nce the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon "Login" which is available under ‘Shareholders' section.
3.Anew screen will open. You will have to enter your User 1D, your Password and a Verification Code as shown on the screen.
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservicesi.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing
IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step

2i.e. cast your vote electronically.

4.Your User ID details are given below:
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Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL or CDSL) or Your User ID is:

Physical

a) For Members who hold shares in demat account with 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID

NSDL. For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client D is

12¥%*%%%* then your user ID is IN3QO*¥*12¥* ¥,

b) For Members who hold shares in demat account with 16 Digit Beneficiary ID
CosL. For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12**¥¥#xxbkirnix
then your user [D is 12¥¥#¥kxxssiix

€] For Members holding shares in Physical Form. EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with
the company

For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is
101456 then user ID is 101456001%**

5.Your password details are given below:

a)Ifyou are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and cast your vote.

b)if you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password' which was
communicated to you. Once you retrieve your 'initial password’, you need to enter the initial password' and the system will
force you to change your password.

¢)How to retrieve your ‘initial password'?

(i) your email 1D is registered in your demat account or with the company, your 'initial password' is communicated to you on
your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachmenti.e.a.pdffile.
Open the .pdf file. The password to open the pdf file is your 8 digit client 1D for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL
account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdffile contains your 'User ID' and your 'initial password'.

{ii)lf your email IDis not registered, your ‘initial password' is communicated to you on your postal address.

6.1f you are unable to retrieve or have not received the " Initial password" or have forgotten your password:

{a)Click on "Forgot User Details/Password?" (If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

(b)Physical User Reset Password?" (If you are holding sharesin physical mode) option availableon www.evoting.nsdl.com.

(c)lf you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you cansend arequestat evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning
your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your registered address.

7.After entering your password, tick on Agree to "Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.
8.Now, you will have to click on “Login" button.

9.After you click on the "Login" button, Home page of e-Voting will open.
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Details on Step 2 are given below:
How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system?

1.After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see the Home page of e-Voting. Click on e-Voting. Then, click on Active
Voting Cycles.

2 After click on Active Voting Cycles, you will be able tosee allthe companies "EVEN" inwhichyouare holding shares and whose
voting cycleisin active status.

3.Select "EVEN" of company for which you wish to cast your vote.
4.Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

5.Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for which you wish
to cast your vote and click on "Submit" and also "Confirm" when prompted.

6.Upon confirmation, the message "yote cast successfully” will be displayed.

7 You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking onthe print optionon the confirmation page.
8.0nce you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify yourvote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1 Institutional shareholders {i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/IPG Format) of
the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who
are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to kumudiniparanjape@mmijc.in with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in.

2.1t is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password
confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In
such an event, you will need to go through the "Forgot User Details/Password?" or "Physical User Reset password?" option
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

3.In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-~voting user manual for
Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toli free no.; 1800-222-990 or send a
requestat evoting@nsdl.co.in

Registered Office:
Hira Baug, 1" Floor
Kasturba Chowk, (C.P. Tank),

Mumbai - 400004 By Order of the Board

CIN: L24110MH1973PLCO16698 N.R.Jani

E-mail: sadhananitro@sncl.com Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Date: 08th August, 2019. Membership No: A4757
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
Item No. 4:

At the 44th Annual General Meeting held on August 2, 2017, the Members approved appointment of M/s. Chandrashekar lyer
& Co., Chartered Accountants {Firm registration No: 114260W) to hold office from the conclusion of the 44th Annual General
Meeting until the conclusion of the 49th Annual General Meeting to be held for the financial year 2022. However M/s.
Chandrashekar lyer & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm registration No: 114260W) has tendered their resignation on 08th
August, 2019.

On the recommendation of Audit Committee, the Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 08th August, 2019
appointed M/s. Jayesh Dadia & Associates LLP (Firm registration No: 121142W / W100122) as Statutory Auditor of the
Company for the period of consecutive 5 years from conclusion of ensuing Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the
Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2024 subject to the approval of shareholders in this Annual General Meeting,
Accordingly, consent of the members is sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution as set out at Item No. 4 ofthe Notice.

In accordance with provisions of Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
following are the brief details pertaining to appointment of M/s. Jayesh Dadia & Associates LLP (Firmregistration No: 121142W
/W100122) as Statutory Auditor:

Sr. No. Particulars Details
1. Name of the firm M/s. Jayesh Dadia & Associates LLP
2. Terms and Conditions of Appointment As per Appointment Letter
3. Proposed Fees to be payable Rs. 10,00,000/- P.A (Rupees Ten Lakhs Only)
4, Date of Registration 11-05-2011
5. Address 422, Arun Chambers, Tardeo, Mumbai 400034
6. PAN No AADFJ3735C
7. Registration No 121142W / W100122
8. Contact details Mr. Jayesh Dadia - 098200-36868
9. Email Address jayesh@jdaca.com / info@jdaca.com
10. Whether any regulatory action has been faced No

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives is in any way, concerned or interested,
financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at item No. 4 of the Notice.
The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution as set out at ltem No. 4 of the Notice for approval by the shareholders.

Item No. 5:

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on 28th May, 2019, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has approved the
appointment and payment of remuneration of Rs. 75,000/- Per Annum (Rupees Seventy Five Thousands only) plus applicable
taxes and out of pocket expenses to M/s. Vinay Mulay & Co., Cost Accountants, as the Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of the
cost records of the Company for the Financial Year ending 31st March, 2020.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the
remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors has to be ratified by the shareholders of the Company. Accordingly, consent of the
members is sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution as set out at Item No. 5 of the Notice for ratification of the remuneration
payable to the Cost Auditors for the Financial Year ending 31st March, 2020.

In accordance with provisions of Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements)} Regulations, 2015
following are the brief details pertaining to proposed Cost Auditor, M/s. Vinay Mulay & Co., of the Company:
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Sr. No. | Particulars Details

1. Name of the firm M/s. Vinay Mulay & Co

2. Brief Profile or Credentials of the firm ML Vinay Mule, CEO, Age 59 Years having Qualification of
M.Com.,
FCMA, CMA (USA), PGDMS, CSCP, (APICA,USA) and having
Experience
of More than 39 Years in Cost Audit, Internal Audit, Forensic
Audit,
Inventory Management and Valuation, Project
Management, Strategic
Planning, Indirect taxation, Project Report for Financial
Institutions
and Banks in diverse Industries, working with MNCs etc.

3. Terms and Conditions of Appointment As per Appointment Letter

4. Proposed Fees to be payable 75,000/-

5. Date of Registration 29th August, 2011

6. Address 178 Laxminagar Maratha CHS Ltd Near RTO, Opposite
Teacher's Colony, Andheri Mumbai-400053

7. PAN No AADPM3648M

8 Registration No M/8791

9, Contact details Tel: 26324918 / Mobile: 9819864918

10. Email Address mulayvb@hotmail.com
11. Whether any regulatory action has been faced | No

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the

Company / their relatives is in any way, concerned or interested,

financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at ltem No. 5 of the Notice.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution as set outatltem No. 5 of the Notice for approval by the shareholders.

Registered Office:

Hira Baug, 1" Floor

Kasturba Chowk, (C.P. Tank),
Mumbai-400004
CIN:L24110MH1973PLC0O166S8
E-mail: sadhananitro@sncl.com
Date: 08th August, 2018.

By Order of the Board

N.R.Jani

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Membership No: A4757
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SADHANA NITRO CHEM LIMITED

To
The Members of
SADHANA NITRO CHEM LIMITED

Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the 46th Annual Report together with Audited

BOARD'S REPORT

Financial Statements fortheFinancialYearended31* March,2019.

1) FINANCE
1. FINANCIAL RESULTS
PARTICULARS STANDALONE CONSOLIDATED
2018 -19 2017 -18 2018 -19 2017-18

Revenue from operations {Net) & Other 26,840 11,115 26,828 11,464
Income

Total Expense 16,210 8,287 16,140 8,664
Profit/(Loss) before exceptional item and 10,630 2,828 10,688 2,800
taxation
Exceptional Iltems 10,630 2,828 10,688 2,800
Tax Expense {3,099} 309 (3,103) 309
Profit/{Loss) after tax 7,531 3,137 7,585 3,109
Other Comprehensive [ncome (8) (42) (8} (42)
Total Comprehensive Income 7,523 3,095 7,577 3,067

1I.REVIEW OF OPERATIONS:

The total revenue of your company for the financial year ending 31" March, 2019 has been Rs. 26,840/ Lakhs as compared to
Rs. 11,115 /-lakhs in the previous years, registering a significant growth of 140%.

Focus efforts have been placed on expanding the end applications of our product line over the last several years which has
helped in yield strong results this year, offering healthy sustainability for the years to come. This diversification, in end
application has also simultaneously diversified clients and end destinations for Company’s products globally, de- risking our

portfolio from any single customer, application or market.

The level of operations has been steadily increased over the last year and has reached satisfactory levels. This has helped in

economies of scale and made your company competitive on the global front.

Because of your company’s product quality standards, we have been able to maintain steady relationships with our long

standing customers along with building relationships with several new customers.

The result of all the above factors has led to our best year to date, registering our highest ever turnover, and the highest ever
Profit After Tax {PAT) of Rs. 7,531/ (PY. Rs. 3,137/- lakhs) from normal operation registered in 140% growth.
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SADHANA NITRO CHEM LIMITED

Pursuant to the notification dated February 16, 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Company has adopted the
Indian Accounting Standards {"Ind AS") notified under the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 with effect
from April 1, 2017 As such the financial statements for the year ended as at March 31, 2017 have been restated to conform to
Ind AS.

The company has a very strong order book position and expected to maintain the same or higher growth trend. The cost control
at every stage of operations with the increase level of operations resulted in product costimprovement.

This resulted in outstanding performance and best ever year, the EBIDTA from normal operation for 2018-19 was Rs. 12,102
lakhs {PY EBIDTA of Rs. 3526 lakhs) which represents a growth of 71 %.

111, EXPANSIONS:

The company has resumed manufacture of Colour formers, a performance chemical it used to manufacture in the past. Itis the
key raw material for the coating of thermal paper, a presently growing industry. Due to global demand and growth of thermal
paper, your Company is expanding our production lines of colour former to capture the current global requirements.

There is increased demand of Meta Amino Phenol and Aniline 2,5 Disulphonic acid globally, two of your company's key
products, due to which your company is in the process of increasing its capacity by 33 %in both products.

The proposed expansion will put to use and operationalise its entire capital work-in progress during the year. In addition to this
the estimated project cost will be around Rs. 60 Crores. The above expansions are being funded through internal accruals and
are likely to be completed by the end of this financial year. The additional positive effect on your company's results due to these
expansions will take effect in the financial year ending March 2020.

1V, EXPORTS:
With the increase in competitiveness of your company on a global front, it has stable exports to across Europe, Japan, Korea,
North and South America, and with a significant quantity being sold to China.

While our local market is growing steadily Company's turnover is still focused on the export market with this year's exports
being a total of Rs. 19282 lakhs compared to last year's Rs. 8163 lakhs registeringa growth of more than 136.21%.

Exports constituted about 75.027 % of the overall revenue from operation including other income. Company's Exports are well
diversified in terms of product range as well as the Countries of Export.

V. OUTLOOK:

Your company has strong long term fundamentals. The company has practically reduced all its borrowings, and has started the
year debt free. It is looking towards leveraging its unique product offering along with its competitive strengths towards a long
term diverse sales pipeline with sustainable cash flows for the foreseeable future. Your company is locking to utilize its cash
flow towards expanding product lines as well as diversifying into downward derivatives of its existing products to create a
maintainable long term revenue pipeline.

V1. Deposits:

The Company has not accepted or renewed any amount falling within the purview of provisions of Section 73 of the Companies
Act 2013 {“the Act”) read with the Companies {Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014 during the year under review. Hence, the
requirement for furnishing of details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act or the details of deposits which
are not in compliance with the Chapter V of the Actis not applicable.

Vil. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with The Companies (Meetings of Board and its
Powers) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time {including any amendment thereto or re-enactment thereof for the time
being in force), Loans, guarantees and investments covered under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 form part of the
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Notes No. 04 & 05 to the Audited Standalone Financial Statements provided in this Annual Report.

2} CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:
The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company prepared in accordance with relevant Accounting Standards (AS} viz. AS
21,AS-23 and AS-27 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India form part of this Annual Report.

3) DIVIDEND:

Yours Directors are pleased to recommend Final Dividend of Rs. 0.75 per equity share of Rs. 05/- each for financial year 2018-19
which shall be paid subject to the approval of shareholders of the Company in 46" Annual General Meeting of the Company.

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on April 22, 2019 had approved payment of interim dividend of Rs. 1.25/- per Equity
Share on face value of Rs. 05/- each fully paid-up for the financial year 2018-2019. Interim dividend was paid to the
shareholders as per their shareholding in the Company as on May 03, 2019 (Record Date).

4} UNPAID DIVIDEND & IEPF:

The Company is not required to transfer any amount to the Investor Education & Protection Fund (IEPF) and does not have
unclaimed dividend which remains to be transferred to Investor Education & Protection Fund (IEPF).

5) TRANSFERTO RESERVES:

The Board of Directors has not appropriated and transferred any amount to any Reserve and has decided to retain the entire
amount in profit and Loss account.

6) REPORT ON PERFORMANCE OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES:

The performance and financial position/ salient features of the Financial Statement of each of the subsidiaries, associates and
joint venture companies for the year ended 31stMarch,2019 is given in Form AOC-1which is annexed hereto and marked as
Annexure -1and forms part of this Report.

As on 31st March, 2019 the Company has three wholly owned subsidiary viz. Anuchem B.V.B.A. Belgium — a Foreign Subsidiary,
Strix Wireless Systems Private Limited an Indian Subsidiary and Spidigo Net Private Limited, an Indian Subsidiary Audited

Financial Statement of the said subsidiaries is considered for the purpose of preparing Consolidated Financial statements.

During the year 2018-19, the Board in its meeting held on 01st August, 2018 resolved to acquire 100% shares of Spidigo Net
Private Limited by making it wholly owned subsidiary of the Company subject to approval of Members. Consequently the
members of the Company by passing ordinary resolution through postal ballot on 08th March, 2019 approved acquisition of
100% shares of Spidigo Net Private Limited by making it wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

7) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:
1) The particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties:

Your Company has historically adopted the practice of undertaking related party transactions only in the ordinary and normal
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course of business and at arm’s length as part of its philosophy of adhering to highest ethical standards, transparency and
accountability. In line with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations, the Board has approved a
policy on related party transactions. An abridged policy on related party transactions has been placed on the Company’s
website HYPERLINK "http://www.sncl.com/newpdf/ policy/Policy%ZOon%ZORelated%ZOParty%ZOTransaction.pdf“ .

Further, Related Party Transactions are placed on a quarterly basis before the Audit Committee and before the Board for
approval. Prior omnibus approval of the Audit Committee is obtained for the transactions which are of a foreseeable and

repetitive nature.

The particulars of contracts orarrangements with related parties referred toinsub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies
Act, 2013 inthe prescribed Form AOC-2 is annexed here to and marked as Annexure - Il and forms part of this Report.

11} Disclosure of Related Party Transaction with Person or Entity belonging to Promoter & Promoter Group:
The Company has not made any transaction(s) with Manekchand Panachand Trading Investment Co Private Limited, (Being

Holding Company} an Entity belonging to Promoter or Promoter Group that holds 10% or more shareholding of the Company:

I11) Disclosure of Loans and advances in nature of Loan to Subsidiaries and Associate of the Company:

Sr. No | Particulars Subsidiaries & Associate Company(ies)
1. Loan and Advances as on 315t March, 2018 8,42,94,647
2. Loan and Advances made during the Financial Nil

Year 2018-19

3. Loan and Advances outstanding as on 31 5t Nil
March, 2019

8) INSURANCE:

The assets of your Company are adequately insured. Your Company has also taken out suitable cover for Public Liability.

9) INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY:

The Company has anadequate Internal Control System commensurate with the size and nature of its business. The
preparation designing and documentation of Policy on Internal Financial Control are in place and implemented which
reviewed periodically and modified suitably to ensure controls.

The internal audit is carried out by a separate firm of Chartered Accountants. The periodical audit reports, including

significant audit observations and corrective actions there-on, are presented to the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

10) Changes in Share Capital:

1) Redemption of 1% Non-convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares;

During the year 2018-19, the Board of Directors of the Company through circular resolution passed on, 20th June, 2018 decided
to redeem entire 96,00,000 - 1% Non-Cumulative non-convertible Preference Shares ("Preference Shares”) of Rs. 10/- each ata

premium of Rs, 8 /- per share, out of currentyear's profit for the Year ended March 31, 2019.
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2) Sub-division of equity shares of Rs. 10/- each into 2 {two) fully paid Equity Shares of Rs. 5/-each of the Company;

During the year 2018-19, The Board of Directors of the company in its meeting held on 24th September, 2019 decided to split
the equity shares to improve affordability and liquidity of equity shares and recommended the proposal of sub-division of
equity shares of the Company to its members for approval through Postal Ballot.

The said sub-division along with alteration in memorandum of association was consequently approved by members
through postal ballot passed on 20th December, 2018.

After taking approval of members, the company intimated to Bombay Stock Exchange {'BSE') about Record Date vides its letter
dated 27th December, 2018 for sub-division which was approved by Bombay Stock Exchange vides its letter dated 28th
December, 2018. The said letter from BSE directed the Company to intimate New International Securities Identification
Number ('ISIN'} at least two days before record date.

Pursuant to the above directions issued by BSE, the Company applied to National Securities Depository Limited (‘NSDL’) and
Central Depository Services (India) Ltd ('CDSL’) for New ISIN. After submission of requisite documents, NSDL and CDSL vide its
letter dated 22nd January,

2019 had intimated to the Company about new ISIN number INE888C01032 that has been activated on NSDL and CDSL
platform. The Company further intimated New ISIN was given to BSE on 25" January, 2018.

The unused existing physical shares of Rs. 10/- each with existing members were treated as cancelled. The new physical share
certificates of the face value of Rs. 5/- each were printed, issued and posted to the existing 1,719 members after 31" January,
2019.

11) MATTERS RELATED TO INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

|. Declarations by Independent Directors:

All Independent Directors have given declarationsthat theymeetthecriteriaofindependenceas laiddown under Section
149(6)oftheCompaniesAct,2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

I, Evaluation by Independent Director:
In a separate meeting of Independent Directors held on 22ndianuary, 2018, performance of non-independent directors,
performance of the Board as a whole and performance of the Chairman was evaluated, taking into account the views of

executive Director.

12) MATTERS RELATING TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

I. Meeting of Board of Directors of the Company during the Financial Year 2018-19:

The Board met Seven times during the financial year ended 31st March, 2019 in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 the details of which are given in the Corporate Governance Report. The intervening gap between any two
Meetings was with in the period prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulation, 2015.

11, Annual evaluation of Directors, Committee and Board:

The Board of Directors of the Company has carried out an annual performance evaluation of its own performance, and of the
directors individually, as well as the evaluation of all the committees i.e. Audit, Nomination and Remuneration, Stakeholders
Relationship, CSR Committee and Internal Complaint Committee for Prevention and Prohibition of Sexual Harassment of

Women at Workplace.
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The Board adopted a formal evaluation mechanism for evaluating its performance and as well as that of its Committees and
individual directors, including the Chairman of the Board the exercise was carried out by feedback survey from each directors
covering Board functioning such as composition of Board and its Committees, experience and competencies, governance
issues etc. Separate Exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of individual directors including the Chairman of the

Board who were evaluated on parameters such as attendance, contribution at the meetingetc.

13) APPOINTMENT, REAPPOINTMENT AND RESIGNATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONS DURING THE
YEAR 2018-19:

I. With respect to Directors of the Company:

- Appointment:

Shri Amit M. Mehta (DIN: 00073907), was appointed as an Additional Independent Director of the Company with effect from
30" April, 2018. In Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 30" August, 2018, members of the Company approved the
appointment of ShriAmit M. Mehta as an Independent Director to hold the office for a term up to consecutive five years

commencing from 30" April, 2018.

—Reappointment:

- The existing agreement with ShriAsit D. Javeri Chairman &Managing Director, Mrs. Seema A. Javeri, Executive Director
{Administration) and ShriAbhishek A. Javeri, Executive Director & CFO of the Company was terminated on 30" April, 2018 and
they were re-appointed by Board of Directors of the company in its meeting held on 30" April, 2018 with effect from 1" May,
2018.

- Mr. Privam Shantilal shaveri (DIN: 0045038), Mr. Arvind Raoji Doshi (DIN: 00015293) and Mr. Pradeep Nanasaheb Desai (DIN:
01602942) were appointed as Independent Directors of the Company by the members at the 41% AGM of the Company held on
12" September, 2014 for a period of five consecutive years expiring on 12" September, 2019.

Pursuant to section 149 (10) of the Act, an Independent Director shall hold office for a term of up to five consecutive years on
the Board of a Company, but shall be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special resolution by the Company for another

term of up to five consecutive years on the Board of the Company.

In view of above provision and based on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of
Directors in its meeting held on 08" August, 2019, proposed to members of the Company to re-appoint Mr. Priyam Shantilal
Jhaveri, Mr. Arvind Raoji Doshi and Mr. Pradeep Nanasaheb Desaias Independent Directors of the Company for second term of
five consecutive years commencing from the date of end of preceding term of 5 Years through Postal Ballot by passing Special
Resolution. The result of said Postal Ballot shall be declared on or before 13" September, 2019.

— Change in Designation:

On the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, the Board in its meeting held on 24" July, 2018
subject to the approval of members of the Company, re-designated existing position of Mr. Asit D Javeri as Executive Chairman
from Chairman and Managing Director and Mr. Abhishek A Javeri as Managing Director and CFO from Executive Director and
CFO.

The subsequent approval of the members by passing Special Resolution was taken in Annual General Meeting of the Company
held on 30" August, 2019 for said re-designation.
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— Continuation of Appointment of Non-Executive Director:

Pursuant to the sub regulation {1A) of Regulation 17 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, with effect from 1st April, 2019, No listed entity shall appoint a person asa Non-
Executive Director or continue his/ her directorship as Non-Executive Director - who has attained the age of 75 Years or more,

unless prior consent from the members of the company has been obtained by way of Special Resolution.

Considering the fact that age of Mr. Arvind Raoji Doshi, being the independent Director / Non-executive Director is more than
75 Years (79 Years), the Board in its meeting held on 22"january, 2019 discussed the above amendment with the view of the fact
and decided to continue his term as the Independent Director / Non-Executive Director by considering his knowledge of various
aspects relating to the Company's affairs, long business experience and his immense contribution to the business of the
Company. Thereafter the Board decided to recommend the same to the members for their approval by way of Special
Resolution through Postal Ballot. The members through postal ballot by way of Special Resolution passed on 08" March, 2019
approved the continuation of appointment of Mr. Arvind Raoji Doshi as Non-executive Director of the Company

Retirement by Rotation:
In accordance with the provisions of the Act, none of the Independent Directors is liable to retire by rotation. As per the
provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Asit D. Javeri retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General

Meeting and being eligible, offer himself for re-appointment.

1. With respect to Key Managerial Personnel of the Company:
-Re-appointment of Company Secretary:
The terms of appointment of Shri Nitin R. Jani, Company Secretary who retire on 13" November, 2018 was extended further by

3 {Three) years upto 13" November, 2021.

-Resignation;
No Key Managerial Personnel of the Company has resigned during the financial year ending 31" March, 2019.

14) COMMITTEES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY:

Following are the Committees of Board of Directors of the Company. Composition of the following Committees are also hosted
onthe website of the Company at
http://www.sncl.com/newpdf/policy/Composition%ZOof%ZOCommittees%20-%2080ard.pdf.
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1. AUDIT COMMITTEE:
The Audit Committee of Directors was constituted pursuant to the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. The
composition of the Audit Committee is in conformity with the provisions of the said section. The details of Composition and

meetings Augdit Committee held has been mentioned in the Corporate Governance Report.

Il. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of Directors as constituted by the Board of Directors of the Company in

accordance with the requirements of Section 178 of the Act.

The details of composition of the Committee and the number of meetings held by the committee are mentioned in the

Corporate Governance Report.

The Board has in accordance with the provisions of sub-section (3) of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, formulated the
policy setting out the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a Director and policy relating

to remuneration for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees.

Major criteria / gist are defined in the Remuneration policy framed for appointment of and paymentof remuneration to the
Directors of the Company. The remuneration policy is has been paced on the website of the Company at

http://www.sncl.com/newpdf/policy/NRC%20Policy.pdf.

Iil. STAKE HOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:
The Board of Directors of the company has constituted, pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013; the Board of
Directors of the Company has constituted the Stakeholder's Relationship Committee.

The details of composition of the Committee and the number of meetings held by the committee are mentioned in the

Corporate Governance Report.

V. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE:

As per the provisions of Section 135 of the Act read with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the
Board of Directors has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee as under:

Mr. Asit Dhankumar Javeri, Chairman,

Mr. Arvind Raoji Doshi, Member

Mr. Priyam Shantilal Jhaveri, Member

The Board of Directors of the Company has approved CSR Policy based onthe recommendation of the CSR Committee.

The CSR Policy of the Company is available on the Company's web-site at: http://www.sncl.com/financials.htm

The meeting of CSR Committee was held on 22" January, 2019. It was discussed in the meeting that Being the first Financial

Year for expenditure on CSR, the Company initiated the CSR activities but could not find possible avenues to make said
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expenditure during the financial year ended on 31" March, 2018 as per activities mentioned in Schedule VIl of Companies Act,
2013. The company is in search of an organization where it can make donations. Thus the Company shall initiate the CSR
programme in the current financial year 2019-2020.

The CSR Committee of the Company hereby confirms that the implementation and monitoring of the CSR Policy, is in
compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the Company.

The composition, dates of meeting held and attendance of the members of the Committee at the meeting are given separately

inthe Corporate Governance report.

V. INTERNAL COMPLAIN COMMITTEE FOR PREVENTION AND PROHIBITION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMAN AT
WORKPLACE:
During the Financial Year 2018-19, the Board of Directors by passing circular resolution constituted Internal Complain

Committee for prevention and prohibition of Sexual Harassment of woman at workplace which consists of following members:

a. Mrs. Seema AsitJaveri Chairperson
b. Mrs. Phelomena Fernandes Member
¢. Mrs. Jotsana Tushar Parab Member
d. Mrs. Mamta Jatin Shah Member

The meeting of Internal Complain Committee for prevention and prohibition of Sexual Harassment of woman at workplace was
held on 30" March, 2019. The Committee noted the fact that the Company has received zero tolerance towards sexual
harassment at the workplace during the Financial Year 2018-19. The Company had also adopted a policy on prevention,
prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at

Workplace {Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rulesthereunder.

Further, the Company has complied with provisions relating to constitution of Internal Complain Committee under Sexual
Harassment of woman at workplace (prevention, prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. During the year the Company has not
received any case pertaining to Sexual Harassment of Woman.

The composition, dates of meeting held and attendance of the members of the Committee at the meeting are given separately

inthe Corporate Governance report.

15) VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER AND RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 177 (9) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Meetings of Board
and its Powers) Rules, 2014, and Regulation 22 of SEB! (LODR) Regulations 2015 the Company already has in place “Vigil
Mechanism Policy” (Whistie Blower Policy) for Directors and employees of the Company to provide a mechanism which
ensures adequate safeguards to employees and Directors from any financial statements and reports, etc. The said policy is also
hosted on the website of the Company at

http://www.sncl.com/newpdf/policy/Whistle%ZOBlower%ZOPoIicy.pdf.

The employees of the Company have the right/option to report their concern/grievance to the Chairman of the Audit
Committee. The Company is committed to adhere to the highest standards of ethical, moral and legal conduct of business

operations. The Company also adopted Risk Assessment Procedure.

19



SADHANA NITRO CHEM LIMITED

16) AUDITORS & REPORTS:
1. Statutory Auditors of the Company and their observations on accounts for the year ended 31" March, 2019:

Atthe 44" Annual General Meeting held on August 2, 2017, the Members approved appointment of M/s. Chandrashekar lyer &
Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm registration No: 114260W) to hold office from the conclusion of the 44™ Annual General
Meeting until the conclusion of the 49" Annual General Meeting to be held for the financial year 2022. However M/s.
Chandrashekar lyer & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm registration No: 114260W) has tendered their resignation on 08"
August, 2019 due to pre-occupation. Hence the Board

recommends to the members for appointment of M/s. Jayesh Dadia & Associates LLP (Firm registration No: 121142W /
W100122) as Statutory Auditor of the Company for the period of consecutive 5 years from conclusion of ensuing Annual

General Meeting till the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2024.

Necessary Resolution for appointment of said Statutory Auditors of the Company is included in the notice of AGM for seeking

approval of members.

Further, The observations / qualifications / disclaimers made by the M/s. Chandrashekarlyer& Co., Chartered Accountants
{Firm registration No: 114260W) in their report for the financial year ended 31" March 2019 read with the explanatory notes
therein are self-explanatory and therefore, do not call for any further explanation or comments from the Board under Section
134 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013.

I1. COST AUDITORS OF THE COMPANY:

In terms of Section 148 of the Act, the Company is required to have the audit of its cost records conducted by a Cost Accountant.
In this connection, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee the Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held
on 28" May, 2019, appointed M/s Vinay Mulay & Co., Cost Accountants (Reg No: M/8791) as the cost auditors to carry out
auditing of cost accounting records of the Company for the year 2019-20.

tn accordance with the provisions of Section 148(3) of the Act read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,

2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors as recommended by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board has
to be ratified by the members of the Company. Accordingly, appropriate resolution forms part of the Notice convening the
AGM. We seek your support in approving the proposed remuneration of Rs. 75,000/- P.A. plus applicable taxes and out-of-
pocket expenses payable to the Cost Auditors for the Financial Year ending March 31, 2020.

M/s Vinay Mulay & Co., Cost Accountants (Registration No: M/8791) have vast and rich experience in the field of cost auditand

have been conducting the audit of the cost records of the various Company for the past several years.

11 Secretarial Auditors of the Company:
Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel} Rules,
2014 inter-alia requires every listed company to annex with its Board's report, a Secretarial Audit Report given by a Company

Secretary in practice, in the prescribed form. The Board appointed M/s. Makarand M. Joshi & Co., Company Secretaries in
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Practice, Mumbai, as Secretarial Auditor to conduct Secretarial Audit of the Company for the Financial Year 2018-19 and their

report is annexed hereto and marked as Annexure - IV. Observation made by Secretarial Auditor as per said report along with

explanation made by Board is given below:

f\;"o Particulars of observation Explanation by Board
1. | Separate bank account was not opened as required Dividend was required to be paid
under section 123 (5) of the Act while paying single shareholder only, hence
dividend to Preference shareholder for the Company did not open separate
Financial Year 2017-18 account while paying dividend to
Preference shareholder. The
Company had paid dividend within
stipulated period of time. Hence in
all respect in material compliance of
Specified Provision.

2. | FLA for year ending 31 St March, 2018 falling due The filing of aforementioned return
on15 th July, 2018 was not filed by the company; was inadvertently missed. However,
further Annual Performance Report was filed with the Company is in process of taking
delay necessary corrective action as on the

date of approval of Board Report for
Financial Year 2018 -19.

3. Under SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure On the account of technological
Requirements) Regulation, 2015: constraints, the said submissions
In few instances Company has submitted the were delayed. Further, all material
Outcome of Board Meeting in delay, information was disclosed.

In One Instance the Intimation to Stock Exchange
was not as per required format.

In one instance Company Published Notice of
Board meeting in delay

The Company has filled the Corporate Governance
Report in delay for December 2018

4. Under SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) The Company is in process of taking
Regulations, 2015: necessary actions against respective
The Company has not disclosed trading by Designated Person.

Designated Employee under Regulations 7(2).

In few instances Designated Employees of the
Company has made contra trade

In one instance Designated Employee has traded
during the period of Window Closure

Regulation 24 {A) of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 inter-alia requires every listed
company to annex with its Board's report, a Secretarial Annual Compliance Report given by a Company Secretary in practice, in
the prescribed form. The Board appointed M/s. Makarand M. Joshi & Co., Company Secretaries in Practice, Mumbai, has
provided Secretarial Annual Compliance Report and their reportis annexed hereto and marked as Annexure-1V.

17) REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY STATUTORY AUDITORS UNDERSECTION 143(12):
There were no incidences of reporting of frauds by Statutory Auditors of the Company under Section 143 (12) of the Act read
with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
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18) CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT:

Pursuant to Regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46{2) and Para C, D and E of Schedule V of SEBI{Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the corporate governance report together with Auditor
Certificate on compliance of the same is annexed hereto and marked as Annexure-V and the Management Discussion and
Analysis reportis annexed hereto and marked as Annexure - Vi.

19) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUT GO:

The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo stipulated under
Section 134(3){m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of The Companies {Accounts) Rules,2014, is annexed heretoand

marked as Annexure-Vil.

20) EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:
pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, Extract of the Annual Return for the financial year
ended 31" March 2019 made under the provisions of Section 92(3) of the Act is attached as Annexure- Vil which forms part of

this Report.
The extract of Annual Return and Annual Return shall also be placed on the website of the Company at:

http://www.sncl.com/financials.htm

21) PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:
Employees of the Company are drawing Remuneration in excess of the limits prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013. The
information required pursuant to Section 197 read with Rule, 5 of The Companies {Appointment and Remuneration of

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 s annexed hereto and marked as Annexure —1X.

22) MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIALYEAR
AND DATE OF THEREPORT:

1} Interim Dividend for the Financial Year 2018-19:

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on April 22, 2019 had approved payment of interim dividend of Rs. 1.25/- per Equity
Share on face value of Rs. 05/- each fully paid-up for the financial year 2018-2019. Interim dividend was paid to the
shareholders as per their shareholding in the Company ason May 03, 2019 (Record Date).

23) OTHER DISCLOSURE:

1)SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIALORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS:

During the Year 2018-19, the Board in its meeting held on 08" August, 2018 approved the scheme of merger of Strix Wireless
System Private Limited, the wholly owned subsidiary of the Company with Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited subject to the
requisite approval of the shareholders / creditors of the Company and the sanction of the National Company Law Tribunal
Mumbai Bench {the NCLT) the stock exchanges where the shares of the company are listed and such other competent
authority(ies) as may be applicable. The Company filed an application to the NCLT for the necessary directions to be issued by
the NCLT for convening meeting of Strix Wireless System Private Limited. After convening necessary meeting pursuant to the
order passed by the NCLT, the Company filed petition with the NCLT for sanctioning of Scheme of Merger of Strix Wireless
System Private Limited, the wholly owned subsidiary of the Company with Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited. On 09"March, 2019
the NCLT sanctioned a scheme of Merger of Strix Wireless System Private Limited, the wholly owned subsidiary of the

Company with Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited.
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11) DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

In terms of Section 134(5)of the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to the audited financial statements of the company for the
year ended 31" March, 2019 the Board of Directors hereby confirms that

{a) That in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended 31* March, 2019 the applicable accounting
standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

(b) That such accounting policies as mentioned in the Notes to the Financial Statements have been selected and applied
consistently and judgment and estimates have been made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2019 and of the profit of the Company for the year ended on that date;

(c) That proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act,2013for safe guarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
otherirregularities;

(d) That the Audited Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis;

(e} Those proper Internal Financial Controls were in place and that the financial controls were adequate and were operating
effectively.

{f) Those systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were in place and wereadequate and

operating effectively.

) Issue of Sweat Equity Shares;

As per provisions of Section 54 of Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 {13) of Companies (Share Capital and Debenture)
Rules, 2014, the Company on December 13, 2018, had received Trading approval of 1,14,319 Sweat Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-
each {Currently 2,28,638 Sweat Equity Shares of Rs. 05/- each) issued to Mr. Abhishek A. Javeri, Managing Director & Chief
Financial Officer of the Company. Details of Sweat Equity Shares issued by the Company are furnished in Annexure [l which

forms part of this Report.

IV) Employee Stock Option Plan;

The Company has received in principle approval for issue of ESOP pursuant to Scheme approved by Members of the Company
in Extra-ordinary general Meeting held on 22 May, 2017.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee approved the Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP 2018) for the grant of stock
options to the employees of the Company on 01 August, 2018. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee
{Remuneration Committee) administers the ESOP. The option under this grant would vest to the employees as percentage of
total grant at the end of the first, second and third year from the date of grant with exercise period ending one year from the
end of last vesting. Details pertaining to Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP 2018) is annexed and marked hereto as

Annexure—~X.

V) Issue of Shares with Differential Voting Rights;
The Company has not issued any shares with differential rights and hence no information as per provisions of Section 43 (a) (ii)

of the Act read with Rule 4 {4) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 is furnished.

V1) Disclosure Under Section 67 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013;
During the year under review, there were no instances of non-exercising of voting rights in respect of shares purchased directly
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by employees under a scheme pursuant to Section 67 (3) of the Act read with Rule 16 {4) of Companies (Share Capital and
Debentures) Rules, 2014 is furnished.

Vil) HUMAN RESOURCE / INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS:

Human Resource programs and initiatives are aligned to meet the business needs. Your company believes in investing in
people to develop and expand their capability. The Company has been able to create a favorable work environment that
motivates performance; customer focus and innovation in your company's strategies are based, inter alia, on processes of

continuous learning and improvement.

24) ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS AND APPRECIATION:

Your Directors would like to express their appreciation for the assistance and cooperation received from the Bankers, Central
and State Government Departments, customers, vendors, and other business partners. The Directors also wish to place on
record their appreciation to all the employees of the Company for their cooperation and continued contribution to the
Company. Last but not least the Directors place on record their gratitude to the Investors, Clients and Shareholders of the

Company for their support and trust reposed.

For and On Behalf of the Board of Directors
Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited

sd/-

ASIT D. JAVERI

EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN

DIN: 00268114

Address: Ratnagar Palace 37 Chowpatty Seaface
Mumbai 400007

Place: Mumbai

Date:08" August, 2019
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ANNEXURE-I
AOC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section {3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/ associate companies /joint ventures

Part "A": Subsidiaries

{Information in respect of each subsidiary/ Associate Companies/ Joint Venture Companies to be presented with

amounts in Rs.)

Sr.No | Particulars Name of Subsidiary
1 Name of the subsidiary / Joint Venture / Anuchem BV.B.A., Spidigo Net
Associates Companies Belgium Private Limited
2 Date on which the subsidiary company 01/04/1998 11/03/2019
was associated or acquired
3 Reporting period for the subsidiary January to December April to March
concerned, if different from the holding
company's reporting period
4 Reporting currency and Exchange rate Euro INR
as on the last date of the relevant Financial | 1 Euro=INR 79.88
Year in the case of foreign subsidiaries. Date: 31.12.2018
5 Paid up Share capital Rs. 14,97,750 Rs. 1,00,000
6 Reserves and Surplus Rs. 43,43,883 Rs. {6,46,02,587)
7 Total Assets Rs. 9,14,56,198 Rs. 7,71,43,661
8 Total Liabilities Rs. 9,14,56,198 Rs. 7,71,43,661
9 Investments - -
10 Turnover Rs. 50,46,12,142 Rs. 81,131
11 Profit before taxation Rs. 62,86,417 Rs. (8,80,316)
12 Provision for taxation / Def. Tax Rs. 37,553 -
13 Profit after taxation Rs. 62,48,864 Rs. (8,80,316)
14 Proposed Dividend NiL NIL
15 % of shareholding 100% 100%

Names of Subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: - N.A
Names of Subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: N.A.
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Part "B": Associates and Joint Ventures

{Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures)

Particulars

Name 1

Name of Associates/Joint Ventures

NOT APPLICABLE

Date on which the Associate or Joint Venture was associated or acquired

Latest audited Balance Sheet Date

Eal Il S

Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the company on the year end

(in numbers)

i.  Number

ii. Amount of Investment inAssociates/Joint Venture

iii. Extent of Holding %

Description of how there is significant influence

Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated

Net worth attributable to Shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet

ol Il I B

Profit | Loss for the year

i. Considered in Consolidation

ii. Not Considered in Consolidation

Names of associates /joint ventures which are yet to commence operations: - N.A.

Names of associates /joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year: N.A.

Place: Mumbai
Dated: 08th August, 2019

For Chandrashekar lyer & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration, No.114260W
Chandrashekar lyer

Partner

Membership No. 477723
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ANNEXURES TO THE BOARD'S REPORT
ANNEXURE-1]
FORM AOC-2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3)of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014}

Particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in sub-section(1) of
section 188 of the Companies Act,2013.

1 Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis None
2 Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm'slength basis As detailed below
1.Material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis in the ordinary course of business:-
Name of the Nature of Duration of the Salient terms of Date(s) of Amount paid
Related Party contracts / contracts / the contracts approval as advances,
Nature of arrangement / arrangements / or arrangements by the Board, ifany
Relationship transactions transactions or transactions ifany
including the value,
if any
Anuchem Transactions Yearly Rs. 70,50,15,098 NA NA
B.V.B.A,, relating to
Belgium, Sale of Goods
Wholly Owned
Subsidiary
Company

For and On Behalf of the Board of Directors
Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited

ASIT D. JAVER!

EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN

DIN: 00268114

Address: Ratnagar Palace 37 Chowpatty Seaface
Mumbai 400007

Place: Mumbai

Date: 08th August, 2019
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ANNEXURE I

Disclosure of details pertaining to issue of sweat equity shares pursuant to the provisions of
Section 54 (1)(d) of the Companies Act, 2013 during the financial year under review:

The class of Director or employee to whom sweat equity
shares wereissued

Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer

The class of shares issued as Sweat Equity Shares

Equity

The number of sweat equity shares issued to the directors,
key managerial personnel or other employees showing
separately the number of such shares issued to them, if any,
for consideration other than cash and the individual names
of allottees holding one percent or more of the issued share
capital

1,14,319

Thereasons or justification for the issue

Mr. AbhishekAsitlaveri, helped the Company to gain various
tangible & intangible benefits paving the way for the
Company for its growth and prosperity.

The principal terms and conditions for issue of sweat equity
shares, including pricing formula

As per valuation report by Merchant Banker the price should
notbelessthanRs. 43.94

received or benefit accrued to the Company from the issue
of sweat equity shares

The total number of shares arising as a result of issue of | 93,15,149
sweat equity shares

The % of the sweat equity shares of the total postissued and | 1.22%

paid up share capital

The consideration {including consideration other than cash) | Rs.50,23,200

The diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS) pursuant to issuance of
sweat equity shares

EPS before Sweat Equity Rs. 33.61 per Share
EPS after Sweat Equity Rs. 33.22 Per share

Date of receipt of In-principle Approval 12th March, 2018
Date of receipt of Listing Approval 19th November, 2018
Date of receipt of Trading Approval 13th December, 2018

Forand On Behalf of the Board of Directors
Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited

ASITD. JAVERI

EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN

DIN: 00268114

Address: Ratnagar Palace 37 Chowpatty Seaface
Mumbai 400007

Place: Mumbai

Date:08th August, 2019
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ANNEXURE IV

FORM NO. MR.3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the Financial Year Ended 31" March, 2019
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies
{Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members,

Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited

Hira Baug, 1" floor Kasturba Chowk (C.P. Tank) Mumbai 400004

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good
corporate practices by Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited (hereinafter called the “Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a
manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing our

opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during
the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the
financial year ended on 31* March, 2019 {hereinafter called the ‘Audit Period') complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the

manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for
the financial year ended on 31" March, 2019 according to the provisions of:

() TheCompanies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

(i)  TheSecurities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made there under;

{iii}  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of Overseas Direct
Investment {Foreign Direct Investment and
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(i)

External Commercial Borrowings not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period).

(i} The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992

(iii}

0]
(i)

('SEBI Act'):-
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of india {Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015.

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009 and
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 notified on
11" September, 2018

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 (Not

Applicable to the Company during the audit period)

{f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993

regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client

{g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 (Not Applicable to the
Company during the audit period) and

{h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 and The Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 notified on 11" September, 2018 (Not Applicable
to the Company during the audit period).

Asidentified, no law is specifically applicable to the Company.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 {herein after referred toas 'SEBI (LODR}").
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During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines,

Standards, etc. mentioned above except in the following cases:

1. Separate bank account was not opened as required under section 123 (5) of the Act while paying dividend to

Preference shareholder for the Financial Year 2017-18,

2. FLA for year ending 31" March, 2018 falling due on 15 July, 2018 was not filed by the company; further Annual

Performance Report was filed with delay.

3. UnderSEBI{Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015:
Infew instances Company has submitted the Outcome of Board Meetingin delay,
In One Instance the Intimation to Stock Exchange was not as per required format.
In oneinstance Company Published Notice of Board meetingin delay

The Company has filled the Corporate Governance Reportin delay for December 2018.

4, UnderSEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015:
The Company has not disclosed trading by Designated Employee under Reg 7(2}.
In fewinstances Designated Employees of the Company has made contra trade

In one instance Designated Employee has traded during the period of Window Closure

We further report that
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors
and Independent Directors. The composition of the Board of Directors during the period under review was in compliance with

the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at
least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda

items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out either unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the
meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations

of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
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We further report that

1.

4.

The Company has obtained approval of Members through Postal Ballot on 5" June, 2018 for raising capital by issuing
12,45,000 equity warrants at an issue price of Rs.327/convertible into equity shares, on a preferential basis to the

Promoter & Promoter Group, However, the issue was rejected by the Promoters.

The Board of Directors of the Company vide Circular Resolution No. CR/SNCL/01/2018-19 passed on Wednesday, 20th
June, 2018 inter-alia, approved redemption of 1% Non-Cumulative Non-Convertible Preference Shares of the Company
which were issued to M/s Manekchand Panachand Trading Investment Company Private Limited out of Profit of the

current year ended 31st March, 2018.

The Board of Directors in Board Meeting dated 8" August, 2018 has considered and approved the Scheme of Merger by
Absorption of Strix Wireless System Private Limited {Transferor Company), wholly owned subsidiary with Sadhana Nitro
Chem Limited (Transferee Company) under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013. Further, the Scheme is subject to the sanction of the National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench, Mumbai the
approvals of the Stock Exchanges, Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), the respective shareholders and

creditors of the Transferor Company and Transferee Company and such other Statutory or Regulator's.

The Company has obtained approval of Members through Postal Ballot on 21" December, 2018 for sub division of fully
paid up Equity Shares of the Company from Face value of Rs 10/- per shares to Rs 5/- per share and Alteration of the

Capital Clause in the Memorandum of Association.

The Company has obtained approval of Members through Postal Ballot on 8" March, 2019 to Consider and approve

related Party Transaction for acquisition of shares of M/s Spidigo Net Private Limited and to continue the directorship of Mr

Arvind Raoji Doshi, as an Independent Director.

For MMJC & Associates LLP Company Secretaries

BhavishaJewani

Designated Partner Place: Mumbai
FCSNo.8503 | CP.No.9346 Date: 7" August, 2019
*This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of this report.
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To

Annexure A'

The Members,

Sadhana Nitrochem Limited

Hira Baug, 1" floor Kasturba Chowk
{C.P. Tank) Mumbai 400004

Ourreport of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct
facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the
company.

4.  Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and
regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

For MMIC & Associates LLP

Company Secretaries

Bhavisha Jewani

Designated Partner
FCSNo.8503
CP.No.9346

Place: Mumbai
Date: 7" August, 2019
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ANNEXURE - V TO DIRECTORS REPORT 2018-19

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Previously, Regulations 17 to 27, clauses {b) to (i) of Regulation 46 (2) and Para C, D and E of Schedule V of SEBI {Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 was not mandatory to the Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited (the "Company"),
however, the Company voluntarily disclosed the Compliance to the best extent possible. From the end of the financial year 2017-
18, the aforesaid Regulations are applicable to the Company.

In accordance with the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 {"Listing Regulations"}, the report containing the details of Corporate Governance systems and
processes of the Company is as follows together with the Auditors Certificate annexed as Exhibit A to this report, on compliance
with the conditions of Corporate Governance laid down are presented in the Report on Corporate Governance for the year
ended 31st March, 2018,

1. COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE:

Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited believes that transparent accounting policies, appropriate disclosures norms, best-in-class Board
practices and consistently high standards of corporate conduct towards its stakeholders are essential for sustained corporate
growth.

Corporate Governance is about commitment to values and ethical business conduct. The Report on the Corporate
Governance is to fulfill this commitment. An Organization is able to attract investors and enhance the trust and confidence of all
stakeholders by following the best governance practices.

OurGovernance philosophy is based on the following:-

< Management is the trustee of the Shareholders capital and not the owner.

* Provide an enabling environment to harmonize the goals of maximizing stakeholder value and maintaining a customer
centricfocus.

» Haveasimple and transparent corporate structure driven solely by business needs.

» Communicate externally, in a truthful manner, about how the Company is running internally.

« Make clear distinction between personal convenience and corporate resources.

« Betransparentand maintain high degree of disclosure levelsin all facets of its operations.

o Satisfy the spirit of the l[aw and not just the letter of the [aw.

The Company's philosophy on Corporate Governance is thus concerned with the ethics, values and morals of the Company and
its directors, who are expected to act in the best interests of the Company and remain accountable to shareholders and other
beneficiaries for their action.

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

The Company's Board Comprises of Individuals with considerable experience and expertise across a range of discipline including
Business Management and Business Strategy.

The Board Members are fully aware of their roles and responsibilities in discharge of the key functions. The Board Members
strive to meet the expectation of operational transparency without compromising the need to maintain confidentiality of
information.

The Composition of the Board and Directorship held in other Companies as on 31st March, 20189:
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Sr. Name of Category of Directorship No. of outside No. of other
No. | the Director(s) Directorship outside Committee
positions held (*)

Chairman { Member
1 Mr. Asit D. Javeri Promoter - Executive Chairman 7 2 4
2 Mr. Abhishek A. Javeri Promoter - Managing Director 5 - -
& Chief Financial Officer
3 Smt. Seema A. Javeri Promoter - Executive Director 4 - -
4 Mr. Arvind R. Doshi Independent - Non-Executive - - -
5 Mr. Pradeep N. Desai Independent - Non-Executive 4 - -
6 Mr. Priyam S. Jhaveri Independent - Non-Executive 7 1 -
7 Mr. Amit Mehta Independent - Non-Executive 10 - -

{*) In other Limited Companies only membership of Audit Committee and Stakeholder's Relationship Committee are
considered.

3. BRIEF PROFILE OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY:
a) ShriAsitD.Javeri(DIN: 00268114):

Shri Asit D. Javeri (DIN: 00268114) aged 63 years, is a Science graduate from Mumbai University. He is S/o {Late) Shri Dhankumar
T.Javeri, founder Chairman of the Company.

He joined company in December 1984 as a Director of the company and in January 1985, he was appointed as the Managing
Director. Prior to joining the company he had experience of 9 years of running chemical company. He has been associated with
the company for more than 33 years.

During the Year 2018-19, based on the recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors of
the Company in its meeting held on 30th April, 2018 decided to terminate agreement with him which was expired on 31st
August, 2018 and re-appoint him as the Managing Director of the Company for period of (3) three years w.e.f. from 1st May, 2018.
Further, in view of the succession planning and in order to give the next generation opportunity to lead the Company, the Board
of Director in its meeting held on 24th July, 2018 decided to re-designate him as Executive Chairman of the Company from his
existing position of Chairman & Managing Director w.e.f. 24th July, 2018 for period of 3 (Three) Years commencing from 1st May,
2018.

At present Shri Asit D. Javeri is Executive Chairman of the Company. He is also promoter of the company and holds 9, 56,180
Equity Shares of the company as on 31st March, 2019,

Table showing name of Unlisted Companies in which Shri Asit D. Javeriis director:

Sr. No Name of the Unlisted Company Category of Directorship
1. PHTHALO Colours & Chemicals (India) Limited. Director
2. Manekchand Panachand Trading Investment Company Private Limited. Director
3. Chandra Net Private Limited Director
4. Lifestyle Net Works Limited. Director
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Table showing name of Listed Company in which Shri Asit D. Javeri s director:

Sr.No | Name of the Listed Company Category of Directorship
1. 1EL Limited Non-Executive - Independent Director
2. Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited Executive Director
3. Premier Limited Non-Executive - Independent Director

Table showing Name of the Companies in which Shri Asit D. Javeriis a member of the Committee of the Board:

Sr. No | Name of the Company Name of the Committee in which he is Member

1. Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited - Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

(Chairperson)

2. Premier Limited - Stakeholders Relationship Committee
Chairman {Chairperson)

- Nomination & Remuneration
Committee {(Member)

- Audit Committee (Member)

- Corporate Social Responsibility

Committee (Member)

3. Indian Extractions Limited - Audit Committee (Chairperson)

- Nomination & Remuneration
Committee (Chairperson)

- Stakeholders Relationship

Committee (Chairperson)

4, PHTHALO Colours & Chemicals (India) Limited. - Audit Committee-Member (Non-Executive)

5. Manekchand Panachand Trading Investment Company - Nil
Private Limited.
6. Chandra Net Private Limited - Nil
7. Lifestyle Net Works Limited. - Nil

b) ShriArvind R. Doshi {DIN: 00015293):

Shri Arvind R. Doshi (DIN: 00015293) aged 79 years, is a Civil & Sanitary Engineer from VITI, Mumbai and Diploma in Business
Management.

He joined company on 17th September, 1974 as a Director. He has been associated with the company for more than 41 years.

He has a wide experience in industries like Engineering & Automobiles since 1965. He has received Prestigious Dadabhai Naroji
International award for Excellence & Achievement in 1999. Also he has been awarded Samaj Ratna by Mahamastaka Abhishek
Committee 2006.
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Further, during the year 2018-19, Company sought an approval of members of the Company by way of Special Resolution
through Postal Ballot to continue his appointment as Non-Executive Independent Director pursuant to the sub regulation (1A) of
Regulation 17 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
with effect from 1st April, 2019, which states that No listed entity shall appoint a person as a Non-Executive Director or continue
his/ her directorship as Non-Executive Director - who has attained the age of 75 Years or more, unless prior consent from the
members of the company has been obtained by way of Special Resolution.

At present Shri Arvind R. Doshi is Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company. He is holding 24,996 Equity Shares of the
company ason 31st March, 2019.

Table showing name of Unlisted Companies in which Shri Arvind R. Doshiis director:

Sr. No Name of the Unlisted Company Category of Directorship

1. NIL -

Table showing name of Listed Company in which Shri Arvind R. Doshiis director:

Sr.No | Name of the Listed Company Category of Directorship

1. Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited Non-Executive - Independent Director

Table showing Name of the Companies in which Shri Arvind R. Doshi is a member of the Committee of the Board:

Sr.No | Name of the Company Name of the Committee in which he is Member

1. Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited - Stakeholders Relationship Committee
Chairman (Member)

- Nomination & Remuneration Committee
{Chairperson)

- Audit Committee {(Member)

- Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

{Member)

c) Shri. PriyamS. Jhaveri (DIN: 00045038):

Shri. Priyam S. Jhaveri (DIN: 00045038) aged 64 years. He is a Commerce graduate and having rich experience in Chemical
Industry. He is associated with Nanavati Group of Companies and joined Company as a Director from 11th March, 1996.

At present Shri. Priyam S. Jhaveri is Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company. He is holding 400 Equity Shares of the
company ason 31st March, 2019.

Table showing name of Unlisted Companies in which Shri. Priyam S. Jhaveriis director:

Sr.No | Name of the Unlisted Company Category of Directorship
1 PHTHALO Colours And Chemicals (India)Limited Chairman & Managing Director
2 PHTHALO Pigments Private Limited Director
3. Sonega Trades & Investments Private limited Director
4 Nanavati Sons Private Limited Director
5 Nanavati Speciality Chemicals Private Limited Director

37



SADHANA NITRO CHEM LIMITED

Table showing name of Listed Company in which Shri. Priyam S. Jhaveriis director:

Sr.No | Name of the Listed Company Category of Directorship
1. Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited Non-Executive - independent Director
2. IEL Limited Executive Director, Chairperson, Managing
Director
3. Excel Industries Limited Non-Executive - Independent Director

Table showing Name of the Companies in which Shri. Priyam S. Jhaveriis a member of the Committee of the Board:

Sr.No | Name of the Company Name of the Committee in which he is Member
1. Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited - Stakeholders Relationship Committee
Chairman (Member)
- Nomination & Remuneration Committee
(Chairperson)
- Audit Committee (Member)
- Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
{Member)
2, IEL Limited - NIL
3. Excel Industries Limited - Nomination & Remuneration Committee
{Member}
- Audit Committee (Member)
4, PHTHALO Colours & Chemicals {India)Limited -
5. PHTHALO Pigments Private Limited - Nil
6. Sonega Trades & Investments Private limited - Nil
7. Nanavati Sons Private Limited - Nil
8. Nanavati Speciality Chemicals Private Limited - Nil

d} ShriPradeep N. Desai(DIN:01602942):

Shri Pradeep N. Desai {DIN: 01602942) aged 56 years. He is Chemical Engineer. He joined the company as a Director from 12th

February, 2013.

At present Shri Pradeep N. Desai is Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company. He is holding 200 Equity Shares of the

company ason 31st March, 2019.

Table showing name of Unlisted Companies in which Shri Pradeep N. Desai is director:

Sr.No | Name of the Unlisted Company Category of Directorship
1. Tanishka Micro Encapsulation Private Limited Director

2. Aayan Nanotech Private Limited Director

3. Life Style Networks Limited Director
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Table showing name of Listed Company in which Shri Pradeep N. Desaiis director:

Sr.No | Name of the Listed Company Category of Directorship

1. Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited Non-Executive - Independent Director

Table showing Name of the Companies in which Shri Pradeep N. Desaiis amember of the Committee of the Board:

Sr.No | Name of the Company Name of the Committee in which he is Member

1. Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited - Stakeholders Relationship Committee
Chairman (Member)

- Nomination & Remuneration Committee
{Member}

- Audit Committee (Chairperson)

2. Tanishka Micro Encapsulation Private Limited - Nil
Aayan Nanotech Private Limited - Nil
4. Life Style Networks Limited - Nil

e) ShriAbhishek A.Javeri (DIN: 00273030):

Shri Abhishek A. Javeri (DIN: 00273030) aged 36 years. He is son of Mr. Asit D. laveri, Executive Chairman of the Company and
Smt. Seema A. Javeri, Executive Director - Administration, of the Company. He is BA in Economics from North Western University,
USA. He joined the company as a Director from 24th January, 2007.

During the Year 2018-19, based on the recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors of
the Company in its meeting held on 30th April, 2018 decided to terminate agreement with him which was expired on 31st
August, 2018 and re-appoint him as the Executive Director & Chief Financial Officer of the Company for period of (3) three years
w.e.f. from 1st May, 2018.

Further, in light of the growth in profits observed by the Company during the year 2018-19 and due to the efforts of Shri.
Abhishek Asit Javeri and the future growth of the Company, the Board of Director in its meeting held on 24th July, 2018 decided to
re-designate him as Managing Director & Chief Financial Officer of the Company from his existing position of Executive Director &
CFOw.e.f. 24th July, 2018 for period of 3 {Three) Years commencing from 1st May, 2018.

At present Shri Abhishek A. Javeri is Managing Director & Chief Financial Officer of the Company. He is also a promoter of the
Company and holding S, 62,168 Equity Shares of the company as on 31st March, 2019.

Table showing name of Unlisted Companies in which Shri Abhishek A. Javeriis director:

Sr. No Name of the Unlisted Company Category of Directorship
1 Spidigo Net Private Limited Additional Director
2 A Manekchand Panachand Trading Investment Company Private Limited Director
3. Life Style Networks Limited Director
4 Chandra Net Private Limited Director
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Table showing name of Listed Company in which Shri Abhishek A. Javeriis director:

Sr.No | Name of the Listed Company Category of Directorship

1. Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited Managing Director & Chief Financial Officer

Table showing Name of the Companies in which Shri Abhishek A. Javeri is a member of the Committee of the Board:

Sr.No | Name of the Company Name of the Committee in which he is Member
1. Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited - Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
2, Spidigo Net Private Limited - Nil
3. A Manekchand Panachand Trading Investment Company - Nil

Private Limited
4, Life Style Networks Limited - Nil
5. Chandra Net Private Limited - Nil

f) Smt.Seema A.Javeri{DIN:01768936):

Smt. Seema A. Javeri (DIN: 01768936) aged 60 years. She is a B.Sc. She has an experience of 12 years in Administration. She joined
the company as a Director from 13th February, 2014.

During the Year 2018-19, based on the recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors of
the Company in its meeting held on 30th April, 2018 decided to terminate agreement with her which was expired on 30th June,
2018 and re-appoint her as the Executive Director - Administration of the Company for period of (3) three years w.e.f. from 1st
May, 2018.

At present Smt. Seema A. Javeri is Executive Director - Administration of the Company. She is also a promoter ofthe Company and
holding 36, 654 Equity Shares of the company as on 31st March, 2019.

Table showing name of Unlisted Companies in which Smt. Seema A. Javeriis director:

Sr.No | Name of the Unlisted Company Category of Directorship
1. Spidigo Net Private Limited Director
2. Manekchand Panachand Trading Investment Company Private Limited Director
3. Life Style Networks Limited Director

Table showing name of Listed Company in which Smt. Seema A. Javeriis director:

Sr.No | Name of the Listed Company Category of Directorship

1. Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited Executive Director-Administration
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Table showing Name of the Companies in which Smt. Seema A. Javeriis amember of the Committee of the Board:

Sr.No | Name of the Company Name of the Committee in which he is Member

1. Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited - Internal Complain Committee for prevention
and prohibition of Sexual Harassment of

woman at workplace (Chairperson)

2. Spidigo Net Private Limited - Nil

3. Manekchand Panachand Trading Investment Company - Nil

Private Limited

4, Life Style Networks Limited - Nil

g) ShriAmit M. Mehta (DIN:00073907):

Shri Amit M. Mehta (DIN: 00073907) aged 65 years is a B.Sc in Chemistry. He has vast experience of in Chemical Business. He
joined the company as an Additional Independent Director of the Company on 30th April, 2018 subject to the approval of
members in 45th AGM of the Company held in Financial Year 2018-19. In AGM of the Company held on 30th August, 2018,
members of the Company approved the appointment of Shri Amit M. Mehta as an Independent Director to hold the office fora
term up to consecutive five years commencing from 30th April, 2018.

At present Shri Amit M. Mehta is Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company. He is holding 84,372 Equity Shares of the
company as on 31st March, 2019.

Table showing name of Unlisted Companies in which Shri Amit M. Mehtais director:

Sr. No Name of the Unlisted Company Category of Directorship
1. Tomorrow Land Apparels Private Limited Director
2. Finorga (India) Pvt Ltd Managing Director
3. S. Amit Speciality Chemicals Private Limited Director
4. Perfo Chem {India) Private Limited Director
5. Topnotch Realty Private Limited Director
6. Pinami Realty Private Limited Director
7. Value E-Healthcare Limited Director
8. Insight Health Scan Private Limited Director
9. Global - Local Lifestyle Services Private Limited Director

Table showing name of Listed Company in which Shri Amit M, Mehtais director:

Sr. No Name of the Listed Company Category of Directorship
1. Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited Non - Executive - Independent Director
2. Diamines Chemicals Limited Non - Executive - Independent Director
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Table showing Name of the Companies in which Shri Amit M. Mehta is a member of the Committee of the Board:

Sr.No [ Name of the Company Name of the Committee in which he is Member
1. Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited - NiL
2, Diamines Chemicals Limited - Stakeholders Relationship Committee

Chairman (Member)}
- Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

(Chairperson)

3 Tomorrow Land Apparels Private Limited - Nil
4 Finorga {India) Pvt Ltd - Nil
5 S. Amit Speciality Chemicals Private limited - Nil
6. Perfo Chem (India) Private Limited - Nil
7 Topnotch Realty Private Limited - Nil
8 Pinami Realty Private Limited - Nil
9 Value E-Healthcare Limited - Nil
10. Insight Health Scan Private Limited - Nil
11, Global Local Lifestyle Services Private limited - Nil

4, ATTENDANCE RECORD OF THE DIRECTORS:

During the Financial Year 2018-19:

a) Seven Meetings of Board of Directors were held on 30th April, 2018, 24th July, 2018, O1st August, 2018, 08th August, 2018,
24th September, 2018, 19th October, 2018 & 22nd January, 2019.

b) Last Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company was held on 30th August, 2018.

The Attendance of Directors at the Board Meetings and Last AGM were as under:-

Dates on which Attendance of Directors
the Meetings Mr. Asit | Mr, Arvind | Mr. Priyam | Mr. Abhishek | Mr. Pradeep | Smt.Seema | Mr. Amit
were held D.Javeri | R.Doshi S. Jhaveri A, Javeri N. Desai A. Javeri M Mehta
Board Meeting

Present Present Present Present Present Present Present
30th April, 2018
Board Meeting

Absent Present Present Present Absent Present Present
24th July, 2018
Board Meeting

Present Present Present Present Present Present Present
Olst August, 2018
Board Meeting

Present Present Present Present Present Absent Present
08th August, 2018
Board Meeting

Present Present Present Absent Present Present Present
24th September, 2018
Board Meeting

Present Present Present Present Present Present Present
19th October, 2018
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Dates on which Attendance of Directors
the Meetings Mr. Asit | Mr. Arvind | Mr. Privam | Mr. Abhishek { Mr. Pradeep | Smt.Seema | Mr. Amit
were held D.Javeri | R.Doshi S. Jhaveri A. Javeri N. Desai A. Javeri M Mehta
Board Meeting

Present Present Present Present Present Absent Present
22nd January, 2019
AGM

Present Present Present Present Present Present Absent

30th August, 2018

S. DISCLOSURE OF RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN DIRECTORS INTER-SE:

Name of Director Inter-se Relationship
Mr. Asit D Javeri Father of Mr. Abhishek A Javeri and Husband of Mrs. Seema A Javeri
Mr. Abhishek A Javeri Son of Mr. Asit D Javeri and Mrs. Seema A Javeri
Mrs. Seema A Javeri Wife of Mr. Asit D Javeri and Mother of Mr. Abhishek A Javeri
Mr. Priyam S. Jhaveri No Relation
Mr. Pradeep N. Desai No Relation
Mr. Arvind R. Doshi No Relation
Mr. Amit M Mehta No Relation
Note:

Board meets once in quarter wherein they review quarterly performance and financial results. The Board meetings are generally
scheduled well in advance and the notice of each meeting is given in writing to each Director. All the items on the agenda are
accompanied by a note giving comprehensive information on the related subject. The agenda and relevant notes are sent in
advance separately to each of directors and only in exceptional cases the same is tabled at the meeting. The Board is also free to
recommend the inclusion of any method for discussion in consultation with the Chairman. The information as specified in Part A
of Schedule of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is regularly made available to the Board.
The minutes of the Board meeting are circulated within reasonable time period in accordance with the secretarial standards to
all directors and are confirmed at subsequent meeting. The minutes of audit committee and other committees of the board are
circulated within the stipulated time period to all members of the Committees and are regularly place before the respective
Committees.

6. TRAINING OF NON-EXECUTIVE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD:

All new non-executive Directors are appointed on the Board of the Company are introduced to the culture through induction
sessions. The Executive Directors and senior management provide an overview of the operations and familiarize the new Non-
executive Directors on matters the morals and principles of the Company.

They are introduced to the organization structures and various procedures, The Directors are also briefed pertaining to the group
structure and subsidiaries. The Company has a detailed familiarization Programme for Independent Directors to familiarize them
with the Company, their roles, rights, responsibilities in the Company, nature of the industry in which the Company operates,
business model of the Company etc.

The details of such Programme is available on the website of the Company at
http://www.sncl.com/newpdf/policy/Familiarization%20Program%20for%20Independent%20Directors.pdf
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7. NUMBER OF SHARES & CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS HELD BY NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2019 IS AS
UNDER:

Name of Director Director Category Number of Shares/convertible
instruments held in the Company

Mr. Amit M. Mehta* Non-Executive, Independent 84372 Equity Share
Mr. Arvind R, Doshi Non-Executive, Independent 24996 Equity Share
Mr. Priyam S. Jhaveri Non-Executive, Independent 400 Equity Share
Mr. Pradeep N. Desai Non-Executive, Independent 200 Equity Share

*Shri Amit M. Mehta was appointed as Independent Director of the Company with effect from April 30, 2018.

8. CONFIRMATION PERTAINING TO INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY:

In the opinion of the Board of Directors of the Company, Mr. Amit M. Mehta, Mr. Arvind R. Doshi, Mr. Priyam S. Jhaveri and Mr.
Pradeep N. Desai, Non-Executive independent directors are independent of the management and complies with criteria of
Independent Director as placed in Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 and Companies Act, 2013.

9. REASONSFORTHE RESIGNATION OF AN INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR:

During the year 2018-19, No Independent Director has resigned before the expiry of his tenure.

10. LIST OF SKILLS/EXPERTISE/COMPETENCIES REQUIRED TO FUNCTION THE BUSINESS EFFECTIVELY:
Too many businesses fail because translating passion into a successful business modelis a difficult task.

Developing a small business into a successful enterprise demands more than passion. Unfortunately, facts speak for themselves.
Over half of new businesses fail mainly because the entrepreneur is unable to translate their passion into practical business skills.
Success demands more than hard work, resilience, and expertise in your field. In order to succeed, you need to understand and
to become proficient in a set of fundamental business skills. Following are the essential skills that you are required to run the
business of the Company:

a) FinancialManagement Skill:

Being able to effectively manage your finances is critical. You will need to be able to forecast your cash flow and sales, as well as,
monitor your profit and loss. Having sound financial management skills will help you to run your business profitably and protect
your financialinvestment.

b) Marketing, Sales and Customer Service Skill:
It is important to be able to promote your products or services effectively. Providing good customer service and having a
marketing strategy in place will help you to generate sales.

¢} Communication and Negotiation Skill:

Communication and negotiation with your suppliers, potential investors, customers and employees is very important to have.
Having effective written and verbal communication skills will help you to build good working relationships. Every communication
shoutd reflect the image you are trying to project.

d) ManagementSkill:

These means offering other people opportunities to do work, even if you think it will benefit your own clout or resume to do it
yourself. Delegation is an important part of time and resource management. If you take everything on yourself, chances are your
work in key areas will suffer. Someone that excels in business will be able to manage their own workload by appropriately
directing the appropriate colleagues and subordinates for the best tasks.
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e) Strategic Planning Skill:

Strategic planning is a very important business activity. Strategic planning is a process of defining your company's strategy or
direction and making decisions on allocations of resources of capital and people. The key is to know how to project your
company's future performance, within a three-to-five year framework or more, supported by your well-defined business plan.

11. AUDITCOMMITTEE:

a) Preamble:

As required under section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with part C of schedule Ii thereto, the Board has constituted Audit Committee which
comprises of the following Directors:

Name of Director Nature of Membership and Director Category
Date of Appointment

Mr. Priyam S. Jhaveri Chairman (From 29/04/2008) Non-Executive, Independent
Mr. Arvind R. Doshi Member (From 29/04/2008) Non-Executive, Independent
Mr. Pradeep N. Desai Member (From19/1/2018) Non-Executive, Independent

b} ChangeinComposition:
There was no change in the composition of the Audit Committee during the financial year 2018-19.
c) Termsofreference of the Audit Committee:

The Audit Committee shall have the authority to investigate into any matter that may be prescribed under Company Law for the
time being in force and within its terms of reference.

Role of the Audit Committee, inter-alia, includes the following :-

a) Oversight of the Company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the
financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible.

b} Recommending to the Board the appointment, re-appointment and, if required, the replacement or removal of the
statutory auditors and the fixation of audit fees.

¢) Approvalof payment to statutory auditors forany other services rendered by the statutory auditors.

d) Reviewing with management the annual financial statements before submission to the Board, for approval with particular
referenceto:

i. Mattersrequired beingincluded in the Director’s Responsibility Statement.

ii. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons forthe same.

iii. Major accounting entriesinvolving estimates based on exercise of judgment by management.

iv. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings.

v. Compliance with Listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements.

vi. Disclosure of any related party transactions.

vii. Qualifications in draft audit report.

e) Reviewing with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the Board for approval

f) Reviewing with the management performance of statutory andinternal auditors, adequacy of the internal control systems.
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g) Reviewingthe adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure  of the internal audit department, staffing
and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit.

h) Discussions with internalauditors any significant findings and follow up thereon.

i)  Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud or
irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the Board.

j) Discussions with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit
discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

k) Tolook into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in case
of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors.

1) Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.

m

-

The Audit Committee shall mandatorily review the following information.

i. Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;

ii. Statement ofsignificant related party transactions (as defined by the audit committee), submitted by Management;
iii. Management letters/letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;

iv. Internalaudit reports relating to internal control weakness; and

v. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief internal auditor shall be subject to review by the Audit
Committee.

n) To verify that the systems for internal control towards compliance of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015
are adequate and operating effectively at least once in a financial year.

o) Toreviewand verify the report oninternal control.
p) Tostrengthen theinternal control system placed for compliance of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015.

q) To review and verify the report to be provided by Compliance officer on compliance of SEBI {Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015 and code of conduct at such frequency as may be stipulated by the Board of Directors

Mr. Chandrashekar lyer - Chandrashekhar lyer & Co., Partner of the firm - Statutory Auditor and Jayesh Dadia - Jayesh Dadia &
Associates, Partner of the firm - Internal Auditor, have been permanent invitees to the Audit Committee Meetings besides
Chairman, Managing Director & Chief Financial Officer as an Invitee. Company Secretary attended most of the meeting of the
Audit Committee asinvitee as well,

During the year, the Audit Committee, in its meetings, discussed among other things, the following:

« Reviewed with management, quarterly, half yearly and annual financial statements before submission to the Board.

o Discussed with the management and the internal and statutory auditors findings in the internal audit reports.

» Deliberated on the applicability, compliance and impact of various Accounting Standards and guidelines issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India from time to time.
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o Reviewed the Company's Financial and Risk Management Policies and Audit Reports covering operational, financial and
other business risk areas.

The Chairman of the Audit Committee has briefed the Board of Directors, about the Audit Committees observations on various
issues discussed at its meetings. Minutes of the Audit Committee Meetings are also circulated to all the Board Members along

with agenda of the subsequent meeting.

The Financial decisions of the Company are taken by Mr. Asit D Javeri, Executive Chairman along with Mr. Abhishek A Javeri,
Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer at the Meeting of Board of Directors.

d) Attendancerecord of the Members:

The attendance record of each member of the Audit Committee at the Meeting held on 30th April, 2018, 01st August, 2018, 08th
August, 2018, 19th October, 2018 and 22nd January, 2019 are as follows: -

Dates on which the

Meetings were held Attendance of Members
Mr. Priyam S. Jhaveri Mr. Arvind R. Doshi Mr. Pradeep N. Desai
{Chairman) (Member) {Member)

30th April, 2018 Present Present Present

01st August, 2018 Present Present Present

08th August, 2018 Present Present Present

19th Qctober, 2018 Present Present Present

22nd January, 2019 Present Present Present

The previous Annual General Meeting was held on 30th August, 2018. Mr. Priyam Javeri Chairmén of the Audit Committee has
attended the Annual General Meeting of the Company.

12, RISK MANAGEMENT:
Preamble:

The Board takes responsibility for the total process of risk management in the organisation. Results of the risk assessments and
residual risks are presented to the Senior Management and the Audit Committee members. The Management is accountable for
the integration of risk management practices into the day to day activities. The scope of the Audit Committee includes review of
the Company's financial and risk management policies. The Audit Committee reviews the Audit Reports covering operational,
financial and other business risk areas.

13. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:
a} Preamble:
Pursuant to the provisions of section 178 (5) of the Act and Regulation 20 of the SEBI Regulations read with PartD of Schedule il

thereto, the Shareholders' Committee of the Board was reconstituted as the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee. The
Stakeholder Relationship Committee comprises of the following Directors: -

Name of Director

Nature of Membership and
Date of Appointment

Director Category

Mr. Priyam S. Shaveri

Chairman {From 29/04/2008)

Non-Executive, Independent

Mr. Arvind R. Doshi

Member (From 29/04/2008}

Non-Executive, Independent

Mr. Pradeep N. Desai

Member (From19/1/2018)

Non-Executive, Independent
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b} Changeincomposition:
There was no change in the composition of the Stakeholders' Relationship Committee during the financial year 2018-19.
¢} TermsofReference:

» Review the existing Investors Redressal System and suggest measures forimprovement.

«  Review the report of Registrars and Share Transfer Agents about investor's grievances and follow up for the necessary action
taken for redressal thereof.

e Suggestimprovement ininvestor's relations.

* Consider and take on record the Certificate from Practicing Company Secretary certifying that the aggregate number of
equity shares held in depositories and in physical form tally with the total number of shares issued, listed and admitted share
capital.

d) Attendancerecord of the Members:

The attendance record of each member of the Stakeholder Relationship Committee at the Meeting held on 30th April, 2018 is as
follows:

Dates on which the

Meetings were held Attendance of Members

Mr. Arvind R. Doshi
(Member)

Mr. Pradeep N. Desai
(Member)

M. Privam S. Jhaveri
(Chairman)

Present Present Present

30th April, 2018

Al share transfer and correspondence thereon are handled by the Company's Registrars and Share Transfer Agents viz. Link
Intime Private Limited situated at C-101, 247 Park, L.B.S. Marg, Vikhroli {West), Mumbai 400083.

e) Nameand Designation of Compliance Officer:

Mr. Nitin R. Jani, Company Secretary, has been appointed as the Compliance Officer, as required under Regulation 6 of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("Listing
Regulations"). He has been entrusted the task of overseeing the Share Transfer work done by the Registrars and Share Transfer
Agents and attending to grievances of the Shareholders and Investors intimated to the Company directly or through SEBI and
Stock Exchanges. All complaints / grievances have been duly intimated to exchange under Regulation 13 of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 whichis as follows:

No. of investor complaints No. of Investor complaints No. of Investor complaints No. of Investor complaints
pending at the beginning received during the disposed of during the unresolved at the end of
of the quarter ended on quarter ended on quarter ended on the quarter ended on
31.03.2019 31.03.2019 31.03.2019 31.03.2019

2 6 6 2

14. NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

Pursuant to section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the SEBI Regulations read with Part D of Schedule Il
thereto the Company has constituted the Nomination & Remuneration Committee. This Committee shall have the authority to
Investigate into any matter that may be prescribed under Company Law for the time being in force and shall also comply with the
terms of reference as specified herein asunder:

1. The Nomination & Remuneration Committee shall have meetings periodically as it may deem fit.

2. The Nomination & Remuneration Committee shall invite such of the executives to be present at the meetings of the
Committee required by it.
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3. The Nomination & Remuneration Committee shall have the following powers and functions:

a) Torecommendtothe Board, the terms and conditions of appointment of key Management personnel.
b} Toseekinformationfromanyemployee.

¢) Toobtainoutside legal or other professional advice.

a) Performance Evaluation:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee lays down the criteria for performance evaluation of independent directors and
other directors, Board of Directors and Committees of the Board of Directors pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013.

The evaluation framework for assessing the performance of Directors comprises of the following key areas:

i. Attendance of Board Meetings and Board Committee Meetings.

ii. Quality of contribution to Board deliberations.

iii. Strategic perspectives orinputs regarding future growth of Company and its performance.

iv. Providing perspectives and feedback going beyond information provided by the management.

v. Commitmentto shareholder and other stakeholder interests.

vi. The evaluation involves Self-Evaluation by the Board Member and subsequently assessment by the Board of Directors. A
member of the Board will not participate in the discussion of his / her evaluation.

b) Remuneration Policy:
Preamble:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has laid down the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a person proposed to be appointed as a director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the
remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees.

This policy ensures that-

a) The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate directors of the
quality required to run the company successfully;

b} Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and

¢) Remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves a balance between fixed and
incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the company and its
goals.

The remuneration policy of the Company is directed towards rewarding performance based on review of achievements on a
periodic basis and is inconsonance with the existing industry practice which is hosted on the website of the company at
http://www.sncl.com/newpdf/policy/NRC%20Policy.pdf

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee consists of the following Directors.

Name of Director Nature of Membership and Director Category

Date of Appointment
Mr. Arvind R. Doshi Chairman {From 29/04/2008) Non-Executive, Independent
Mr. Priyam S, Jhaveri Member (From 29/04/2008) Non-Executive, Independent
Mr. Pradeep N. Desai Member (From19/1/2018) Non-Executive, Independent

c) Changeincomposition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

There was no change in the composition of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee during the financial year 2018-19.
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d} Attendancerecord of the Members:

The attendance record of each member of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee at the Meeting held on Sth April, 2018,
30th April, 2018, 24th July, 2018 and 01st August, 2018 are as follows :

Dates on which the Attend £ b

Meetings were held ttendance of Members
Mr. Priyam S. Jhaveri Mr. Arvind R. Doshi Mr. Pradeep N. Desai
{Chairman) {Member) {Member)

09th April, 2019 Present Present Present

30th April, 2018 Present Present Present

24th July, 2018 Present Present Present

01st August, 2018 Present Present Present

15, CORPORATE SOCIALRESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE:
a) Preamble:

As required under section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board in its meeting held on 19th October, 2018 has constituted
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee ('CSR Committee') which comprises of the following Directors

Name of Director Nature of Membership and Director Category
Date of Appointment

Mr. Asit D Javeri Chairman (From 19/10/2018) Executive Director
Mr. Arvind R. Doshi Member (From 19/10/2018) Non-Executive, Independent
Mr. Pradeep N. Desai Member (From 19/10/2018) Non-Executive, Independent

The board of Directors of the Company has approved CSR policy based on the recommendation of the CSR Committee which is

available on the Company’s website at http://www.sncl.com/financials.htm

b) Changeincomposition:
There was no change in the composition of the CSR Committee during the Financial Year 2018-19

c) Termsofreference ofthe CSR Committee:

a. Formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which shall indicate the activities to be
undertaken by the company as specified in Schedule Vil of Companies Act, 2013;

b. Recommend the amountof expenditure to be incurred on the activities referred to in clause (a); and

¢. Monitorthe Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company fromtime to time.

d. Adhere to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 & Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014
(including any statutory modifications, amendments or re-enactments thereto for the time being in force).

e. Allotheractivities as informed or delegated by the Board of Directors from time to time

d} Attendancerecord of the Members:
The attendance record of each member of the CSR Committee at the Meeting held on 22nd January, 2019 are as follows:-

Dates on which the

Meetings were held Attendance of Members

Mr. Asit D. Javeri Mr. Arvind R. Doshi Mr. Priyam S. Jhaveri
{Chairman) (Member) (Member)
22nd January, 2019 Present Present Present
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16. INTERNALCOMPLAINT COMMITTEE FOR PREVENTION AND PROHIBITION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMAN

a) Preamble

Pursuant to Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal} Act, 2013 ("Act"), the Board by
passing circular resolution on 28th March, 2018, constituted the committee known as Internal Complaint Committee ("1CC") for -
prevention and prohibition of sexual harassment of woman which comprises of the following Directors:

Name of Director Nature of Membership and Director Category
Date of Appointment

Mrs. Seema Javeri Chairman {From 28/03/2019) Executive Director
Mrs. Jyotsna Tushar Parab Member (From 28/03/2019) -
Mrs. Philomena Fernandes Member (From 28/03/2019) ' -
Mrs. Mamta Jatin Shah Member (From 28/03/2019) -

b} Changeincomposition:
There was no change in the composition of the ICC during the financial year 2018-19.
c) Termsofreference of the Committee:

a. To provide protection against sexual harassment of women at workplace and for the prevention and redressal of complaints
of sexual harassment and for matters connected therewith orincidental thereto

d) Attendance record of the Members:

The attendance record of each member of the ICC at the Meeting held on 30th March, 2019 are as follows:

Dates on which the

Meetings were held Attendance of Members

Mrs. Seema Javeri | Mrs. Jyotsna Tushar Parab | Mrs. Philomena Fernandes| Mrs. Mamta Jatin Shah
(Chairperson) {Member) {Member) {Member)
30th March, 2019 Present Present Present Present

17. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS:

a) Preamble:

The Company pays remuneration by way of salary, allowances and perquisites, performance allowance etc. to the Chairman,
Managing Director and Company Secretary on recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee as approved by

the Board of Directors and shareholders of the Company subject to approval of the Central Government if necessary.

Details of remuneration of the Directors during Financial Year 2018-19:

Name of the Director Fixed Salary Bonus/ performance | Commission Total
Base Sal . Total linked incentives
ase Salary| Benefits fixed salary
Mr. Asit D. Javeri * 79,95,000 |1,29,06,500 |2,09,01,500| 2,39,52,654 - 4,48,54,154
Mr. Abhishek A. Javeri * 79,50,000 |1,28,75,000 | 2,08,25,000( 2,39,52,654 - 4,47,77,654
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Name of the Director Fixed Salary Bonus/ performance | Commission Total
Base Salary| Benefi Total linked incentives
¥ enefits fixed salary
Smt. Seema A. Javeri* 78,20,000 86,80,400 | 1,65,00,400 1,19,76,327 - 2,84,76,727
Mr. Arvind R. Doshi Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Mr. Priyam S. Jhaveri Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Mr. Amit Mehta Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Mr. Pradeep N. Desai Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
TOTAL

(*)They are not eligible for sitting fees.

b) Service Contracts:
In accordance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 our shareholders approve the salary, benefits of

Executive Directors. We enter into service contracts with each of our Directors containing the terms and conditions of
employmentincluding salary, performance bonus and other benefits including perks to be received by the Executive Directors.

c) Notice Period:

The terms of our employment arrangements with Shri. Asit D. Javeri , Shri. Abhishek Asit Javeri and Smt. Seema Asit Javeri
Provided or upto six months' notice period.

d) Severance/Compensationfees:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is entrusted with the role of reviewing the compensation of Directors.
e) Criteriafor making payment to Non - Executive Directors:

e Sitting Fee:

Each Non-Executive Director is paid per meeting attended a sitting fee of Rs. 10,000/- for Board Meeting and Rs. 6,000/- for
Committee Meeting.

o Commission:

Under the Companies Act, 2013, Section 197 allows a company to pay remuneration to its NEDs either by way of a monthly
payment or at a specified percentage of the net profits of the company or partly by one way and partly by the other. Further, the
section also states that where the company has managing director or whole-time director or manager, then a maximum of 1% of
its net profits can be paid as remuneration to its Non-Executive Director. In case there is no managing director or whole-time
director or manager, then a maximum of 3% of net profit can be paid. Thus, the basis of payment to the Non-Executive Directoris
the net profit of the Company.

Currently the Company is not paying Commission to its Non-Executive Directors,

o Reimbursement of actual expenses incurred:

Non-Executive Director may also be paid / reimbursed such sums either as fixed allowance and /or actual as fair compensation
for travel, boarding and lodging and incidental and /or actual out of pocket expenses incurred by such member for attending
Board/Committee Meetings or for Company's work.
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o Paymentand other consideration toindependent directors:

An independent director shall not be entitled to any stock option and may receive remuneration only by way of fees and
reimbursement of expenses for participation in meetings of the Board or committee thereof and profit related commission up to
acertain percentage of net profits in such proportion, as may be permissible under the applicable law.

18. GENERALBODY MEETING:

A. Details ofthe last three Annual General Meetings:

AGM For Venue Date Time No of Special
Financial Year Ended Resolution Passed
2015-16 Sheth Hirachand Gumanji Trust Hall Hira 12.08.2016 3.00 p.m. Nil

Baug, st Floor, Kasturba Chowk (C.P. Tank)
Mumbai - 400004

2016-17 Sheth Hirachand Gumaniji Trust Hall, Hira 02.08.2017 3.00 p.m. 1*
Baug, 1st Floor, Kasturba Chowk (C.P. Tank)
Mumbai - 400004

2017-18 Sheth Hirachand Gumanji Trust Hall, Hira 30.08.2018 3.00 p.m. 3**
Baug, 1st Floor, Kasturba Chowk (C.P. Tank)
Mumbai - 400004

s *|Increasein borrowing powers of the Board of Directors.
e ** To re-designate Mr. Asit D Javeri, as executive chairman of the Company from his existing position of chairman and

managing director.
o **Tore-designate Mr. Abhishek A Javeri, as managing director & CFO of the Company from his existing position of Executive

Director & CFO.
«  **Tgreappoint Mrs. Seema Asit Javeri as Executive Director of the Company for period of 3 (Three) Years with effect from 1st

May, 2018.
B. Extra-Ordinary General Meetings:

No Extra Ordinary General Meeting has been held during the year.

C. During the year, the members have approved the following Special Resolutions by way of Postal Ballot (Effective Date
08th March, 2019): -

1. Tocontinue the Directorship of Mr. Arvind Raoji Doshi, as an Independent Director / Non-Executive Director:

o BriefVoting details for above Special Resolution:

Category Mode of No of No of % of Votes No of Votes No of Votes % of % of
Voting Shares Votes Polled on in Favor Against Votes Votes
Held Polled outstanding in favour in Against
Shares of votes of votes
polled polled
Promoter | E-Voting 9315149 | 6918972 74.28 % 6905919 13053 99.81% 0.19%

and Public | and
Institution | Postal
and Public | Ballot
Non
Institution
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o ProcedureforPostal Ballot:

In compliance with Sections 108 and 110 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the related
Rules, the Company provides electronic voting {e-voting) facility to all its members. The Company engages the services of NSDL
for the purpose of providing e-voting facility to all its members. The members have the option to vote either by physical ballot or
through e-voting.

The Company dispatches the postal ballot notices and forms along with postage prepaid business reply envelopes to its members
whose names appear on the register of members / list of beneficiaries as on a cut-off date. The postal ballot notice is sent to
members in electronic form to the email addresses registered with their depository participants (in case of electronic
shareholding) / the Company's registrar and share transfer agents {in case of physical shareholding). The Company also publishes
anotice in the newspaper declaring the details of completion of dispatch and other requirements as mandated under the Act and
applicable Rules.

Voting rights are reckoned on the paid-up value of the shares registered in the names of the members as on the cut-off date.
Members desiring to exercise their votes by physical postal ballot forms are requested to return the forms, duly completed and
signed, to the scrutinizer on or before the close of the voting period. Members desiring to exercise their votes by electronic mode
arerequested to vote before close of business hours on the last date of e-voting.

The scrutinizer submits his report to the Chairman, after the completion of scrutiny, and the consolidated results of the voting by
postal ballot are then announced by the Chairman / authorized officer. The results are also displayed on the Company website,
www.sncl.com besides being communicated to the stock exchanges, depository and registrar and share transfer agent.

The last date for the receipt of duly completed Postal Ballot Forms or e-voting shall be the date on which the resolution would be
deemed to have been passed, if approved by the requisite majority.

The Company successfully completed the process of obtaining approval of its shareholders for special resolutions on the items
detailed above through a postal ballot.

o Personwho conducted the postal ballot exercise:

/s Makarand Joshi & Company, Company Secretaries, was appointed as the scrutinizer for carrying out the postal ballot process
in a fair and transparent manner.

18. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:

The quarterly, half yearly and annual results for Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited and the consolidated financial results for its
Subsidiary Companies are published in English in Financial Express and in Marathi in Mumbai Lakshadeep and are displayed on
Company's website at www.sncl.com.

The Quarterly Results, Shareholding Pattern and all other corporate communication to the Stock Exchange are promptly filed on
BSE Listing Centre, for dissemination on its websites.

20, GENERALSHAREHOLDER INFORMATION:

a) CurrentFinancial Year:

The current financial year of the Company is 31st March, 2019.

b} Date, time and venue of 46th Annual General Meeting of the Company:
Date : 25thSeptember, 2019

Time : 3.00P.M.

Venue : atSheth Hirachand Gumaniji Trust Hall, Hira Baug, 1st Floor, Kasturba Chowk (C.P. Tank),
Mumbai 400004, Maharashtra India.
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c) Dateof Book Closure connection with 46th Annual General Meeting:

From 19/09/2019 to 25/09/2019 {both days Inclusive)

d) Dividend paymentdate:

Within 30 days of the AGM for the financial year 2018-19.

e} Financial Year:

Aprilto March

f) Nameand address of the stock exchange where Company's shares are listed:

Name: BSE Limited

Address: Phiroze Jeejebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Kala Ghoda, Fort, Mumbai, 400001, Maharashtra India
g) Confirmation of Payment of Listing Fess to BSE Limited:

The Company has made payment of listing fees to BSE Limited for the Financial Year 2018-19.
h) Financial Calendar:

Fortheyear ended March 31,2019, results were announced on

First quarter 01st August, 2018
Half year 19th October, 2018
Third quarter 22nd January, 2018
Annual 28th May, 2019

(Tentative) Results for financial year 2019-20:

June 30, 2019 2nd week of August 2019
September 30, 2019 2nd week of November 2019
December 31, 2019 2nd week of February 2020
March 31, 2020 4th week of May 2020
Annual General Meeting August, 2020

i) Suspension of Securities of the Company from Stock Exchange:
Duringthe year 2018-19, the Company's securities have not been suspended from trading on BSE Limited.

j)  Scrip Codeand ISIN Number:
Scrip Code . 506642
ISINNumber : [INE888C01032

k) Outstanding Global Depository Receipts or American Depository Receipts or Warrants Or Any Convertible Instruments:
Not Applicabie

1} Dematerialisation of Shares:

The Company's shares are tradable compulsorily in electronic form. The Company has established through its Registrar and
Share Transfer Agents, connectivity with National Securities Depository Ltd. (NSDL) and Central Depository Services {India) Ltd.
(CDSL). 97.95% of the equity shares of the company have been dematerialized as on 31st March, 2019.
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m) PERFORMANCE IN COMPARSION TO BROAD BASED INDICES (SUCH AS SENSEX INDEX):
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(Source : BSE website)

n) High/Low Of Market Price of Company's Shares traded on the Bombay Stock Exchange {BSE) Up-to 31st March, 2019:

Month (April 2018 to March 2019) High Low Close No. of Shares Total
Traded Turnover

April 341.70 215.10 341.70 4,77,163 12,95,68,584
May 490.15 358.75 458.35 4,30,200 18,83,11,529
June 639.40 436.20 588.05 5,87,373 31,56,01,063
July 692.45 527.20 692.45 2,48,427 14,50,16,107
August 800.45 660.10 800.45 3,79,875 28,09,37,592
September 1349.95 840.45 1151.50 3,61,624 40,17,66,815
October 1200.00 979.85 1078.20 2,30,078 25,32,63,381
November 1111.20 890.00 917.25 3,00,978 30,52,92,290
December 990.00 870.45 881.10 1,34,911 12,53,30,316
January 887.80 316.90 328.70 2,55,771 16,77,18,134
February 348.75 207.15 321.95 3,88,062 10,48,92,509
March 409.00 326.05 331.65 4,25,293 15,37,41,907

(Source : BSE website)

o} InvestorServices:

The Company has appointed M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited (LIIPL) (Formerly known as M/s. In-time Spectrum Registry
Limited, whose address is given below, as its Registrar and Transfer Agents. The Registrar handles all matters relating to the
shares of the Company including transfer, transmission of shares, dematerialisation of share certificates, subdivision
/consolidation of share certificates and investor grievances. LIIPLis also the Depository interface of the Company with both NSDL
& CDSL
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Details of LIIPL are as follows:

Address :  C-101,247 Park, L.B.S. Marg, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai 400083.
TelephoneNo : 022-49186000

E-mailaddress : rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in,

FaxNo ¢ 022-49186060

p) ShareTransfer System:

All the transfers received are processed by Registrar and Transfer Agents. Share transfers are registered and returned within
maximum of 21 days from the date of lodgment if documents are complete in all respects. In case the shares are transferred
through demat mode, the procedure is adopted as stated in Depositories Act, 1996.

21. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2019:

Category No. of Shares Percentage
Promoters 1,37,97,352 74.05
Mutual Funds and UTI 1,120 0.006
Banks, Financial Institutions & Insurance Companies 22,838 0.12
Bodies Corporate 3,26,205 1.75
Indian Public 42,44,508 22.785
NRIs/Foreign Nationals 1,08,733 0.5836
Foreign Portfolio Investor 11,660 0.626
NBFC Registered with RB! 20 0.0001
Others 1,17,462 0.6305
Total 9315149 100.00

Pursuant to Regulation 3(1) (e} (i) of Securities and Exchange Board of India {Substantial Acquisition of Shares & Takeovers)
Regulations, 1997 and subsequent amendments thereto, Promoter Group and Persons acting in concert consists of Manekchand
Panachand Trading Investment Company Private Limited and Mr., Asit D. Javeri & his family.

22, DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON 31STMARCH, 2018:

Sr. No SHAREHOLDING OF SHARES SHAREHOLDERS PERCENTAGE TOTAL PERCENTAGE

OF TOTAL SHARES OF TOTAL
SHAREHOLDERS SHARES

1. 1-5000 8007 98.43 24,03,325 12.90

2. 5001 - 10000 59 0.72 4,13,156 2.22

3. 10001 - 20000 30 0.36 4,44,726 2.38

4. 20001 - 30000 10 0.12 2,42,172 1.30

5. 30001 - 40000 8 0.10 2,77,280 1.45

6. 40001 - 50000 4 0.05 1,71,508 0.92

7. 50001 - 100000 7 0.10 4,27,101 2.29

8. 100001 or Above 9 0.12 1,42,51,030 76.50
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23. UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND:

The Company is required to transfer dividends which have remained unpaid / unclaimed for a period of 7 years to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund (IEPF} established by the Government. The Company has already transferred the unclaimed
dividend for the year ended 31st March, 2008 to the IEPF. No unpaid / unclaimed dividend remains to be transferred to |EPF.

24. PLANT LOCATION:

Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited, 47, MIDCIndustrial Area, Roha, Dist. Raigad, Maharashtra-402 116.
Telephone : Dhatav-02194-263801-2-3
Fax : (91)02194-263522

25, SUBSIDIARIES:

The Company does not have any material non-listed Indian subsidiary whose turnover or net worth (i.e. paid-up capital and free
reserves) exceeds 20% of the consolidated turnover or net worth respectively, of the listed holding company and its subsidiaries
in the immediately preceding accounting year.

26. OTHER DISCLOSURES:

(a) Materially Significant related party transactions: The particulars of transactions between the Company and its related
parties as per the Accounting Standard -18 are set out at Note 35 in Notes to Accounts in the Annual Report. These transactions
are not likely to have any conflict with Company's interest. The Company also has the policy on Materiality of Related Party
Transaction. The details of such policy are available on the website of the Company at
http://www.sncl.com/newpdf/policy/Policy%200n%20Related%20Party%20Transaction.pdf.

(b) Management Disclosures: The Senior Management Personal have been making disclosures to the Board relating to all
material, financial and commercial transactions, where they have personal interest that may have a potential conflict with the
interest of the Company at large. Based on the disclosures received, none of the Senior Management Personnel has entered into
any such transactions during the year.

{c) Strictures and Penalties: There were no penalties, strictures imposed on the Company by Stock Exchange or SEBI or any
statutory authority on any matter relating to the capital markets during the last three years.

{d) Risk Management Framework: The Board of Directors has adopted the Risk Assessment Procedure. The procedure provides
an approach by the top Management to identify potential events that may affect the Company, to manage the risk within its risk
appetite and to provide reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of objectives of the Company. The Senior
Management priorities the risk and finalize the action plan for mitigation of the key risks.

{e) Whistle Blower Policy: The Company has a vigil mechanism and whistle blower policy under which it takes cognizance of
complaints made and suggestions given by the employees and others. Even anonymous complaints are looked
into and whenever necessary, suitable corrective steps are taken. No employee of the Company has been denied
access to the Audit Committee the policy has been put up on the company's website at
http://www.sncl.com/newpdf/policy/Whistie%20Blower%20Policy.pdf.

(f) Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement:

During the year 2018-19, the Company has not raised any amount through preferential allotment or qualified institutions
placement as specified under Regulation 32 (7A).

(g) Disqualification / Debar of Directors of the Company:

A certificate provided by M/s. Makarand M Joshi & Co. Practicing Company Secretary was placed before the Board of Directors of
the Company in its meeting held on 28th May, 2019. On the basis of certificate provided by M/s. Makarand M Joshi & Co.
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Practicing Company Secretary the Board of Directors of the Company take a cognizance that none of the directors on the board of
the company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the Board /
Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. Certificate provided by M/s. Makarand M Joshi & Co. Practicing
Company Secretary is annexed hereto and marked as Exhibit - Bto thisreport.

{h} Acceptance of recommendation of Committee:

During the year 2018-19, all the suggestions / recommendations of all the committees of the Board, have been accepted by the
Board of Directors.

27. CODE OF CONDUCT AND CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE THEREOF:

Certificate signed by the chief financial officer stating that the members of Board and Senior Management personnel have
affirmed compliance with the code of conduct of board of directors and senior management is annexed hereto and marked as
Exhibit- Cto thisreport.

28. CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION:

The certificate is placed before the Board by the Chairman and Managing Director & CFO of the Company. This certificate is being
given to the Board pursuant to Regulation 17 (8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
read with Schedule i Part B of the said regulations.

The aforesaid certificate duly signed by the Chairman and Managing Director & CFO in respect of the financial period ended 31st
March, 2019 has been placed before the Board in the meeting held on 11th April, 2019 is annexed hereto and marked as Exhibit -
D tothis report.

29. SECRETARIALAUDIT FOR RECONCILIATION OF CAPITAL:

As stipulated by SEBI a qualified Practicing Company Secretary carries out Secretarial Audit to reconcile the total admitted capital
with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and the total issued
and listed capital. This auditis carried out periodically and thereon is submitted to the Listed Stock Exchanges. The audit confirms
that the total Listed and Paid-up Capital is in agreement with the aggregate of the total number of shares in dematerialised form
{held with NSDLand CDSL) and total number of shares in physical form.

30. ADDRESS FOR CORRESPONDENCE:

Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd (RTA}
{Formerly known as Intime Spectrum Registry Ltd),
Regd. Office: Hira Baug, 1st Floor, C 101, 247 Park, L.B.S. Marg,
Kasturba Chowk (C.P Tank), Vikhroli West,
Mumbai - 400 004. Mumbai-400 083
Tel : 022-23865629 Telephone No. 022-49186000
Fax :(91)22-23887235 Fax No. 022-49186060
E-mail :sadhananitro@sncl.com E-mail : rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in
Website : www.sncl.com Website: https://linkintime.co.in/contact-us.html
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EXHIBIT-A
AUDITORS' CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To
The Members,
Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited, for the year ended
on 31st March, 2019 as stipulated in Regulations 17, 18, 18, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2)
of regulation 46 and para C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 {collectively referred to as "SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015).

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination has been
limited to a review of the procedures and implementation thereof adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance with the
conditions of the Corporate Governance as stipulated in the said Clause. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the
financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the representations
made by the Directors and the Management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate
Governance as stipulated in SEBI{Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations 2015.

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Chandrashekar lyer & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Chandrashekar lyer
Proprietor

Firm Regn, No: 109208W
Membership No: 12
Place: Mumbai

Dated: 08th August, 2019
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EXIBIT-B
CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause {10){i) of the SEBI {Listing
Obligationsand Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015)

To,

The Members

Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited,

Address: Hira Baug, 1st Floor, Kasturba Chowk, {C.P. Tank), Mumbai -400004.

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Sadhana
Nitro Chem Limited having CIN: L24110MH1973PLC016698 and having registered office at Hira Baug, 1st Floor, Kasturba
Chowk, (C.P. Tank), Mumbai - 400004 (hereinafter referred to as 'the Company'), produced before us by the Company for the
purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule-V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the
Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications {including Directors ldentification Number
(DIN) status at the portal (www.mca.org.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company & its
officers, We hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year
ending on 31st March, 2019 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of
Companies by the Securities Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority.

Table A
Sr No, Name of the Directors Director Identification Number | Date of appointment in
Company
1. Mr. Asit Dhankumar Javeri 00268114 01/09/2015
2. Mr. Abhishek Asit Javeri 00273030 30/08/2018
3. Mrs. Seema Asit Javeri 01768936 13/02/2014
4. Mr. Arvind Raoji Doshi 00015293 17/09/1974
5. Mr. Pradeep Nanasaheb Desai 01602942 12/02/2013
6. Mr. Priyam Shantilal Jhaveri 00045038 11/03/1996
7. Mr. Amit Mahendra Mehta 00073907 30/04/2018

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is
neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the
management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Makarand M. Joshi & Co.
Practicing Company Secretaries
Sd/-

Kumudini Bhalerao

Partner

FCS No. 6667

CP No. 6690

Place: Mumbai

Date: 16th July, 2019.
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EXHIBIT-C
CODE OF CONDUCT AND CERTIFICATE ON CONPLIANCE THEREOF

This is to confirm that Company has adopted the Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management of the Company and is
available on the website of the Company.

| hereby confirm that the Company has obtained affirmation from all the Members of the Board and the Senior Management
Personnel that they have complied with the Code of Conduct for the Financial Year 2018-19.

This certificate is being given pursuant to Part D of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements}
Regulations, 2015.

Abhishek A. Javeri
Managing Director & CFO

Place: Mumbai
Date: 08th August, 2019
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EXHIBIT~D

CEOQ/CFO CERTIFICATE UNDER REGULATION 17(8) OF SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND
DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015
To
The Board of Directors,
Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited

A. 1have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement of Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited for the year ended 31st
March, 2019 and to the best of our knowledge and belief:

l.  These statements da not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might
be misleading;

Il. These statements together present a true and fair view of the company's affairs and are in compliance with existing
accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

B. There are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during the year which are
fraudulent, illegal or violative of the company's code of conduct.

C. 1accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have evaluated
the effectiveness of internal control systems of the company pertaining to financial reporting and have disclosed to the auditors
and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the
steps we have taken or propose to take to rectifying these deficiencies.

D. lhaveindicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee:

I. Significant changes ininternal control over financial reporting during the year;

Il. Significant changes in accounting policies made during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements; and

ll. Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or an
employee having a significant role in the company's internal control system overfinancial reporting.

For Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited

Abhishek A. Javeri Asit D Javeri
Managing Director & CFO Executive Chairman
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: 28th May, 2019 Date: 28th May, 2019
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ANNEXURE - VI

Management Discussion and Analysis Report

Industry Structure and Development:

Your company is engaged in manufacture of chemical intermediates, heavy organic chemicals and performance chemicals. India
emerged as one of the major source for chemical intermediates.

Opportunities & Threats:

Moreover, over the last year the Chinese Government has starting paying strict attention to pollution control. On several
occasions, companies in the same vertical, those are involved in the same product production as your company has faced several
temporary suspensions. This has not only increased costs in China, but has also further increased credibility of your company in
theinternational markets.

Your company is in the industry since last over 45 years. It has a very high degree of operating synergy, economies of scale and
high quality standards. The products of your company have diverse uses and applications in several industries ranging from
paper, pharmaceutical, agro chemicals, thermal dyes, light stabilizer, aerospace, dyes and hair dyes etc. Your company has good
clientele base, which is well diversified over the World.

Besides, the domestic market has shown growth.
Operational Performance:

The Companies growth considering the past few years' performance has Outstanding. The Company is striving further increasing
profits.The total revenue from the operations for the year ended March 31, 2018escalated to Rs. 11,115 Lakhs as against Rs.
5,949 Lakhs in a previous financial year registering growth of 87%.

Marketand Outlock:

Your company has healthy order book position. Despite continued slowdown in the Global economies, the demand of your
company's end products have increased globally and are expected to do so significantly over the coming years.

Abetter product mix, operational efficiency and stringent control on the cost have contributed towards increasing productivity,
production and operating margins. These factors witnessed during the year are expected to continue going forward.

The Company continued to focus on cost control at every level to improve the operational efficiency which along with the
increased operating level and upward revision of product prices is expected to maintain growth trend.Continuous efforts are
being made for efficient energy and raw material consumption. The rate of flow of orders is encouraging. Production facilities are
realigned and will be expanded to meet the demand. Your company, barring unforeseen circumstances, expects to further
improve the turnover and performance.

Risks and Concerns:

Since raw materials form an important component of your company's value chain, foreign exchange, cost and availability of some
of the key raw materials like benzene, nitricacid, caustic potash, Sulphur based chemicals, iron powder are an area of concern.

Internal Control System and their Adequacy:

The Company has an adequate Internal Control System commensurate with the size and nature of its business. The preparation
designing and documentation of Policy on Internal Financial Control has been finalized and implemented which will be reviewed
periodically and modified suitably to ensure controls. The internal audit functions are carried out by a separate firm of Chartered
Accountants. The quarterly audit reports, including significant audit observations and corrective actions thereon, are presented
to the Chairman of the Audit Committee.
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Discussion on Financial Performance with Respect to Operational Performance:
The Company'’s revenue from operations has substantially increased to Rs. 26,716/-Lakhs as compared to the previous year of Rs.
11,115 /- Lakhs registering growth of 140 %.

Human Resources:

Human Resource programs and initiatives in SNCL are aligned to meet the business needs. Your company believes ininvestingin
people to develop and expand their capability. The Company has been able to create afavorable work environment that
motivates performance, customer focus and innovation SNCL's strategies arebased, inter alia, on processes of continuous
learning and improvement.

Cautionary Statement:

Statements in the Management Discussion & Analysis Report describing the Company's expectations, opinion, and predictions
may please be considered as "forward looking statements” only. Actual results could differ from those expressed or implied.
Company's operations should be viewed in light of changes in market conditions, prices of raw materials, economic
developments in the country and such other factors.

Key Financial Ratios:

Sr. No Particulars of Ratio 31.03.2019 31.03.2018 Explanation for change in Ratios
(In %) (In %)
1. Debtors Turnover 12 104 Increase operational level
2. Inventory Turnover 22 43 Increase operational level
3. Interest Coverage Ratio 10 6 Increase operational level
4. Current Ratio 1.45 0.90 Increase operational level
5. Debt Equity Ratio 117 2.52 Increase operational level
6. Operating Profit Margin (%) 44 30.03 Increase operational level
7. Net Profit Margin (%) 28.18 28.31 Increase operational level

Details pertaining to Net-worth of the Company:

Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018 Explanation for change
(In %) (In %) in Net-worth
Net-worth 1,04,76,32,180 | 46,05,06,604 Increase operational level

Forand On Behalf of the Board of Directors
Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited

ASITD.JAVERI

EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN

DIN: 00268114

Address: Ratnagar Palace 37 ChowpattySeaface
Mumbai 400007

Place; Mumbati

Date:08th August, 2019
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ANNEXURE-VII

INFORMATION REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 134(3){m) OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND RULE
8(3) OF COMPANIES ACCOUNTS RULES, 2014.

1. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
Steps taken for further conversation of Energy:

The Company has taken several measures to conserve and optimize the use of energy suchas
(a) Recycling of Water (b)Use of Briquettes in place of Furnace Oil {c) Waterharvesting.

Impact of the above measures:

Themeasures stated above would further improve conservation of energy, reduction in water and air pollution, reduction in cost
of productionetc.

During the year under review there is no Capital Expenditure incurred inrespect of conservation of energy.

FORM-A : FORM OF DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS WITH RESPECT TO CONSERVATION

Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
1 Electricity
a) Purchased Unit in kwh 43,19,712 28,88,246
Total amount (Rs.) 3,80,84,440 24,13,42,273
Rate/Unit (Rs.) 8.81 8.36
b) Own generation
Through Diesel Generator Units in {(kwh) 55265 1,27,816

Unit per liter of diesel oil (kwh)

Liter of Diesel

Total amount (Rs.) 16,75,638 35,55,698
Cost/Units {Rs.) 30.32 27.81
2 Furnace Oil
Quantity (KL) 3232.235 2720.530
Total Cost {Rs.) 11,05,82,652 70557990
Average Rate ( /MT) 34212.44 25935.38
3 Briguettes
Quantity (MT) - -

Total Cost {Rs.) - -
Average Rate (Rs./MT) - -

a4 Water
Quantity (M3) 128438 74992
Total Cost (Rs.} 3976821 2474270
Average Rate (Rs./M3) 30.962 33.00
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2. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
EORM- B: FORM OF DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS WITH RESPECT TO ABSORPTION OF TECHNOLOGY
RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

A. Specific areas in which R&D carried out by the Company. The R&D efforts of the Company are directed towards process
development, energy conservation, Pollution control, efficiency improvement and quality up-gradation.

B. Benefits derived as a result of the above R&D.

R&D efforts have resulted in development of process for several chemical intermediates,the commercial production of which are
commenced, besides improving quality and operating efficiency of existing products.

C. FuturePlan of Action
To continue R&D in the relevant areas to achieve its benefits

D. ExpenditureonR&D

Particulars 31.03.2019 31,03.2018
(a) Capital 22,12,725 0
(b) Recurring 41,14,645 40,22,927
Total 63,27,370 40,22,927
(c) Total R&D expenditure as a % of total turnover 0.24% 0.35%

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION AND INNOVATION

A. Efforts, inbrief, made towards technology absorption, adaptation and innovation. The Company has commenced production
of some items of chemical intermediates, the process for which has been developed in R&D.

B. Benefits derived as aresult of the above efforts e.g. product improvement, cost reduction, product development, import
substitution, etc. There isimprovement in quality and yield of the productand has widened product range for marketing.

C. Incase of imported technology {imported during the last 5 years reckoned from the beginning of the financial year). No
imported technology during last 5 years.

3, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

A. Activities relating to exports, initiative taken to increase exports, development of new export markets for products and
services and export plans. The Company is exporting about 75.02 % of its chemical intermediate production. The total exports
during the year were Rs.19282 Lakhs {PY Rs. 8163 Lakhs) .The Company is putting all its efforts to tap new export markets and
widenits clientele base.

B. TotalForeign Exchange used and earned. (InRs.)

Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03,2018
(i) Used:
a) Imports (CIF) 15,97,14,241 1,55,88,267
b} Other expenditure 78,51,683 8,36,014
(i1) Earned:
Exports (F.O.B.} 1,92,82,62,106 81,08,07,629

DIN: 00268114

Address: Ratnagar Palace 37 Chowpatty
Seaface, Mumbai 400007

Place: Mumbai

Date:08th August, 2019

Forand On Behalf of the Board of Directors
Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited

ASITD. JAVER}
EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN
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ANNEXURE VIII
Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on financial year ended on 31st March 2019
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

|. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

N "l 124110MH1973PLCOL668
Registration Date o | 21/07/1973
Name of the Company : | SADHANA NITRO CHEM LIMITED
Category / Sub-Category of the Company : Company Limited by Shares
Non-Govt. Company
Address of the Registered office and contact details : Hira Baug, 1* floor Kasturba Chowk {C.PTank), Mumbai-400004
Whether listed company : Yes
Name, Address and Contact of Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any: : | Linkntime India Pvt. Ltd
€101, 247 Park, L.B.S.Marg, Vikhroli West, Mumbai - 400083
TelephoneNo.022-49186000
FaxN0.022-49186060
E-mail; rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in

Il PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
Manufacture of Chemical Intermediates, Heavy Organic Chemicals &Performance Chemicals

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company

Sk No. Name and NIC Code of % to total
Description of the Product/ turnover of the
main products/ service company
services
1 META AMINO PHENOL 3009 69.60%
2. SND 27 (0DB-2) 2023 24.66%
111, PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
Sr. | Name and address of the CIN/ GLN Holding / subsidiary / % of shares | Applicable
No. | Company associate held section
1 Manekchand Panachand Trading .
Investment Co. P, Ltd. U67120MH1985PTC037397 Holding Company 65% 2(46)
7)
2. Anuchem BV.B.A., Belgium Not Applicable Foreign Subsidiary 100% 28
3. Spidigo Net Private Limited U641006)2016PTC086551 Subsidiary 100% 2(87)
4, tifestyle Networks Ltd. U72900MH2005PTC155530 Associate - 2(6)
5. Phthalo Colours & Chemicals (I} Ltd. U24110MH1991PTC063399 Associate - 2(6)
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I SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity):

. Category-wise Share Holding:

% Change
during
the year

Category of - No. of Shares held at the end of
Shareholders No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year the year

% of % of
Demat Physical Total Total Demat Physical Total Total
Shares Shares

A. Promoters
{1} Indian
a)Individual/HUF 11,98,654 2,28,638 14,28,166 18,73,380 2,750 18,76,130
b) Centra! Govt - - - - .
) State Govt(s) - - - . .
d) Bodies Corp. 1,19,21,222 - 1,19,21,222 1,19,21,222 - 1,19,21,222
e} Banks / FI - . - N N n

f) Any other - . - - - -
Sub-total(A)(1}: 1,31,20,750 2,28,638 1,33,49,388 1,37,86,756 2,750 1,37,89,506
(2} Foreign
a} NRIs - Individuals . - - . . . .
b) Other ~ - - - - . - -
Individuals
c) Badies Corp. - - - -
d} Banks / FI - . - - - - B
e) Any other - . - - -
Sub-total (A}{2): - - - - . . N
Totat shareholding
of Promoter (A) = 1,31,19,876 2,28,638 1,33,48,514 1,37,86,756 2,750 1,37,89,506
(A)1)+AN2)
B. Public
Shareholding
(1} Institutions
a) Mutual Funds 720 400 1,120 720 400 1,120
b} Banks / FI 924 318 1242 22,520 318 22,838
¢} Central Govt - - - - -
d) State Govt(s) - - - - - -

e)Venture Capital
Funds

flinsurance - - - - B .
Companies
g) Foreign Portfolio . A 11,660
Investor
h)Foreign Venture - - B - - .
Capital Funds
i) Others {specify} - - -
Sub-total (B)(1): 1,644 718 2,362 34,900 718 35,618

- 11,660

(2)}Non-Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.
i) Indian .
i) Overseas h - -
b} Individuals

i) Individual
sharecholders
holding nominal
share capital up to
Rs. 1 takh

24,44,358 4,16,742 28,61,100 25,22,593 3,72,628 28,95,221

ii) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal 15,26,298 85,500 16,11,798 13,57,533 0 13,57,533
share capital in
excess of Rs. 1 lakh
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NBFC registered
with R8I . : - 20 0 20
c) Others
(specify)
Independent
Relatives Of 49,926 4,826 54,752 - . .
Director
Hindu Undivided
Family 1,31,122 0 1,31,122 96,690 [+] 96,680
Non Resident
Indians (Re pat) 1,12,210 10,988 1,331,122 84,235 2,588 86,823
Non Resident
Indians (Non-Re 12,012 0 12,012 21,910 0 21,910
pat)
Clearing Members
1,02,990 0 1,02,950 20,772 0 20,772
Independent . - -
Director 19,592 16,004 35,596
Bodies Corporate
3,43,642 2,338 3,45,980 3,23,867 2,338 3,26,205
Sub-total{B){2): 47,842,150 5,36,398 52,78,548 44,27,620 3,77,554 48,05,174
Total Public
Shareholding 47,43,794 5,37,116 52,80,910 44,62,520 3,78,272 48,40,792
(B)=(B){1}+({B)2)
C. Shares held
byCustodian - - - - - .
forGDRs & ADRs
Grand Total 17864588 | 785756 | 18630,208 18249276 | 381022 | 178638298
{A+B+C}
ii. SHAREHOLDING OF PROMOTERS:
S Shareholder's . i Shareholding at the end of the
No. Name Shareholding at the beginning of the year Year
% of Shares % change
% of total %P?f:ha;s % of total Pledged / in share
No. of Shares Shares of the ecge No. of Shares Shares of the | encumbered holding
encumbered to .
Company total shares Company to total during
0 shares the year
Manekchand
1. PanachandTrading
nvestmentCo.FUtd. 1,19,21,222 50.78 119.21,222 . .
2 Asit D, Javeri - -
7,77.518 0.00 9,56,180
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Sl Shareholder’s L Shareholding at the end of the
No. Name Shareholding at the beginning of the year Vear
% of Shares % change
% of total %p?J:h:gis % of total Pledged / in share
No. of Shares Shares of the 8 No. of Shares Shares of the | encumbered holding
encumbered to
Company Company to total during
total shares
shares the year
3. Molina D. Javeri 159,322 0.00 1,59,322 - -
. Abhi: y d - -
4 bhishek A. Javeri 3,02,838 0.00 5,62,168
5. Sadhana Rajiv Jain 58,380 . -
58,380 0.00
. h. i . i - -
6 Chandrika D. Javeri 58,380 0.00 58,380
7. . i . -
Seema A. Javeri 36,656 0.00 36,654
8. Anuradha A. Javeri 34,200 0.00 37,200 - -
TOTAL 1,33,48,514 59.78 137,89,506 ) )
iii. CHANGE IN PROMOTERS' SHAREHOLDING:
Sl Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the year
No.
For each of the Directors and KMP No. of shares % of total shares of No. of shares % of total shares
the Company of
the Company
1. Manekchand Panachand Trading Investment Co Pvt. Ltd
At the beginning of the year 11921222 | [ 12222 |
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Shareholding during the year No Change
At the End of the year 1,19,21,222 | | 1,19,21,222 |
2. Shri. Asit D. Javeri
At the beginning of the year 7,77.518 777,518
Purchase
01* June, 2018 66,000 8,43,518
Purchase
08" June, 2018 86,524 9,30,042
Purchase
15® fune, 2018 23,988 9,54,030
Purchase
22° june, 2018 2,150 9,56,180
At the End of the year 9,56,180 9,56,180
3. Smt. Molinadevi Dhankumar Javeri
At the beginning of the year 1,59,322 ] | 1,58,322 |
Date wise [ncrease / Decrease in Shareholding during the year
No Change
At the End of the year 1,59,322 1,59,322
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SL Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the year
Na.
For each of the Directors and KMP No. of shares % of total shares of No. of shares % of total shares
the Company of
the Company
4, Shri. Abhishek A Javeri
At the beginning of the year 3,02,838 3,02,838
Purchase 3,73,756
01" June, 2018 70,918
Purchase 4,74,550
08" June, 2018 1,00,794
Purchase 5,07,020
15" June, 2018 32,470
Purchase 5,62,168
22" june, 2018 55,148
At the End of the year 5,62,168 5,62,168
S. Smt. Chandrika Dhankumar Javeri
At the beginning of the year 58,380 I I 58,380 ]
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Shareholding during the year
No Change
At the End of the year 58,380 58,380
6. Smt. Sadhana Rajiv Jain
At the beginning of the year 58,380 58,380
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Shareholding during the year No Change
At the End of the year 58,380 58,380
7. Smt. Seema Asit Javeri
At the beginning of the year 36,654 36,654
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Shareholding during the year
No Change
At the End of the year 36,654 36,654
8. Smt. Anuradha A Javeri
At the beginning of the year 34,200 34,200
Purchase 3,000 37,200
01" june, 2018
At the End of the year 37,200 37,200
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iv. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF TOP TEN SHAREHOLDERS (OTHER THAN DIRECTORS, PROMOTERS AND

HOLDERS OF GDRS AND ADRS):

Sl Shareholding at the beginni C fative Shareholding during the year
No. of the year
For each of the Top 10 Shareholders No. of shares % of total shares No. of shares % of total shares
of the Company of
the Company
1. Veena Jagwani
At the beginning of the year 2,67,546 2,67,546
Sale (160,000) 1,05,746
08" July, 2018
Purchase 1,60,000 2,67,546
20" Juty, 2018
At the End of the year 2,67,546 2,67,546
2. vinod Kumar Ohri
At the beginning of the year
2,12,592 2,12,592
Date wise Increase / Decrea se in Shareholding during the
year No Change
At the End of the year
2,12,592 2,12,592
3. Nanavati Sons Pvt Ltd
At the beginning of the year 1,80,000 1,80,000
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Shareholding during the
year No Change
At the End of the year 1,80,000 1,80,000
a. Mohak Amit Mehta
At the beginning of the year
Nil Nil
Purchase
01" February 2019
v 69,500 69,500
Purchase
15" February 2019 500 69.500
At the End of the year
69,500 69,500
5. Ketan Chhotalal Sheth
At the beginning of the year
1,28,498 1,28,498
Sale
13" April, 2018 {10,000} 1.18,248
Sale
20" April, 2018
{6,000) 1,312,248
Sale
27" Aprit, 2018 {20,000} 92,248
Purchase
20" july, 2018
hd 64,438 156,746
Sale
06" July, 2018 (15,000 141,746
Sale
26" October, 2018
{64,498) 77,248
At the End of the year
77,248 77,248
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st Shareholding at the beginni Cumulative Shareholding during the year
No. of the year
For each of the Top 10 Shareholders No. of shares % of total shares No. of shares % of total shares
of the Company of
the Company
6 Amit M Mehta
At the beginning of the year
84,372 84,372
At the End of the year
84,372 84,372
7 Harsh Amit Mehta
At the beginning of the year
ginning y 66,000 66,000
Purchase
11" May, 2018 1,000 67.000
Purchase
07" September, 2018 454 67,454
Purchase 67.908
08 February 2019 454 f
Purchase
15" February 2019 500 68,408
At the End of the year 68,408 68,408
8 Sunilkumar Prakashchand Mehra
At the beginning of the year
Nil Nil
Purchase
01%fFebruary, 2019 67,742 67,742
Purchase
08™ March, 2019 14 67,756
Purchase
15" March, 2013 5 67,781
At the End of the year
67,781 67,781
9 B Ramachandra Kamath
At the beginning of the year Nil it
Purchase 48,800 48,800
01% February, 2019
At the End of the year 48,800 48,800
10.
Nitin Rameshchandra Jani
At the beginning of the year 54,784 I 54,784
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Shareholding during the No change
year
At the Eng of the year 54,784 I 54,784
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v. SHAREHOLDING OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

sl holding at the beginnil Cumulative Shareholding during the year
No. of the year
For each of the Directors and KMP No. of shares % of total shares of | No. of shares % of total shares
the Company of
the Company
1 Shri. Asit D. Javeri
At the beginning of the year 7,717,518 7,771,518
Purchase
01" June, 2018 66,000 8,43,518
Purchase
08" June, 2018 86,524 9,30,042
Purchase
15" June, 2018 23,988 9,54,030
Purchase
22™ june, 2018 2,150 9,56,180
At the End of the year
9,56,180 9,56,180
2, Shri. Abhishek A Javeri
At the beginning of the year 3,02,838 3,02,838
Purchase 3,73,756
01" June, 2018 70,918
Purchase 4,74,550
08" June, 2018 100754
Purchase 5,07,020
15" lune, 2018 32470
Purchase 5,62,168
22" June, 2018 55,148
At the End of the year 5,62,168 5,62,168
3. Smt. Seema Asit Javeri
At the beginning of the year 16,654 I 36,654 |
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Share halding during the
year specifying the reasons for increase / decrease {e.g. No Change
allotment / transfer / bonus / sweat equity etc)
At the End of the year
36,654 36,654
4 Nitin Rameshchandra Jani
At the beginning of the year
54,784 54,784
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Shareholding during the
year No change
At the End of the year 54,784 54,784
5. Arvind Raoji Doshi
At the beginning of the year
24,996 24,996
Date wise Increase / Dacrease in Shareholding during the No Change
year
At the End of the year
24,936 24,996
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Sl Shareholding at the beginning | Cumulative Sharehalding during the year
No. of the year
For each of the Directors and KMP No. of shares % of total sharesof | No. of shares % of total shares
the Company of
the Company
6. Pradeep Nanasaheb Desal
At the beginning of the year
200 200
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Shareholding during the
year
No Change
At the End of the year 200 200
7. Priyam Shantilal Jhaveri
At the beginning of the year
400 400
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Shareholding during the
year No Change
At the End of the year 400 400
8. -
Amit M Mehta
At the beginning of the year
84,372 84,372
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Share holding during the
vear No Change
At the End of the year
84,372 84,372

*Shri Amit M Mehta has been appointed as Additional Independent Director of the Company with effect from

30th April, 2019 and were regularized as Independent Director in 45th Annual General

Meeting of the Company held in year 2018 - 19

vi. INDEBTEDNESS:

Secured Loan Unsecured Loans Inter Corporate Total Indebtedness
excluding deposits Deposits
Indebted at the beginning of the fi ial year
Principal amount
Interest due but not paid 99149973 - 14715856 113865829
Interest accrued but not due - - - -
Total {i + I +if) 99149973 - 14715856 113865829
Changes in Indebtedness during the financial Year
Addition - - - -
{Reduction} (20989375) - (13583925} {34573300)
Net Change (20989375) - (13583925) (34573300)
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
i) Principal amount 77924280 - - 77924280
ii} Interest due but  not paid 236318 - - 236318
iii)interest accrued but not due - - - -
Total {i + i + ) 78160598 - 1131931 79292529
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vii. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:
A. REMUNERATION TO MANAGING DIRECTOR / WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR/ MANAGER:

Sr | Particulars of Remuneration Total Amount
No
Shri. Abhishek Javeri Shri. Asit D. Javeri Smt. Seema A. Javeri
Managing Director Executive Chairman Executive Director
Administration,
1.| Grosssalary
a. Salary as per provisions contained In section 3,19,02,654 3,19,47,654 1,97,96,327
17 (1) of the Income -tax Act,1961
b.  Value of perquisites ufs 17 {2) Income ~tax
Act,1961 1,28,75,000 1,29,06,500 86,80,400
¢.  Profits in lieu of salary under section 17 (3)
Income-tax Act, 1961 - -
2.{ Stock Option
3.] Sweat Equity it Nil Nil
Commission
4,| -as% of profit - -
- others, specify - {GuaranteeCommission) - . ee
5.| Others - -
Total {A} 4,47,77,654 4,48,54,154 2,84,76,727
B. REMUNERATION TO OTHER DIRECTORS:
Sr. | Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total Amount
No.
1. Independent Directars Arvind Doshi Priyam Amit Pradeep
Jhaveri Mehta Desai
o | Fee for attending board / committee meetings 1,27,000 1,27,000 60,000 1,11,000 4,25,000
» | Commission - . - . -
* | Others, please specify - - . - -
Total (1) 1,27,000 1,27,000 60,000 1,11,000 4,25,000
2. Other Non - Executive Directors . - - - -
» | Fee for attending board / committee meetings - . - M -
» | Commission - - - - -
« | Others, please specify - . -
Total {2} - - - . .
Total (B)={1+2) 1,27,000 1,27,000 60,000 1,11,000 4,25,000
Overall Ceiling as per the Act Ceiling as per the Act Rs. 1 Lakh per meeting attended per Director
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C. REMUNERATION TO KMP OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

Sl Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
No.
CEO Company CFO Total
Secretary
Nitin R. Jani Abhishek Javeri
1 Gross salary
{a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the - 85,69,000 3,19,02,654 4,04,71,654
Income-tax Act, 1961
{b) Value of perquisites u/s 17{2) Income-tax Act, 1961 - - 1,28,75,000 1,28,75,000

(c) Profits in liev of salary under section 17(3) Income tax Act, - - - -
1961
2 Stock Option - . - -
3 Sweat Equity - - -
4 Commission - - - -

- as % of profit - - - -

- athers, specify - - B -
5 Others, please specify

Total - 85,69,00 4,47,77,654 5,33,46,654

viil, PENALTIES /PUNISHMENT /COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

Type Section of Brief Details ofPena Ity | Authority Appeal made, if any
the Description /Punishment/Compounding | [RD /NCLT/ {give Details)
Companies fees imposed COURT]
Act
A. COMPANY
Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Compounding NIL NIL NiL NIL NIL
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty NIL NIL NIL NiL NIL
Punishment NIL NIL NiL NIL NiL
Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty NIL NIt NIL NIL NIL
Punishment NIL NIL NIE NiL NiL
Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

For and On Behalf of the Board of Directors
Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited

ASIT D. JAVERI

EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN

DIN: 00268114

Address: Ratnagar Palace, 37 Chowpatty Seaface, Mumbai 400007
Place: Mumbai

Date: 08th August, 2019
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TED

ANNEXURE - IX

Disclosure under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of Companies

{Appointment & Remuneration) Rules, 2014

A. The particulars of employees, who were in receipt of remuneration not less than Rs. 60 lacs for the Financial Year ended on
31stMarch, 2019 are given below:

Name of the Employee Mr. Asit D. Javeri
Designation of Employee Executive Chairman
Remuneration received ¥ 4,48,54,154

Nature of employment Contractual

Date of Commencement of Employment 22-01-1985
Qualification of the Employee B. Sc. (Hon)
Experience of the Employee 34 years

Age of the Employee 63 years

Last Employment Bec Chemical Pvt. Ltd.

Mr. Asit D. Javeriisrelated to Mrs. Seema A. Javeri and Mr. Abhishek A. Javeri, Director of the Company

B. Disclosure under Section 197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013read with Rule 5 of Companies (Appointment &

Remuneration) Rules, 2014.

I. The percentage increase in remuneration of the Executive Directors, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary during
the financial year 2018-19, the ratio of remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the
Company for the financial year and the comparison of remuneration of each Key Managerial personnel (KMP) against the
performance of the Companyisasunder:

Sr. No. Name Designation Remuneration % increase Ratio of
for FY. in the remuneration
2018 -19 (in Rs) remuneration of Director
for financial to median
year 2018-19 remuneration
of employees
1.  AsitD. Javeri *Executive 4,48,54,154 109.59% 79.74
Chairman
2. Seema A. laveri Wholetime 2,84,76,727 970.07% 62.95
Director
3.  Abhishek A. Javeri Managing 4,47,77,654 291,99% 79.45
Director
& Chief
Financial
Officer
4,  Nitin R. Jani Company 85,69,000 41.53% 32.69
Secretary

Comparison

of the
remuneration
against the
performance

of the company

243,1855 %
Increase in
EBIDTA

of Company

II. The median remuneration of employees during the financial year was Rs. 262129
1li. There were 232 permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on 31stMarch, 2019.
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IV. Inthefinancial year there was anincrease of 12.04 % inthe median remuneration.

V. Average increase made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the financial year 2018-19 was
61.01 % and average in- in the managerial remuneration w.r.t the managerial personnel for the financial year 2018-19 was

146.12%.

VI. Itisherebyaffirmed that the remuneration is paid as per the remuneration policy of the company.

VII. List of top 10 employees in terms of remuneration drawn.

Sr. No.| Name of Designation Remune- | Dateof [Ageof Last Qualification
the Employee ration commen- [ employee| employ-
cement ment
of held by
employ- such
ment employee
1 R.M Gandhi DGM(Accounts) 12,00,000 | 14.08.1977 60 1st Employment] B. Com
2 G.K Kutty DGM({Prodn) 12,00,000 { 21.03.1979 65 1st Employment{ B.Sc (Chem)
3 V.Ramakrishnan | DGM(Admn) 12,00,000 | 22.06.1987 65 RDC Muscut S.S.LC
4 M.M. Bhate DGM(Project) 12,00,000 | 01.11.1993 60 1BI Chemature D.Mech
Pvt. Ltd {Draftsman)
5 Pranav S. Shah | CEO(SBU) 39,64,497 | 01.01.2018 50 E Info chips Ltd. |  B.E.M.S(Com})
6 S.A Salian DGM(R&D) 8,76,000 | 27.08.1984 59 Jayant Oil Mill B.A.
7 V.N Bedekar Manager (Admn) 7,20,000 01.02.1987 53 Western India B.A.
Ent. Ltd.
8 R.K. Pradhan DGM{R&D) 8,76,000 08.11.1993 54 1stEmployment| B.Sc.
9 A.R Prabhu Manager{A&F) 11,40,000 | 08.11.1993 59 Metro Vidyut B.A.
10 Vilas B. Pawar Manager (Account) | 11,40,000 | 06.08.2009 56 Everest B. Com
Developers
11 Bharat M. Shelar | Manager (Accounts) | 11,40,000 | 15.05.2008 41 Schandon B. Com
Fashion Pvt Ltd.

None of the Employee is relatives of Directors or Manager or KMP. All Employees are Permanent.

Forand On Behalf of the Board of Directors
Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited

ASITD.JAVERI

EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN

DIN: 00268114

Address: Ratnagar Palace 37 ChowpattySeaface
Mumbai 400007

Place: Mumbai

Date:08th August, 2019
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Annexure - X

Disclosure in the Directors' Report as per SEBI Guidelines:
a. Details pertaining to ESOS Scheme:

$r. No Particulars Till the year ended March 31, 2019

1 Adescription of each ESOS that existed at any time during the year, including the general terms and conditions of
each ESOS, including:

a. Dateofshareholders'approval 22nd May, 2017

b. Totalnumber of options approved under ESOS Maximum option to be granted under
scheme is 5,00,000 fully paid up Equity
Shares of Rs. 10/-each

¢. Vestingrequirements Varying from 1 (One) Year To 5 (Five) Years
from the date of grant of options.

d. Exercise priceor pricing formula Ali options would be granted at such price
as determined by the Nomination and
Remuneration Commiittee.

e. Maximumterm of options granted 3 (Three) months of vesting as per the
scheme
f. Source of shares (primary, secondary or Primary

combination)

g. Variationintermsof options

b. Details pertaining to options:

Sr. No Particulars Details
1. Number of options outstanding at the beginning of the period 5,00,000
2. Number of options granted during the year 2,00,000
3. Number of options forfeited / lapsed during the year Nil
4. Number of options vested during the year Nil
5. Number of options exercised during the year Nil
6. Number of shares arising as a result of exercise of options Nil
7. Money realized by exercise of options (INR), if scheme is implemented Nil

directly by the company
8. Loan repaid by the Trust during the year from exercise price received NA
9, Number of options outstanding at the end of the year 3,00,000
10. Number of options exercisable at the end of the year Nil
11. A description of the method and significant assumptions used during the year As per ESOS Scheme.
to estimate the fair value of options
3. Expected life of options S Years
b. Closing market price of share on date of option grant 682.86
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c. Details pertaining to Employees:

1} Senior Managerial Personnel;

Sr.No | Name of Number 1 year from 2 year from 3 year from
Employee of Grant of Option Grant of Option Grant of Option
and options
Designation granted

1. V Ramkrishna 25,000 Exercise | Option Exercise | Option Exercise | Option
Price Quantity | Price Quantity Price Quantity
2. V) Modi 25,000 1,000 5,000 1,500 10,000 2,000 10,000
3. M MBhate 25,000 1,000 5,000 1,500 10,000 2,000 10,000
4, S A Salian 25,000 1,000 5,000 1,500 10,000 2,000 10,000
5. A Prabhu 25,000 1,000 5,000 1,500 10,000 2,000 10,000
6. V B Pawar 25,000 1,000 5,000 1,500 10,000 2,000 10,000
7. Bharat M Shelar 25,000 1,000 5,000 1,500 10,000 2,000 10,000
8. JyotsnaParab 25,000 1,000 5,000 1,500 10,000 2,000 10,000

Il} Anyother employee who receives a grantinany one year of option amounting to 5% or more of option granted during that
year:

Sr. No Name of Employee Designation Number of options granted Exercise Price

None

NI} Identified employees who were granted option, during any one year, equal to or exceeding 1% of the issued capital
(excluding outstanding warrants and conversions) of the company at the time of grant.

Sr.No | Name of Employee Designation Number of options granted Exercise Price

None
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FIVE YEAR HIGHLIGHTS {Rs. In Lakh}
2018-19 2017-18 2016-17 2015-16 2014-15
RESOURCES
Capital 931.51 931.51 920.08 1880.08J 1880.08
Reserve 9544.81 3673.55 159.18' {1156.73) (672.31)
Net Worth 10476.32 4605.06| 1079.26 723.35* 1207.77
State Govt.Sales Tax Incentives 0 0) 6.54 12.48 14.90,
Other Borrowings 716.42 1490.74 3551.68‘ 3365.94 2708.54
TOTAL 11192.74 6095.80 4637.48' 4101.77 3931.21
UTILISATION OF RESOURCES
Fixed Assets 14432.11 12458.20] 11871.GGJ 10921.87| 10308.81;
Less:Depreciation 7578.83 7462.98} 7303.23| 7111.02] 6910.63
Net Fixed Assets 6853.28 4995.22 4568.43 3810.85 3998.18
Investments 527.95 7.78) 7.71] 7.71 8.80
Net Current Assets 3811.51 1092.8 61.34 283.21 (75.77)
TOTAL 11192,74 6095.80 4637.48F 4101.77 3931.21
Revenue from cperations:-
Sales of Products / Services 25976.52] 10789.92 5745.49 3450.05 4779.86)
other operative revenue 739.63 302.51 155.04 57.60) 25.17
Other income 124.13| 22.33] 48.10 16.21 35.76
TOTAL REVENUE 26840.28' 11114.76| 5948.63F 3523.86 4840.79)
EXPENDITURE:-
Cost of Materials consumed / Purchase of Stock in Trade 9269.41 4191.44 3352.02] 1902.10 3232.90
Changes in inventories of finished
goods,work in progress and stock
in trade {2123.46) (147.12) (452.30)i (48.94) 151.70)
Employee Benefit cost 3027.76 974.87] 776.3 568.13] 544.17,
Financial cost 1187.00 510.29 625.89) 507.17] 462.66
Depreciation 284.77, 188.16 192.21 200.38 206.83
Other expenses 4565.03 2569.34 1360.74 879.44 1231.06
TOTAL EXPENDITURE 16210.51 8286.98 5854,86] 4008.28 5829.32
Profit floss before Tax & Exceptional ltems 10629.77 2827.78 93.77 (484.42) {988.53}
Add : Profit on Sale of Assets / Investment / Exceptional
Items 0, Y 0 0.00] 1305.16
Less : Tax Expenses 3098.75 (309.19) 0 0.00) (102.29)
Profit /{Loss) After Tax 7531.02 3136.97 93.77] (484.42) 418.92
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Members Of
Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited
Report onthe Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited (“the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on
that date, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred
to as “the standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act
read with the Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, {(“Ind AS”) and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, the profit and total
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified
under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethicsissued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together
with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the

standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.
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Sr. No. Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response
1 Accuracy of recogni tion, measurement, Our audit approach is combination of test of
presentation and disclosures of revenues internal controls and substantive  procedures
and other related balances in view of on adoption of ind AS 115, Revenue from
adoption of Ind AS 115 “Revenue from contracts with Customers (‘Ind AS 115°), the
Contracts with Customers” (new revenue new standard on revenue recognition,
accounting standard) include the following —
The application of the new revenue « Evaluated the design and implementation
accounting standard involves certain key of the processes and internal controls relating
judgements relating to identification of to implementation of the new revenue
distinct performance obligations, recognition standard
determination of transaction price of the
identified performance obligations, the « Evaluated the detailed analysis performed
appropriateness of the basis used to measure | by management across revenue streams by
revenue recognised over a period. selecting samples for the existing contracts
Additionally, new revenue accounting with customers and verified the
standard contains disclosures which appropriateness of identification of distinct
involves collation of information in respect performance obligations, determination of
of disaggregated revenue and periods over the transaction price, allocation of the
which the remaining performance transaction price to identified performance
obligations will be satisfied subsequent to obligations and the appropriateness of the
the balance sheet date. revenue recognition methodology.
« Evaluated the appropriateness of the
accounting policy and disclosures provided
Refer Note 20 to the Standalone Financial under the new revenue standard and
Statements. assessed the completeness and mathematical
accuracy of the relevant disclosures.
2 Evaluation of uncertain tax positions Principal Audit Procedures

The Company has material uncertain tax
positions including matters under dispute
which involves significant judgment to
determine the possible outcome of these
disputes.

Refer Note 31 to the Standalone Financial
Statements.

Obtained details of completed tax
assessments and demands for the year ended
March 31, 2019 from management. We
involved our internal tax team to review the
management’s underlying assumptions in
estimating the tax provision and the possible
outcome of the disputes. Our internal tax
team also considered legal precedence and
other rulings in evaluating management’s
position on these uncertain tax positions. The
internal tax team also additionally evaluated
whether any change was required to
management’s position on these
uncertainties in light of new amendments in
tax laws.
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Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures to
Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder's Information, but does not
include the standalone financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appearsto be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Actwith respect to the
preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind
AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud orerror.  In
preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
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skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, orthe override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financiai statements that, individually orin aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and
in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear onour independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most

significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disciosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from
our examination of those books.
¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in
Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.
d)In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2019 taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from being appointed as a directorinterms
of Section 164 (2} of the Act.
f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”, Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting.
g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements of
section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given tous, the remuneration paid by
the Company toits directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 oftheAct.
h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Reportin accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:
i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone
financial statements. Refer Note 30to the standalone Ind AS financial statements;
ii. The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses.
iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.
2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report} Order, 2016 {“the Order”)issued by the Central Governmentinterms
of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order.

For Chandrashekar lyer & Co

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number : 114260W

Chandrashekhar lyer

Partner

Membership Number : 47723
Mumbai, May 28, 2019.
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our report to
the Members of Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited (“the
Company”) as of March 31, 2013 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company

for the year ended on that date.
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal contro! over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company's policies, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.
Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note"} issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and
the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable toan
audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectivelyin all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding ofinternal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether dueto fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinion on the internai financial controls system over financial reporting ofthe Company.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of India.

For Chandrashekar iyer & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number : 114260W

Chandrashekar iyer
Partner

Membership Number : 47723

Mumbai , May 28, 2019

90




SADHANA NITRO CHEM LIMITED

ANNEXURE 'B' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our report to the

Members of Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited of even date)

i)

ii)

iii}

iv}

v)

vi)

a) The company has generally maintained proper records, showing full particulars including quantitative details
and situation of property, plantand equipment.

b} Property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the Management during the year based on a
phased programme of verifying all property , plant and equipment over three years, which in our opinion is
reasonable having regard to the size of the company and the nature of its Assets. The discrepancies noticed on
such verification were not material and have been properly dealt with in the books of account.

¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of
the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held inthe name of the Company.

The Management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals and no material

discrepancies were noticed on physical verification.

The Company has granted loan to a Company covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the
Companies Act, 2013(“the Act”).

a) Inouropinion, the rate of interest and other terms and condition on which the loan had been granted to the
company listed in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act was not , prima facie, prejudicial to
theinterest of the Company.

b) The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and repayments or
receipts of principal amounts and interest have been generally regular as per stipulations.

¢) Therearenooverdueamountsinrespectofthe loan granted to a company covered in the register maintained
under Section 183 of the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the

provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans and investments made. The Company has

not provided any guarantees / security.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the

Companies Act, 2013. We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to the

Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended prescribed by the Central Government under sub-

section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost

recards have been made and maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records

with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.
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vii}  According to the information and explanations givento us, in respect of statutory dues:
a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund,
Employees' State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, cess
and other material statutory dues applicable to it to the appropriate authorities.
b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance,
Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, cess and other material statutory
dues in arrears as at March 31, 2019 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable

exceptthefollowing:

Name of Statue

Nature of Dues

Period to which
the amount

Amount involved
®)

Employees
Provident Fund
and
Miscellaneous
Provisions Act,
1952

Interest on
delayed payment

FY March 2013 to
June 2018

21,33,270/ -

Income Tax Act,
1961

Tax Deducted At

Source

AY 2018 -19

2,07,939 / -

The Gujarat State
Tax on
Professions,
Traders, Callings
and

Employments Act,
1976

Profession Tax

FY 2017-18

16,480/ -

Maharashtra
Value Added Tax
Act

Maharashtra
Value Added Tax

FY2012-13

6,98,439/ -

¢) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income tax, sales-tax, service
tax, customs duty and cess which have not been deposited onaccount of any dispute except as given below:
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Name of Nature of Forum where Period to Amount Amount
Statue Dues dispute is which the involved (Rs) | Pending (Rs)
pending amount
relates
Income Tax Income Tax Commissioner AY :2014-15 | 55,180/ - 55,180/ -
Act of Income Tax
- Appeals,
Mumbai
Employees Demurrage of Employees FY March | 58,76,715/ - 58,76,715/ -
Provident Provident Provident 2013 to June
Fund and | Fund dues fund Appellate 2018
Miscellaneous Tribunal
Provisions Act
, 1952

viii)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in
the repayment of loans or borrowings to financial institutions, banks or government . The Company did not have

any borrowings during the year by way of debentures.

ix)  According to the information and explanations given to us , the Company has not raised any money by way of
public issue or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. The term loans raised by the

company have been applied for the purpose for which they were raised.

X) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company by its

officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

xi)  According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule Vto the Companies Act.

xii}  Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi company.

Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where
applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the standalone ind AS financial statements as

required by the applicable accounting standards.
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xiv) According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year.

xv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with
them. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

xvi) The Companyis not required to be registered under section 45-1A ofthe Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.

For Chandrashekar lyer & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number : 114260W

Chandrashekar lyer
Partner
Membership Number : 47723

Mumbai, May 28, 2019.
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Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019
Amount in
Particulars Note | AsatMarch 31,2019 As at March 31, 2018
A ASSETS
| Non-current assets
{a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 6697,84,576 3914,12,946
{b) Capital work-in-progress 3 155,43,597 1081,08,149
{c) Financial Assets
{i} lavestments 4A 7,72,549 7,78,072
(ii) Loans SA 8,31,619 856,73,593
{d) tncome Tax Asset (net) - 286,46,404
{e) Deferred Tax Asset {net) 7 - 309,19,391
{f}) Other non current assets 8A 283,98,503 469.96,625
Total Non-current assets 7153,30,844 6925,36,180
u Current assets
{a) inventories 9 3861,30,636 2126,90,717
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Current Investments 48 520,22,442 -
(i} Trade receivables 10 3402,23,559 { - 768,17,476
{iii)Cash and cash equivalents 11 874,47,701 705,86,334
{iv) Bank Balances other than (iii) above 12 28,01,925 81,13,425
(v) Loans 58 11,13,679 6,75,341
{vi)Other financial assets 6A 566,93,236 -
(c) Other current assets 88 1448,89,165 1026,19,942
Total Current Assets 10713,22,343 4715,03,235
TOTAL 17866,53,187 11640,39,415
B EQUITY AND LIABILTIES
I Equity
{a) Equity Share capital 13 931,51,490 931,51,490
{b) Other Equity 14 9544,80,690 3673,55.114
Total Equity 10476,32,180 4605,06,604
Liabilities
1 Non-current Habilities
{a) Financial Liabilities
{i} Borrowings 15A 283,04,127 654,30,727
{b} Provisions 17A 236,55,488 256,23,511
{c} Deffered Tax Liabilities 7 159,00,983 -
{d) Other non-curreat liabilities 19A - -
Total Non current liabilities 678,60,598 910,54,238
0§ Current liabilities
{a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 158 433,37,931 836,42,575
(it} Trade payables 19 2759,76,933 1352,41,287
{iii) Other financial liabilities 16 776,39,813 364,88,244
(b} Provisions 178 341,34,902 128,80,204
{c} Income Tax Liabilities (net} 1445,49,247 -
{d) Other current liabilities 18 955,21,583 3442,26,263
Total Current liabilities 6711,60,408 6124,78,573
TOTAL 17866,53,187 11640,39,415 |
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the dalone fi ial {Refer Notes 1- 37)
As per our report of even date attached
For Chandrashekar lyer & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number :114260W Asit D Javeri Arvind R Doshi
Executive Chairman Director
Chandrashekar lyer Abhishek A Javeri Priyam S Jhaveri
Partner Managing Director & CFO Director
Membership Number 147723
Smt. Seema A Javerl Pradecp N Desal
Executive Director Director
Administration
Mumbai, May 28, 2019 Nitin R Jani Amit M Mehta
Company Secretary Diractor
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Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited

Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended March 31, 2019

AmountinI
Particulars Note Year ended March { Year ended March 31,
31,2018 2018
{1) INCOME
[{]}] Revenue from operations 20 26716,14,908 11077,64,084
{n) Other Income 21 124,12,976 37,12,103
(v) Total Income (1 + 111} 26840,27,884 11114,76,187
v) EXPENSES
{a)  Cost of raw materials & packing materials consumed 22A 9269,41,268 4191,44,514
{b)  Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 228 {2123,46,220) (147,11,735)
{c}  Excise Duty 22C - 37,66,507
{d) Employee benefits expense 23 3027,75,779 974,86,992
{e) Finance costs 24 1187,00,160 510,29,391
{f} Depreciation and amortization expense
Depreciation expense 3 284,76,762 188,16,431
{g)  Other expenses 25 4565,03,325 2531,66,203
Total Expenses (atog) (V) 16210,51,074 8286,98,303
{vi} Profit before exceptional items and tax {IV - V) 10629,76,810 2827,77,884
{vn) Exceptional items - -
{vin) Profit Before Tax (VI - Vi) 10629,76,810 2827,77,884
[134] Tax Expense
{a} Currenttax 2614,04,840 480,45,200
{b)  Mat credit entitlement - {480,45,200)
{c} Deferred tax 484,70,045 {309,19,391}
Total Tax Expense {atoc) (IX) 3098,74,885 {309,19,391)
{X) Profit for the year (VI - [X) 7531,01,925 3136,97,275
X1 Other Comprehensive | J(Exp ) (net off tax)
(i) items that will not be re-classified subsequently to profit or loss
Re-measurement on defined benefit plans (27,28,437) (42,02,496)
Ch in Fai h
ange in a.xr v?lue of Current Investments through other 19,18,946 N
comprehensive income
{xn) Total Other Comprehensive Income (8,09,491) {42,02,496)
{xnn) Total Comprehensive Income (X + XII) 7522,92,434 3094,94,779
{X1v) Earnings per equity share (Rs.)
(1) Basic & Diluted [Face Value Rs 5 Per Share (PY Rs 10 Per Share})] 27 40.42 33.61

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the
As per our report of even date attached

Far Chandrashekar lyer & Co

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number :114260W

dalone financial

Chandrashekar lyer
Partner
Membership Number :47723

Mumbai, May 28, 2019

{Refer Notes 1- 37)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Asit D Javeri
Executive Chairman

Abhishek A Javerl
Managing Director & CFO

Smt. Seema A Javeri
Executive Director
Administration

Nitin R Jani
Company Secretary

Arvind R Doshi
Director

Priyam S Jhaveri
Director

Pradeep N Desai
Director

Amit M Mehta
Director
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Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited
Statement of Cash Flows {or the year ended March 31,2019
Amount In%
Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2019 For the year ended March 31, 2018
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 10629,76,810 2827,77,884
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 284,76,762 188,16,431
Share based compensation expense 97,06,989 -
Finance costs 1187,00,160 484,08,524
Interest received (32,88,708)| {12,93,479)
Unrealised Foreign Exchange {Gain}/Loss 14,50,749 12,99,475
Profit on Sale of Asset (11,38,559) -
1539,07.393 672,30,951
Operating profit / {loss) before working capital changes 12168,84,203 3500,08,835
Changes in working capital:
Inventories (1678,73,868) (744,91,619)
Trade receivables (2612,33,322)| 523,99,969
Loans {4,38,338) 130,66,802
Other Current Assets 464,24,899 (741,70,318)
Trade Payables 1407,35,646 (1199,17,472)
Current Liability (3765,47,424) 3069,28,208
Provisions 165,58.238 60,59,842
(6023,74,169) 1098,75,413
Cash generated from operations 6145,10,034 4598,84,248
3.Direct Taxes (Paid) {905,45.200) (232,28,158))
Net cash flow from / {used in) operating activities (A) 5239,64,834 4366,56,090
B. Cash flow from / (used In} investing activities
a.Purchase Of Property , plant and equipment {2071,97,223), {614,95,836),
b.Sale of Property , plant and equipment 16,59,218 .
c.Acquisition /Sate of (Net) (501,04,496) (6,522),
d.Loan given to wholly owned subsidiary - (834,79,092)
e.Interest received 6,97,4711 6.00,305
{2549.45.030) (1443.81.145)'
Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (B) (2549.45.030)' {1443,81,145)
C. Cash flow from / [used in} financing actlvities
a.Secured Barrowings -Net of Repayment (1,13,851) ({807,18,586)|
b.Preference shares redeemed {960,00,000) -
c.1ssue of equity share capital {including premium) - 50,23,177
d.Interest Paid {1187,60,140) {600,11,677)|
o.Dividend paid including dividend distribution tax {112,30,344)| -
(2261.04.335)'
Net cash flow from / {used in) financing activities (C} (2261.04,335)
Net increase / (decrease) in Cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 429,15,469 1565,67,860
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 16,59,615 {1549,08,245)
Cash acquired on amalgamation 6,66,670 -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 452,41,755 16,59,615
Cash and Cash as per above i of the
Cash and cash equivalent as per Note 11
- cash in hand 2,22,331 19,96,951
-Balances with Banks (on current accounts) 872,25,370 685,89,383
874,47,701 705,86,334
- Bank overdraft / cash credit (Note 158) 422,05.947 689,26,719
Balance as per statement of cash flows 452,41,754 16,59,615
Figures in brackets represent outflows
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Standatone financial statements. {Refer Notes 1- 37}
Notes :
1.The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian A dard {Ind AS 7) of cash flows.
2.Additon to property , plant and equipment include movements of capital work progress during the year.
In terms of our report attached
For Chandrashekar lyer & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number :114260W Asit D Joveri Arvind R Doshl
Executive Chairman Director
Chandrashekar lyer Abhishek A Javerl Priyam S Jhaveri
Partner Managing Director & CFO Director
Membarship Number 147723 Smt, Seema A Javerl Pradeep N Desal
Executive Director Director
Administration
Mumbai, May 28, 2019 Nitin R Jani Amit M Mehta
Company Secretary Director
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Audited Notes to Standalone financial statements for 31st March, 2019

1, CORPORATE INFORMATION The Company was in corporated on July 21,1973. The Company is engaged in Manufacturing of
chemical intermediates, heavy organic chemicals and performance chemicals and wireless network equipment and services . Ason 31
st March, 2019 Manekchand Panachand Trading Investment Company Pvt Ltd, holding company owned 63.99% of the company's
equity share capital. The Company's registered office is located at Mumbai, Maharashtra India and manufacturing facility is located at
Roha, Raigad District, Maharashtra, India. The company shares arelisted in Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE)

2.SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

2.01 Statement of Compliance

The standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notifies under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") and other
relevant provisions of the Act.

These standalone financial statements have been prepared for the Company as a going concern on the basis of relevant Ind AS that are
effective at the Company's annual report date, March 31, 2019. These standalone financial statements were authorized for issuance
by the Company's Board of Directors on May 28, 2019.

2,02 Basis of preparation and presentation

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments which are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally
based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. Fair value is the price which that would be
received or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

2,03 Use of estimate

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with there recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS requires the
management of the Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities,
disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income and
expense for the periods presented.

Estimates and under lying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimates are revised and future periods are affected. The management believes that the estimates used in
preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results could differ due to these estimates and differences
between actual results and estimates are recognized in the periods in which the results are known / materialize.

Key source of estimation of uncertainty at the date of the financial statements, which may cause a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities with in the next financial year, is in respect of impairment of investments, useful lives of property,
plant and equipment, valuation of deferred tax liabilities and provisions and contingent liabilities.

Impairment of investments
The Company reviews its carrying value of investments carried at cost annually, or more frequently when there is indication for
impairment. If the recoverable amount s less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is accounted for.

Useful lives of property, plantand equipment
The Company reviews the use ful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period. This reassessment may
result in change in depreciation expense in future periods.

Valuation of deferred tax assets
The Company reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period. The policy for the same has been
explained under Note 2.10.

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligationas a result of past events; itis probable that
an out flow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount can be reliably estimated.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money (if the impact of discounting is significant) and the risks specific to
the obligation. The increase in the provision due to unwinding of discount over passage of time is recognized as finance cost.
Provisions are reviewed at the each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If itis no longer probable thatan
outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the company from a contract are lower
than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The provision is measured at the present value of the
expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established, the company recognizes any impairment loss on
the assets associated with that contract.
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Adisclosure for a contingent liability is made where there s a possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of which
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
company or a present obligation that arises from the past events where it is either not probable that an out flow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount can not be made. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the
financial statements. A contingent asset s neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements.

Fairvalue measurements and valuation processes

Some of the company's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. The company has obtained
independent fair valuation for financial instruments wherever necessary to determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs
for fair value measurements. In some cases the fair value of financial instruments is done internally by the management of the
Company using market-observable inputs.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the company uses market - observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level
1 inputs are not available, the company engages third party qualified value stoper form the evaluation. The qualified external valuers
establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The external valuers report to the management of the
Company their findings for every reporting period to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the assets and liabilities.

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in determining the fair value of various assets and liabilities are disclosed
innoteno 29.

2,04 Revenue Recognition

I.Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised goods to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration which the
Company expects to receive in exchange for those goods.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control is transferred to the customer which is usually on dispatch /
delivery of goods based on contract with customers.

Revenue is measured on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume discounts, price concessions, incentives
and returns, if any, as specified in the contracts with customers. Revenue excludes taxes collected from customers on behalf of the
government. Accruals for discount / incentive and returns are estimated (using the most likely method) based on accumulated
experience and under lying schemes and arrangements with customers. Due to the short nature of credit period given to customers,
there is no financing componentin the contract.

The Company has adopted ind AS115 Revenue from Contract with Customers, with effect from Aprill, 2018. Ind AS115 establishes
principles for reporting information about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainity of revenue and cashflows arising from the
contracts with its customers and replaces Ind AS18 Revenue and Ind AS11 Construction Contracts.

The Company has adopted ind A5115 using cumulative effect method where by the effect of applying this standard is recognised at the
date of initial application (i.e., Aprill, 2018 ) Accordingly, the comparative information in the statement of profit and Loss is not
restated. The effect of the adoption of Ind AS 115 was insignificant.

Revenue (applicable upto March 31,2018)
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns,
rebates and other similar allowances.

I, Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the following
conditions are satisfied:

o the company has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

» the company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold;

s the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

» itis probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the company; and

* the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Revenue from sales and operation includes Excise Duty but excludes Sales Tax, Value Added Tax & GST
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ii. Sale of services
Revenue frgm Operations is recognised on accrual basis based on underlying subscription plan or agreements with the concerned
subscribers / parties.

Revenue from prepaid Internet Service plans, which are active at the end of accounting period, is recognised on time proportion basis.
Inother cases of Internet Service plans, entire revenue is recognised in the period of sale.

iii.Other Income

a. Dividend income from investments is recognised when the share holder's right to receive payment has been established which is
when the share holders approve the dividend. { provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and the
amount ofincome can be measured reliably}.

b. Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interestincome is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal out standing and at
the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

2.05 Leases ’
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.’ g

Operating Lease

Rentalincome from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased assetand recognisedona
straight-line basis over the lease term. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Finance Lease

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets of the Company at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if
lower , at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement of
financial position as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

2.06 Foreign Currency

The functional currency of the Company is Indian rupee. Income and expenses in foreign currencies are recorded at exchange rates
prevailing on the date of the transaction. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the exchange rate prevailing
on the balance sheet date and exchange gains and losses arising on settlement and restatement are recognised in the statement of
profitandloss.

2.07 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use. Interest income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowing spending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation. Capitalization of borrowing cost is suspended and charges to the statement of Profit and Loss during extended periods
when active development activity on the qualifying assets is interrupted. All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or lossin the
period in which they are incurred.

2.08 Governmentgrants

{1) Government grants in respect to manufacturing unites located in developing regions :The Company is entitled to various incentives
from government authorities in respect of manufacturing units located in developing regions. The Company accounts for its
entitlements an accrual basis on approval of the initial claim by the relevant authorities and there is reasonable assurance that the
grants will be received.

(i) Government grants in respect of additional Capital Expenditures : Government grants whose primary condition is that the
Company should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire capital assets is accounted for as deferred income. The grant is recognised a
income over the life of a depreciable asset by accounting deferred income in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic and
rational basis over the useful life of the asset.
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(iii) Export Incentives: Exportincentives undervarious schemesare accounted in the year of export.

2,09 Employee benefits :

(1) Defined Contribution Plan: Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes viz. Company's Provident Fund Scheme
and Superannuation Fund are recognised as an expense when the employees have rendered the service entitling them to the
contribution.

(2) Defined Benefit Plan: For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected
unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising
actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets {excluding interest),
is reflected immediately in the statement of financial position with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income inthe
period in which they occur.

Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and will not be reclassified
to profit or loss. Past service cost s recognised in profit or Joss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying
the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Defined benefit costs are categorised as
follows:

« service cost (inciuding current service cost, past service cost, aswell as gains and losses on curtailments and settlements);

s netinterest expense or income; and

° Remeasurement.

(1) Gratuity: The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. The plan
provides for a lumpsum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment of
an amount equivalent to 15 / 26 days salary payable for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of
service. The Company accounts for the liability for gratuity benefits payable in future based on an independent actuarial valuation. The
Company has taken a Group Gratuity cum Life Assurance Scheme with Life Insurance Corporation for future payment of gratuity to the
eligible employees.

{i)Compensated Absences: The Company provides for the encashment of compensated absences with pay subject to certain rules.
The employees are entitled to accumulate compensated absences subject to certain limits, for future encashment. Accumulated leave,
which is expected to be utilised with in the next twelve months, is treated as short-term employee benefit and the accumulated [eave
expected to be carried forward beyond twelve month is treated as long - term employee benefit which are provided based on the
number of days of un utilised compensated absence on the basis of anindependent actuarial valuation.

2.10 Taxation Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability during the
year. Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly inequity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively. Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current income tax The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as
reported in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income/statement of profit or loss because of items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductiblein otheryears and items that are never taxable or deductible.

The Company's current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Advance taxes and provisions for currentincome taxes are presented in the balance sheet after off-setting advance tax paid and income
tax provision arising in the same tax jurisdiction and where the relevant tax paying units intends to settle the asset and liability on a net
basis

Deferred income taxes Deferred income tax is recognised using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities
are recognised for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amount, except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of good will or an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred income tax asset are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised. The carrying
amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using substantively enacted tax rates expected toapply to taxable incomein the yearsin
which the temporary differences are expected to be received or settled.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority andthe
relevant entity intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities onanet basis.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT} paid in accordance with the tax laws in India, which is likely to give future
economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against future income tax liability. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as deferred tax
asset in the balance sheet when the asset can be measured reliably and it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with
the asset will be realised.

2.11 Property, Plantand Equipment

Property, plant and equipment held for use in production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation / amortization less accumulated impairment, if any. The cost of fixed assets comprises its purchase price
net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from the tax
authorities), any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use, and interest on borrowing
attributable to acquisition of qualifying fixed assets up to the date the assetis ready foritsintended use.

Capital work- in - progress for production, supply of administrative purposes is carried at cost less accumulated impairment loss, if any,
until construction and installation are complete and the asset is ready forits intended use.

Depreciation is recognized {other than on capital work - in - progress) on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of assetsin
respect of property plant & equipment & computers acquired after 1st April 2006. Property plant & equipment including non factory
building furniture fixtures & vehicles acquired prior to 1st April 2006 are depreciated under WDV Method at the rates prescribed under
schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on assets acquired / purchased, sold / discarded during the year is provided on a pro-
rata basis from the date of each addition till the date of sale/retirement.

The economic useful lives of assets is assessed based ona technical evaluation, taking into account the nature of assets, the estimated
usage of assets, the operating conditions of the assets, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, maintenance
history, etc. The estimated use ful life is reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with effect of any change in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Where the cost of part of the asset is significant to the totai cost ofthe assets and the useful life of that part s different from the useful of
the remaining asset, useful life of that significant partis determined separately. Depreciation of such significant part, if any, is based on
the useful life of that part. Freehold land is not depreciated.

Aitem of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economicbenefits are expected toarise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment,
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, is recognized in the Statement of Profit
orlLoss.

2.12 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortization. Amortization is
recognized on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives of 3 years, which reflects the patternin which the asset's economic
benefits are consumed. The estimated useful life, the amortization method and the amortization period are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with effect of any changein estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Anintangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses
arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset, and are recognised in the profit or loss when the asset isderecognised.

2,13 Impairment

Financial assets {other than at fairvalue}

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. Ind AS 109
requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The Company recognises life time expected losses for all
contract assets and / or all trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction.

For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12 month expected credit losses or atan

amount equal to the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition.
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2,14 Inventories .

Inventories of raw materials, stock-in-trade, stores & spares, Fuel, packing material, work in progress, stock in trade and finished goods
are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value after providing for obsolescence and other losses, where considered necessary.
Stock of scrap and spent acid is valued at net realizable value. Cost comprises all cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Stores and spares are valued on weighted average cost basis
and all others are valued on a FIFO basis.

2.15 Financialinstruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability.

Cash and cash equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash that are
subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and having original maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase, to be
cash equivalents, Cash and cash equivalents consist of balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage

Financial assets atamortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is to
hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business
whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are immediately recognised in profit or loss.

Investment in subsidiaries
Investment in subsidiaries are measured at cost as per Ind AS 27 - Separate Financial Statements.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial guarantee contracts:

A Financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debt or fails to make payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instruments. Financial
guarantee contracts issued by a holding company are initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated as at FVTPL, are
subsequently measured at the higher of :

« The amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of INDAS 109; and

« The amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance with the
principles of INDAS 18,

Equityinstruments
An equity instrument is a contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments recognised by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received net off directissue cost.

Reclassification of Financial Assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no
re-classification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt
instruments, are classification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the
business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company's senior management determines change in the business model as a result

104



SADHANA NITRO CHEM LIMITED

of external or internal changes which are significant to the company’s operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A
change in the business model occurs when a company either begins or ceases to performing activity that is significant to its operations.
If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies there classification prospectively from there classification date which is the first
day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously
recognized gains, losses (including impairment gains and losses) orinterest.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is currently enforceable
legal right to offset there cognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

2.16 Earnings Per Share {EPS)

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per sharein accordance with Ind AS33 on Earnings per share. Basic earnings per share
is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the period by the weighted average number of equity shares out standing during the
period. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the period by the weighted average number of
equity shares out standing during the period as adjusted for the effects of all diluted potential equity shares except where the results
are anti-dilutive.

2.17 Cash flow statement
The Cash Flow Statement is prepared by the indirect method set out in ind AS7 on Cash Flow Statements and presents cash flows by
operating, investing and financing activities of the Company.

2.18 Current / Non-Current Classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current classification. An asset is classified as
current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

- Itis expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

-1tis held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Itis expected to be realized within 12 months after the date of reporting period, or

- Cash and cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12 months after reporting
period.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

Aliability is current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

- Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

- Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

-Itis due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period, or

“There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period Current
liabilities include the current portion of long term financial liabilities.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets and their realization in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has
identified 12months as its operating cycle

2.19 Share Capital Ordinary Shares
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs, if any, directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are recognized asa
deduction from other equity, net of any tax effects.

2.20 Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received from the sale of an asset or paid to transfer ali ability inan orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell an
asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

-inthe principle market for the asset or liability

-in the absence of principle market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principle or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the assetor
liability, assuming that market participants actin their economicbest interest.

The fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by
using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best
use.
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The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservableinputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest levelinput that is significant tothe fair value measurement asawhole:

- Level 1 - Quoted {Unadjusted) Market prices in active markets for incidental assets or liabilities

- Level 2 ~Valuation techniques for which the lowest Jevel input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable

. Level 3 - Valuation Techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is un observable For
assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers
that have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as awhole) attheend of each reporting period.

Determination of Fair Value

1) Financial Assets - Debt Instruments at amortized cost

After initial measurement the financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR)
method. Amortized costis calculated by taking into accountany discount or premium on acquisition and fees or cost thatare an integral
partoftheEIR.

2) Financial Assets - Debt Instruments at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOC!)
Measured initiafly as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the Other Comprehensive
Income {OCl). On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OClis reclassified from the equity to P&L.

3) Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)
FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at
amortized cost or as FVTOC], is classified as at FVTPL.

4) Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit & loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedginginstrumentsinan effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs. The Companies financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including
bank overdrafts and derivative financialinstruments.

Subsequent Measurement

Fair value through Profit & Loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit &loss include financia!l liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit orloss. All changes in fair value of such liabilities are recognised in staterent of profit or
loss.

Loans and Borrowings

After initial recognition, interest - bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method.
Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are de recognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.
The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profitand loss.

2.21Dbividend
Dividend on share is recorded as liability on the date of approval by the shareholders.

2.22 Investments
Long Term Investments are carried at cost. Provision for diminution is made to recognize the decline, other than temporaryin the value
of thesa investments. Currentinvestments are carried at lower of the cost and fair value.

2,23 Segment Reporting

The Company identifies primary segments based on the dominant source, nature of risks and returns and the internal organisation and
management structure. The operating segments are the segments for which separate financial information is available and for which
operating profit / loss amounts are evaluated regularly by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) in deciding how to allocate
resources and in assessing performance.
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‘The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies of the Company. Segment revenue,
segment expenses, segment assets and segment liabilities have been identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the
operating activities of the segment. Inter-segment revenue is accounted on the basis of transactions which are primarily, determined
based on market / fair value factors. Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which relate to the Company as a whole and are not
allocable to segments on reasonable basis have been included under "unallocated revenue / expenses [ assets [ liabilities”.

2.24 Recent accounting pronouncement Ind AS 116 Leases:

On 30 March 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 116, Leases. Ind AS 116 will replace the existing leases Standard,
IndAS17 Leases, and related Interpretations. The Standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases for both parties to a contract i.e., the lessee and the lessor. Ind AS 116 introduces a single lessee accounting model
and requires a lessee to recognize assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than twelve months, unless the underlying
asset is of low value. Currently, operating lease expenses are charged to the statement of profit & loss. The Standard also contains
enhanced disclosure requirements for lessees. Ind AS 116 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirementsin IndAS17.

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 116 is annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019. The standard permits two possible
methods of transition:

o Full retrospective — Retrospectively to each prior period presented applying Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimatesand Errors

« Modified retrospective — Retrospectively, with the cumulative effect of initially applying the Standard recognized at the date of initial
application.

Under modified retrospective approach, the lessee records the lease liability as the present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and the right of use asset either as:

slts carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the commencement date, but discounted at lessee's incremental
borrowing rate at the date of initial application or

«An amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments related to that lease
recognized under Ind AS 17 immediately before the date of initial application. Certain practical expedients are available under both the
methods. On completion of evaluation of the effect of adoption of Ind AS 116, the Company is proposing to use the' Modified
Retrospective Approach’ for transitioning to Ind AS 116, and take the cumulative adjustment to retained earnings, on the date of initial
application (April1,2019). Accordingly, comparatives for the year ended March31, 2019 will not be retrospectively adjusted. The
Company has elected certain available practical expedients on transition.

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after 1April 2019.The Company is currently evaluating
the effect of this amendment on the financial statements.

Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments:

On 30 March 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment which is to
be applied while performing the determination of taxable profit (or loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates,
when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under Ind AS12. According to the appendix, companies need to determine the
probability of the relevant tax authority accepting each tax treatment, or group of tax treatments, that the companies have used or plan
to use in their income tax filing which has to be considered to compute the most likely amount or the expected value of the tax
treatment when determining taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and taxrates.

The standard permits two possible methods of transition-i)Full retrospective approach Under this approach, Appendix Cwill be applied
retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented in accordance with Ind AS8- Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors, without using hindsight and ii) Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying Appendix C recognized
by adjusting equity on initial application, without adjusting comparatives.

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix Cis annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019. The Company will adopt the
standard on 1 April 2019 and has decided to adjust the cumulative effect in equity on the date of initial application i.e. 1 April 2019
without adjusting comparatives.

The Company is currently evaluating the effect of this amendment on the financial statements.

AmendmenttoInd AS12-

income taxes: On 30 March 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to the guidance in Ind AS 12,'Income Taxes', in
connection with accounting for dividend distribution taxes.

The amendment clarifies that an entity shall recognise the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive
income or equity according to where the entity originally recognised those past transactions or events.

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after 1 April 2019, The Company is currently
evaluating the effect of this amendment on the financial statements.
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 4 A: Investments

{Amount in %)
Sr. No Particutar Face Value March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Holdings As At Rs Holdings As At Rs
Non Current Investments
Investment in equity instruments {Fully paid up)
(i} £ ies(at cost)
Unguoted
Anuchem BV.B.A- Belgium Euro 25 750 7,71,549 750 7,71,549
Strix Wireless Systems Private Ltd{Refer Note No 35(jii)) Rs 10 - - 3,92,001 6,523
Spidigo Net Private Ltd (Refer Note iv below) Rs 10 10,000 1,000
Less: Provision for decline other than temporary , in value of non _ . _
current investments
Total (A} 7,72,549 7,78,072
(ii} |Other Investments (At cost}
Quoted
Anco Communication Ltd Rs 10 500 71,788 500 71,788
Enarai Finance Ltd Rs 10 3,900 78,000 3,900 78,000
Indian Extractions Ltd Rs 10 18,000 5,08,194 18,000 5,08,194
Indo-biotech Itd Rs 10 5,000 1,591,250 5,000 1,931,250
First object Technoliges Ltd Rs 10 2,000 81,400 2,000 81,400
Maxworth orchards Lid Rs 10 1,300 13,000 1,300 13,000
Ojas Technochem Products Ltd Rs 10 5,000 1,31,495 5,000 1,31,495
35,700 10,75,127 10,75,127
tess: Prt.:wsnon for decline other than temporary , in value of non 10,75,127 10,75,127
current investments
Total (B} - - -
Total(A+B) 7,72,549 7,78,072
Footnotes :
(i) Aggregate cost of quoted investments 10,75,127 10,75,127
Aggregate market value of quoted investments - 3,78,800
(i} Aggregate value of unquoted investments 7,72,549 7,78,072
{iil) Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments 10,75,127 10,75,127
{iv) During the year the company acquired the entire shares of
Spidigo Net Pvt Ltd. As a result Spidigo Net Pvt Ltd has become its
wholly owned subsidiary with effect from March 11, 2019.
Note 4 8: Current Investments
{Amount in 3)
Sr.No Particular Face Value March 33,2019 March 31,2018
Investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income
{iy [in Mutual Funds
Quoted
HDFC Liquid Fund 563.125 Units {PY. NIL) Rs 10 1,03,496 -
L & T Long Duration Growth 12,98,141 Units (PY. NIL}* Rs 10 259,95,415 -
HDFC Long Duration Growth 6,62,552 Units (PY. NIL)* Rs 10 259,23,531 -
Total 520,22,442 -
Footnotes:

0]

* Refer note no 15C{d) for information on Mutual Funds pledged as security.
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Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note5 - Loans

{Amount in )

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

Sr.No Particulars
A Non Current Loans
{Unsecured Considered Good , unless otherwise stated)
(i) | Loan to related party at amortised cost:
-Subsidiary company {Refer Note 37 ) - 842,94,647
{ii) | Loan to staff 8,31,619 13,78,946
Total 8,31,619 856,73,593
Loans to refated parties comprise loans to the following Wholly
Owned subsidiaries
(i}|Strix Wireless Systems Private Limited - 842,94,647,
Maximum amount outstanding during the year - 842,894,647,
B Current Loans
{Unsecured Considered Good , unless otherwise stated)
(i) Loan to staff 9,98,230 5,97,470
(i) |others* 1,15,449 77,871
Total 11,13,679 6,75,341
* Others include
Salary Advance 79,460 77,871
Other Advances Receivable in cash & Kind 35,989 -
Total 1,15,449 77,871
Note 6A - Other financial assets
{Amount in ¥)
Sr. No Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
A Current Financial Assets
{i) Inter corporate Deposits{Refer Note {i)Below) 541,02,000 -
(ii) Interest on Inter Corporate Deposits 25,54,711 -
(iii) Interest Accrued on Bank Deposits 36,525 -
Total 566,93,236 -

Footnotes:

(i) Includes secured Inter Corporate Deposits of Rs 4 Crores, however charge is yet to be created in favour of the

Company.
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note No. 7 - Deferred tax Liabilities/{Asset) (Net)

{Amount in )

For the year ended March 31,2019

Opening B
pening Balance profit or loss

Sr. No Particulars March 31,2019 March 31,2018

Deferred Tax Liability

(i) Depreciation on fixed assets 332,69,095 226,27,770

(ii) Gross Deferred Tax Liability {1) 332,69,095 226,27,770
Deferred Tax Asset

(i) Employee Benefit obligations (168,28,561) (104,67,974)

(ii) Brought forward unabsorbed depreciation to be carried forward to next - (430,79,187)
Other disallowable expenses {5,39,551) -
Gross Deferred Tax Asset (2) {173,68,112) (535,47,161)
Net Deferred Tax Liability/(Asset) (1-2) 159,00,983 (309,19,391)

Recognised in  [Adjustment on

account of merger

Closing Balance

Deffered Tax Liability

Plant Property Equipment 226,27,770 106,41,325 - 332,69,095
Gross Deffered Tax Liability(1) 226,27,770 106,841,325 - 332,69,095
Deffered Tax Asset -

Defined benefit obligation (104,67,974) {63,60,587) - (168,28,561)
Other Disallowable Expenses {21,03,966) 15,64,415 - (5,39,551)
Brought forward unabsorbed depreciation to be carried forward to next years (409,75,221) 426,24,892 16,49,671) -

Gross Deffered Tax Asset(2) {535,47,161) 378,28,720 16,49,671) {173,68,112)
Net Deferred Tax Liability/{Asset) (1-2) (309,19,391) 484,70,045 16,49,671) 159,00,983
For the year ended March 31,2018 Opening Balance Recog.nised n Adjustment on Closing Balance

profit or loss| account of merger

Deffered Tax Liability

Plant Property Equipment - 226,27,770 - 226,27,770
Gross Deffered Tax Liability(1) - 226,27,770 - 226,27,770
Deffered Tax Asset

Defined benefit obligation - (104,67,974) - (104,67,974)
Other Disallowable Expenses - (21,03,966) - {21,03,966)
Brought forward unabsorbed depreciation to be carried forward to next years - 409,75,221) - {409,75,221)
Gross Deffered Tax Asset{2) - 535,47,161) - {535,47,161)
Net Deferred Tax Liability/(Asset) (1-2) - 309,19,391) - {309,19,391)
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 8 - Other Assets {Amount in ¥
Sr, No Particulars March 31,2019 March 31,2018
A, Non Current Assets
{i) Capital advance 174,53,187 314,86,328
{ii) Security Deposits with Public Bodies and others 99,21,343 65,56,439
(ii) | Balance with Statutory/Revenue Authorities 5,50,000 84,40,076
{iv}] | Prepaid Expenses 4,73,973 5,13,782
Total 283,98,503 469,96,625
B Current Assets
(i) Balance with Statutory/Revenue Authorities 1383,71,997 814,44,483
(ii) Advance to Vendor 38,63,092 193,20,916
(iii) Prepaid Expenses 26,54,076 18,54,543
Total 1448,89,165 1026,19,942
Note - 9 : Inventories (At lower of cost and net realisable value)
{Amount inT)
Sr. No Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(i) | Raw materials({include Packing Materials ¥20,26,557/- 219,04,728 635,89,248
{ March 31,2018 ¥19,30,457/-)
{ii) | Work-in-progress 959,49,494 711,82,993
{iii) | Finished Goods 2233,63,867 324,52,742
(iv) | Stockin Transit 35,93,749 14,05,998
{v) | Stores & Spares 396,70,210 418,53,144
{vi) ] Others(Fuel etc.,) 16,48,588 22,06,592
Total 3861,30,636 2126,90,717
Footnotes:

(i) Refer Note no 15C{d) {i} for information on Inventories mortgaged as security for borrowings .

Note 10 - Trade receivables

{Amount in T)

Sr. No Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Unsecured
{i) Considered good 3402,23,559 768,17,476
(i) Considered doubtful - 17,00,239
3402,23,559 785,17,715
Less : Allowance for doubtful debts - 17,00,239
Total 3402,23,559 768,17,476

Footnotes :
1. Trade receivables are dues in respect of goods sold in the normal course of business.

2. The normal credit period allowed by the company ranges from 60 to 90 days.

3. Trade receivables include receivables from related parties ¥ 20,98,25,328/- and Maximum Amount Outstanding
21,11,77,534/- (March 31, 2018 - ¥ NIL and Maximum amount Qutstanding ¥ 7,41,10,762/-)
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note - 11 : Cash and Cash Equivalents (Amount in T)
Sr. No Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
{i) Cash in hand 2,22,331 19,96,951
(i} Balance with bank
--- in current account 872,25,370 685,89,383
Total 874,47,701 705,86,334
Note -12 : Other Bank Balances
{Amountin ¥
Sr. No Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Call and short term deposit accounts
(i) Deposits with original Maturity <12 Months 15,01,925 81,13,425
[Refer note (a) below]
i) Deposits with original Maturity <12 Months other than {i) above 13,00,000 -
Total 28,01,925 81,13,425
Footnotes :
{a) Deposits with carrying amount of ¥ 15,01,925 (March 31, 2018 - ¥ 81,13,425 ) are subject to first charge against bank
guarantees.
Note 13 : Equity Share Capital (Amount in %)
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Authorised Capital:*
2,00,00,000 Equity Shares of ¥5/- each 1000,00,000 1000,00,000
{March 31, 2018: 1,00,00,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each)
(Refer note no (i & ii)below
1000,00,000 1000,00,000
Issued Subscribed & Paid up:
1,86,30,298 Equity Shares of ¥5/- each fully paid 931,51,490 931,51,450
(March 31, 2018: 93,15,149 Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each)
Total 931,51,490 931,51,430

Footnotes:

{i): Autharised capital of 11000000 (2018 :11000000 ), 1% Non convertible Non Cumulative Redeemable Preference Share of Rs 10/- each is not
considered above. Redeemable Preference shares issued have been considered as borrowings in accordance with the requirement of Ind AS. Refer Note

15C(c)

{ii) - Sub - division of Equity shares : On 29th January 2019, Pursuant to a approval of the members in the extra ordinary general meeting, the Company
sub divided the equity shares of the face value of ¥ 10/- to share of the value of ¥ 5/- per share Unless otherwise noted, impacted amounts and share
information included in the financial statements relating to authorised , issued and subscribed capital have been adjusted for the subdivision .

{a) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Particulars Equity Share Equity Share

No.of Shares Amount No.of Shares Amount
Equity
No of shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 93,15,149 931,51,490 92,00,830 920,08,300
Add: Additional shares issued during the year - - 1,14,319 11,43,190
Add : Increase on account of shares sub -divided during the year (Refer 93,15,149 - - -
Note no (ii) above)
Less: Shares forfeited/Bought back during the year - - - -
No of shares outstanding at the end of the year 186,30,298 931,51,490 93,15,149 931,51,490

{b}Terms/Rights attached to Equity shares:

The company has only one class of equity shares having at par value of 5/-{PY 10/-)per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per
share. The company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Director is subject to the approval of the share
holders in the ensuing annual general meeting. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining
assets of the company after distribution of ali preferential amounts. The distrubution will be in proportion to number of shares held by share holder.
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

{c) Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company :

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Equity Share Equity Share
Equity Shares of <5/- each (PY. ¥10/- ) fully paid No of Shares * % of Holding No of Shares % of Holding
Manekchand Panachand Trading Investment Co.Pvt.Ltd 119,21,222 63.99 59,60,611 64.78
Asit Javeri 9,56,180 5.13 - -

* adjusted for sub-division of shares.
As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders / members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial
interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and benefical ownership of shares

None of the shareholders other than the holding company and Mr Asit Javeri hold more than 5% as on the reporting date

{d) Equity Shares in the entity held by holding company:

particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
No of Shares * | % of Holding No of Shares | % of Holding
Manekchand Panachand Trading Investment Co.Pvt.Ltd 119,21,222 | 63.99 59,60,611 | 64.78

* adjusted for sub-division of shares.
(v)Agaregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash, bonus shares and
shares bought back for the period of 5 years immediately preceding the balance sheet date - Nil(March 31, 2018 - Nil)

{e) Shares reserved for issue under Options
For details of shares reserved for issue under the employee stock option plan (ESOP} of the Company - Refer Note 30
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
Note 14 : Other Equity

{Amount In X
Sr.No | Particulars March 31, 2019| March 31, 2018
Reserves and Surplus
{6 Capitat Reserve
Opening and Closing balance 93,681 93,681
{H) Capital Redemption Reserve
Opening balance 5,00,000 5,00,000
Add: Additions {Refer note no 15C(c}) 560,00,000 -
Closing batance 965,00,000 5.00,000
{iig} Securities Premium Account
Opening balance 93,76,727 54,96,740
Add:Premium on issue of sweat equity shares - 38,79,987
Closing balance 93,76,727 93,76,727
{iv} Retained Earnings
Opening balance 1356,05,373 {2119,51,878)
Profit for the year 7531,01,925 3136,97,275
Other Comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax {8,09,491) {42,02,496)
Total comprehensive income 7522,92,434 3094,94,779
Adjustment on account of amalgamation (Refer Note No 35 (iii))
a) Balance in Statement of Profit and Loss of Transferor Company (1089,49,860) -
b} Surplus being the difference b share capital of fi and
investment of the company 39,13,487 -
Adjustment on account of preference share redemption {Refer note no 15C(c }} (586,07,130) 380,62,472
Transfer to Capital Redemption Reserve {Refer note no 15¢C{c )) {960,00,000} -
Dividend including dividend distribution tax {112,30,344) -
Closing balance 6170,23,960 1356,05,373
)] Transition Reserve
Opening balance 884,49,427 884,49,427
Add:Additions d -
Closing balance 884,849,427 884,49,427
{vi} General Reserve
Opening balance 1333,29,906 1333,29,906
Add:Additions - -
Closing balance 1333,29,306 1333,29,906
{vii} Share Based Payment reserve(Refer Note No 30}
Opening balance - -
Add:Additions 97,06,989 -
Closing Balance 97,06,989 -
Total 9544,80,690 3673,55,114

Capital Reserve :

Capital Reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

Capital Redemption Reserve

Capital redemption reserve represents reserve created on redemption of preference shares. It is non distributable reserve

Securities Premium Reserve

securitics Fremium Seserve,

Securitics Premium Reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares . This reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of
the Act.

Retained Earnings
The amount that can be distributed by the company as dividend to its equity shareholders
Teansition Reserve

Transition Reserve represents reserve created on transition from Accounting Standards to Ind AS.

General Reserve
General reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from

"

for appropriation purp

Sharc based Payment Reserve
The Company has established equity settled share based payment plans for certain categories of employees of the

company. Refer note 30 for further details of these plans.
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note - 15 : Borrowings

{Amount in%)
Sr. No Particulars March 31, 2029| March 31, 2018
A Long Term Borrowings
{a) Secured Borrowings:
{i)| Term loan - Bank (Refer Note 15C{ a ) below} 196,00,265 194,00,000
{ii)| Term Loan - Others (Refer Note 15C{ b ) below} 161,18,068 108,23,254
357,18,333 302,23,254
Less :Current Maturity of Long term borrowings disclosed under the head other financial 74,14,206 77.94,327
liabilities (Refer Note 16(i})
Balance 283,04,127 224,28,927
(b) Unsecured Borrowings
{i)|Redeemable Preference Shares
9600000 1% Non convertible , Non cumulative {2018 - 9600000 8% Non convertible , Non 430,01,800 430,01,800
Cumulative ) Redeemable Preference Shares of ¥ 10 /- each (T10/- each)[Refer note 15C{ ¢ ) below]
Less: Redeemed during the year {430,01,800; -
Balance - 430,01,800
Total 283,04,127 654,30,727
B Short Term Borrawings
{a) Secured Borrowings
{i)jworking Capital Loan from Bank [Refer Note {d){i) and (ii)] 422,05,947 689,26,719
{b) Unsecured Borrowings
{i)| Inter Corporate Deposit [Refer note { e ) below) 11,31,988 147,15,856
| Total 433,37,931 836,42,575
c Footnotes:
a Term loan from a bank is secured by charge on motor vehicles. Refer Note (f) below for terms of repayment , interest etc.
b Term loan - others is secured by charge on motor vehicles and plant and machinery. Charge is yet to be registered in respect of two
motor vehicles . Refer Note {f) below for terms of repayment , interest etc.
[ Redeemable Preference Shares :During the year the company redeemed its 96,00,000 Non convertible , Non cumulative Preference shares

of T 10/-, at a premium of ¥ 8/- per share {early redemption). The amount paid on early redemption is allocated to the liability and
equity component at the date of early redemption in the same method that was used to make the original allocation of the proceeds
upon initial transition to Ind AS. The premium amounting to 27,68,00,000 /- is shown as finance cost. On redemption, the nominal value
of shares redeemed amounting to ¥ 9,60,00,000 has been transfered to capital red ion reserve in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act,

dii) The company has working capital facilities from a Bank at interest rate of libor plus 4.25% pa. These facilities are secured by exclusive
charge on present and future stocks and book debts, exclusive charge on entire plant and machinery , charge by way of pledge on debt
mutual funds of Rs 5 crores . Further secured by personal guarantee of Chairman and Managing Director and Corporate Guarantee of
Holding Company.

diii) # Working capital loan from a bank carrying interest rate ranging between 5.76% to 12.00 % p.a. These facilities are repayable on demand,
secured by way of first pari passu charge on the present and future current assets of the company, second pari passu charge on entire
movable and immovable fixed assets of the company, present and future at plot no 47, MIDC, Roha Industrial Area, Raigad District -
402116 and further secured by personal guarantee of Chairman and Managing Director of the company

# These details relates to previous year
e Inter Corporate Deposits are carrying interest rate of 12% and repayable on or before April 2019.
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
Footnotes 15C Continued..

(f} Terms of repayment

Term Loan - Banks {Amountin¥
March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Rate of Year of Amount Amount
Particulars N
Intesest Maturity No of Installments Lteft | Year of Maturity | Outstanding as at| Noof Ir:sel;llmen!s OutstandIng as at]
March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Loan Account Number
5620 8.50% 2023-24 50 2023-24 17,32,975 - -
5165 8.50% 2023-24 50 2023-24 17,32,975 - -
3937 8.25% 2022-23 48 2022-23 83,16,650 60 100,00,000
6860 8.25% 2022-23 48 2022-23 78,17,665 60 94,00,000
Total 196,00,265 Total 194,00,000
Less :Current maturity of long term
{borrowings shown in current liabilities
42,71,278 32,65,685
Balance 153,28,987 161,34,315
Term Loan - Others
Loan Accaunt Number
772834 16.91% - . - - 1 31,76,878
1720446 12.75% 2022-23 a2 2022-23 22,83,725 54 28,02,108
1760357 12.75% 2022-23 a3 2022-23 22,48,802 55 27,59,773
2037897 12.75% 2022-23 46 2022-23 17,23,059 58 20,84,435
16801135 9.15% 2023-24 59 2023-24 49,31,241 - -
16801148 9.15% 2023-24 s9 2023-24 49,31,241 . -
Total 161,18,068 108,23,254
Less :Current maturity of long term
borrowings shown in other current fiabilities
31,42,928 45,28,642
Balance 129,75,140 62,94,612
Total Balance as per
4,
15A(a) 283,04,127 224,28,927

{g) The companies exposure to liquidity interest rate and currency risks are disclosed in note no 26(ii)
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 16 - Other financial liabilities

{Amount in )

Sr No Particulars March 31, 2019} March 31, 2018
Current Financial Liabilities
(i) Current maturity of Long term borrowings 74,14,206 77,94,327
(Refer note 15A(a) )
(i1 Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 2,36,318 2,96,298
(iii) Redeemed Preference Share & Excess right 27,393 27,393
issue (Unclaimed)
(v} Creditors for Capital Expenditure 603,21,673 233,63,662
(v) Security Deposit from Customer 11,74,650 -
(vi) Other payables 84,65,573 50,06,564
Total 776,39,813 364,88,244
Note 17 - Provisions {Amount in )
Sr. No Particulars March 31,2019] March 31, 2018
A Non Current
Employee Benefit Obligations
(i) Compensated absences 84,15,690 51,28,365
(i) Gratuity {Refer Note No.29) 152,39,798 204,95,146
Total 236,55,488 256,23,511
B Current
Employee Benefit Obligations
(i) Compensated absences 206,12,919 87,25,150
(i) Gratuity (Refer Note No. 29) 135,21,983 41,55,054
Total 341,34,902 128,80,204
(i) Movement in provisions Gratuity
Opening balance 246,50,200 181,21,165
Add/Less :Provision recognised /(reversed) during 41,11,581 65,29,035
the year
Closing balance 287,61,781 246,50,200

EIREC
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 18 - Other Liabilities

{Amountin¥
Sr. No Particulars March 31, 2019] March 31, 2018
Current
(i) Statutory Dues 502,48,902 107,59,363
(ii) Employee Dues 247,21,512 90,93,272
(ifi) Income received in advance 167,85,573 -
{iv) Advance From Customer 37,65,596 3243,73,628
Total 955,21,583 3442,26,263
Note - 19 : Trade Payables (Amount in %)
Sr. No Particulars March 31, 2019| March 31, 2018
(i) Micro and Small Enterprises 81,57,010 -
{ii) Others 2678,19,923 1352,41,287
Total 2759,76,933 1352,41,287
(a) Disclosure required under Clause 22 of Micro , Small and Medium Enterprises Development ' MSMED') Act, 2006
Particulars March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
a) the principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown seperately) remaining
unpaid to any supplier as at the end of accounting year:
-Principal amount due to Micro and small enterprises: 81,57,010 -
-Interest due on above: 5,30,475 -
b} the amount of interest paid by the buyer under MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts of - -
the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointment day during each accounting year
¢) the amount of interest due and payable for the period{where the principal has been paid but 5,30,475 -
interest under the MSMED Act 2006-Not paid
d)The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of accounting year. 5,30,475 -
3,67,065 -

e)The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding year,until such date
when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprises,for the purpose of

disallowances as a deductible expenditure under section 23.

All trade payables are ‘current’. The Company's exposure to currency and liquidity risks related to trade payablesis

(b)

disclosed in note no 26(ii)
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 20: Revenue from Operations
Contract with customers

1 Details of revenue from contract with customers recognised by the company, net of indirect taxes in the statment

of profit and loss.

{Amount in ¥}

Sr. No Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2018
i) [Sale of Products
{a) Finished Goods 25702,49,535 10789,92,716
25702,49,535 10789,92,716
(iiy |Sale of Services 274,02,203 -
(iiiy [Other Operating Revenue
(a) Sale of scrap & sales other 15,84,837 3,81,681
{b) Export Benefit 723,78,333 283,89,687
739,63,170 287,71,368
Total 26716,14,908 11077,64,084
Footnotes:
2 Disaggregate revenue Information:

The table below presents disaggregated revenue by product type and type of revenue stream. The company
believes that this disaggregation best depicts how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainy of revenues and cash

fiows are effected by industry, market and other economic factors.

Sr No Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(a)] Sale of products
Product Type:
MAP 17824,22,194 10279,89,049
SND 27 {ODB 2) 6315,32,158 86,76,744
Others 1562,95,183 423,26,923
Total 25702,49,535 10789,92,716
{b)] Sale of services 274,02,203 -
(c)] Other operating revenue
(i) Sale of scrap & sales other 15,84,837 3,81,681
(i) Export Benefit 723,78,333 283,89,687
739,63,170 287,71,368

3 Sales includes excise duty upto 30th June 2017 and Hence figures are not comparable.

120



SADHANA NITRO CHEM LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note - 21 Other Income

{Amount in ¥)

Sr. No Particulars March 31, 2019] March 31, 2018
(i) Interest Income on:
(a) Deposits with banks TDS ¥791 (P.Y 22109) 7,907 4,717,924
(b) Others 32,80,801 8,15,555
(ii) Dividend Income from
Subsidiaries 1,20,056 -
Current Investments 1,03,496 -
{iii} Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets 11,38,559 -
(iv) Foreign Exchange Gain (Net) 43,833 5,33,027
(v) Miscellaneous income 77,18,324 18,85,597
Total 124,12,976 37,12,103
Note 22A - Cost of Raw materials and packing materials consumed (Amount in ¥)
Sr. No Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Inventory at the beginning of the year 635,89,248 131,23,210
Inventory on account of Merger 22,34,646 -
Add: Purchases 8830,22,102 4696,10,552
Total 9488,45,996 4827,33,762
Less: Inventory at the end of the year 219,04,728 635,89,248
Cost of materials consumed 9269,41,268 4191,44,514
Raw material and packing materials Consumed
Sr.No Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2018
(i) Benzene 1141,55,201 892,25,847
(if) Nitric acid 595,91,522 294,46,980
(iii) Cast iron powder 1106,86,187 699,41,019
(iv) Oleum 65% 530,88,532 318,11,171
(v) Caustic Potash Flakes - 22,59,049
{vi) Packaging Material 42,29,337 31,98,851
{vii) Other 5851,90,489 1932,61,597
Total 9269,41,268 4191,44,514
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 22B - Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress

{Amount in %)
Sr. No Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(i} Opening Stock
Work in progress on account of Merger 33,31,405 -
Work in progress 711,82,993 678,84,576
Finished goods 324,52,742 210,64,424
Scrap 3,25,000 3,00,000
Total (i) 1072,92,140 892,49,000
(ii) Closing Stock
Work in progress 959,49,494 711,82,993
Finished goods 2233,63,867 324,52,742
Scrap 3,25,000 3,25,000
Total {ii) 3196,38,361 1039,60,735
Changes in Inventories Decrease/(Increase){i-ii) (2123,46,220) (147,11,735)
Total (2123,46,220) (147,11,735)

Note 22C- Excise Duty
The Government of India has implemented Goods and Service Tax (GST) from July 1, 2017 replacing excise

duty, service tax and various other indirect taxes. Excise duty for the year ended March 31, 2018

pertains to the period of 3 months {April to June 2017).

Note 23- Employee Benefit Expenses

{Amount in¥)

Sr. No Particulars March 31, 2019f March 31, 2018
(i) Salaries and wages, including bonus 2673,63,291 836,18,433
(ii) Employee Share Based compensation expense 97,06,989 -
{iii) | Contribution to Provident and other funds {Refer Note No. 29(a) ) 74,56,207 34,76,318
{iv) | Gratuity (Refer Note No. 29(b) } 28,98,240 36,05,357
(v) Leave Encashment expense 126,44,255 50,23,177
{vi) | Staff welfare expenses 27,06,797 17,63,707

Total 3027,75,779 974,86,992
Note 24 - Finance Cost
{Amount inT)
Sr. No Particulars March 31, 2019] March 31, 2018
(i) Interest expense on term loans and other financial liabilities 26,64,419 211,05,405
{ii) interest cost on preference share 11,57,376 56,08,930
(i} Share premium on preference share redemption(Refer note 15C{(c }) 768,00,000 -
{iv) Foreign Exchange Fluctuation 222,78,489 26,20,867
{v) interest on delayed Payment of tax 114,26,023 24,00,000
{vi} Other borrowing cost 43,73,853 192,94,189
Total 1187,00,160 510,29,391
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 25 - Other Expenses

{Amount in¥)

Sr. No Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
{i) Power and fuel 1578,30,099 1006,63,999
(ii) Rent 46,489,006 7,90,423
iii) Rates & Taxes 223,68,193 98,86,372
(iv) Insurance 40,37,316 15,04,013
{v) Printing & Stationery 18,13,324 12,05,204
{vi) Postage, Telegram & Telephone & Interent (Communication Expenses) 22,39,369 13,21,728
(vii) Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 245,71,426 57,02,596

(viii) Legal & Professional fees 140,99,938 71,83,381
{ix) Directors Fees 4,25,000 1,41,000
(x) Electricity charges 6,46,889 2,02,050
(xi) Security Charges 26,45,246 21,14,734
(xii) Stores & spares Consumed {Refer Note (ii)below) 635,37,183 265,31,107
(xiii) Repairs & Maintenance

Plant & Machinery 81,23,353 22,15,336
Others 277,31,659 30,30,344

{xiv) Other Manufacturing Expenses 157,41,834 99,81,809
(xv) Effluent Expenses 115,96,495 36,91,962
{xvi) Research & Development Expenses 93,700 2,56,100

(xvii) Payment to auditors (Refer Note {i)below) 5,40,513 3,00,000

{xviii) Selling Expenses

Freight and Forwarding Expenses 70,40,095 212,21,549
Commission Charges 387,20,898 26,57,914
Local Freight & other expenses 250,49,326 128,85,849

(xix) Bad debts & Sundry Debit Balances written off 31,02,201 72,25,158
{xx) Guarantee Commission - 144,00,000
{xxi) Amortisation of Lease hold land - 804

{xxii) Miscellenous Expenses 199,00,262 180,52,771

Total 4565,03,325 2531,66,203
Footnotes:
{i) Payment to Auditors
Sr.No Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
As Auditor*

{i) Statutory Audit Fee 5,00,000 3,00,000

{ii) Reimbursement of Out of Pocket Expenses 40,513 -
5,40,513 3,00,000
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
Note - 26 Financial Instruments and Risk Review

Capital Management

The key objective of the Company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains a stable capital structure with the focus on total equity to uphold the investor , creditor and customer confidence and to
ensure future development of its business. The Company focused on keeping strong total equity base to ensure independence , security as well high financial flexibility for potential future borrowings , if required
without impacting the risk profile of the company. The Company's goal is to continue to be able to return excess liquidity to shareholders by continuing to distribute annual dividends in future periods. The
amount of future dividends of equity shares will be balanced with efforts to continue to maintain an adequate liquidity status.

{Amounting)

Particulars March 31,2019] March 31, 2018
Total equity attributable to equity shareholders of the company 10476,32,180 4605,06,604
As a percentage of total capital 94 76
Long term borrowings 283,04,127 654,30,727
Short term borrovings 433,37,931 836,42,575
Total borrowings 716,42,059 1490,73,302
As a percentage of total capitat 6 YL
Total Capital {Equity and Borrowings) 11192,74,238 6095,79,906

The company business plan coupled with global macro economnic scenario have helped the company achieve enhanced profiability and liquidity resulting improved equily base and lower the risk profile of the
company.

Financial Risk Management Framewark

The company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments :

a)Credit risk

b)Liquidity risk

¢JMarket risk

i) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the will not meet its obligation under a financialinstrument o customer contract leading to financial loss. The credit risk arises principally from its operating activities
{primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities including deposits with banks and financial institutions and other financial instruments.

The customer credit is managed by the company's established policy , procedures and controls relating to customer credit management. The company has established a credit policy under which each new
customer is analysed individually for credit worthiness before the company's standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. The company's review includes external ratings where available and
other publicaly available financial information, Outstanding customers receivables are regularly monitored and any shipment to major customers are generally covered by letter of credit or other forms of credit
insurance.

The following table gives details in respect of percentage of revenues generated from top five customer:

{In%)
Particulars March 31, 2019 [March 31, 2018
Revenue from top five customers 74.61 39.54

The company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents fixed estimate of expected losses in respect of trade and other receivable. The maximum exposure to credit risk as at reporting date is
primarily from trade receivable amounting to 34,02,23,559/- (PY.% 7,68,17,476/ . The movement in allowance for impaitment in trade and other receivables during the year was as follows :

Allowance for impairment March 31, 2019 [March 31,2018

Opening balance 17,00,239 -
i loss tecognised / reversed {17,00,239) 17,00,239
Closing balance -] 17,0023

Receivable from one customer of the Company's trade receivables of 3 20,98,25,328/- (PY:NIL) which is more than 10% of the Company's tota! trade receivables.
Credit risk on cash and cash equivalenet is limited as the Company generally transacts with banks and financial institutions with high credit ralings assigned by international and domestic credit ratings agenties.
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Ti)tiquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by defivering cash or another financial asset.

The Company believes that the working capita] s sufficient to meet its current requirements. Accordingly , no liquidity risk is perceived. In addition, the company maintains the following line of credit.

The company has working capital facilities from a Bank at interest rate of libor plus 4.25% pa. These facilities are secured by exclusive charge on present and future stocks and book debts, exclusive charge on
entire plant and machinery, charge by way of pledge on debt mutual funds of Rs S crores . Further secured by personal guarantee of Chairman and Managing Director and Corporate Guarantee of Holding
Company. [PY: Working capital loan from a bank carrying interest rate of 12.95% p.a. These facilities are repayable on demand, secured by way of first pari passu charge on the present and future current assets
of the company, second pari passu charge on entire movable and immovable fixed assets of the company, present and future at plot no 47, MIDC, Roha Industriz] Area, Raigad District - 402116 and further secured
by personal guarantee of Chairman and Managing Director of the company)

The table below provides details regarding the undiscounted contractual ities of sigaificant financia) liabilities as of March 31, 2019.
Particulars Lessthan1year | 1to2years 2to5years 507 years Total
Long term borrowings 81,43,020 90,65,711 110,95,396 . 283,04,127
Short term borrowings 433,37,931 - . . 433,37,931
Trade payable 2759,76,933 - - - 2759,76,933
Other financial liabilities 776.39,813 - - - 776,39.813
Total 4050,97,697 90,65,711 110,95,386 - 4252,58,804
The table below provides details regarding the undi J contractual ities of significant financial liabilities as of March 31, 2018
Particulars tessthanlyear| 1to2years 2t05 years Sto7years Total
Long term borrawings 430,01,800 105,54,704 118,74,23 - 654,30,727
Short term borrowings 836,42,575 - - - 836,42,575
Trade payable 1352,41,287 - - - 1352,41,287
Other finangial liabilities 364,885,244 - - - 364,88,.244
Total 2983,73,906 105,54,704 118,74,223 - 3208,02,833
1ii) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Such changes in the values of financial instruments may result from changes
in the foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates, credit, liquidity and other market changes. The Company’s exposure to market risk is primarily on account of foreign currency exchange rate risk.

Foreign Currency exchange rate isk
The Company operates internationally and major portion of the business is transacted in several currencies and consequently the company is exposed to foreign exchange risks through operating activities in
foreign currency. The company does not engage in hedging and the unhedged fareign cusrency exposure is as follows :

1) Details of foreign currency exposures that are not hedged by a derivative

instrument or otherwise :
[ Amountinforelzncurreney | Equivalent amount &
Faricoars Comenty | yvorch31,2018] March3t, 2018 | March31,2019 | March31,2018
Financial Assets
Trade Receivables EURD - - - -
usD 44,76,757 809,181]  310596544]  531,49,476
Financial Liabifities
Trade Payables
EURO - - - -
usp 3,03,297 156,326 27438043 101,68,068
EURD - - - -
Advance Received UsD 54,425 - 37,65,595 -
Net Asset / {liability) 1 40,29,035 652855  2793,02.000}  42981,408
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 27 : Earnings Per Share

(Amount in <)

Sr. No Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
a) |Net Profit for the year attributable to the equity shareholders 7531,01,925 3136,97,275
b) |Opening number of equity shares outstanding 93,15,149 92,00,830
c) |Closing Number of Equity shares outstanding 186,30,298 93,15,149
d) |Basic/Diluted earning per share(Z 5/- per share) 40.42 33.61

(P. Y. 10/- per share)
Note 28: Disclosures under Ind AS 17
(AmountinX)
Note Particulars March 31, 2019] March 31, 2018
Details of leasing arrangements
Operating Lease
(i) Leasehold land - 804
The Company has entered into operating lease arrangements for
certain facilities and office premises. The leases are non-
cancellable and are for a period of 1 to 5 years and may be
renewed for a further period based on mutual agreement of the
parties.
(ii) Future Non-Cancellable minimum lease commitments
not later than one year 20,31,880 29,31,804
later than one year and not later than five years 51,03,520 30,98,616
later than five years 38,592 39,396
Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 46,49,006 7,90,423
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Notes forming part of the financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 29 : Employee benefits

{a) Defined Contribution Plan

The Company makes Provident Fund contributions to defined contribution plan administered by the Regional Provident Fund
Commissioner. Under this scheme, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost to fund the
benefits. The Company has recognized ¥ 74,56,207/- towards Provident Fund and other fund contributions (March 31, 2018:
{ 34,76,318/-)in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The provident fund and ESIC contributions payable by the Company are in
accordance with rules framed by the Government from time to time.

(b) Definad Benefit Plans: Gratuity

The employee's gratuity fund scheme managed by a trust is a defined benefit plan. The present value of the obligation is
determined based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method, which recognises each period of service as
giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final
obligation. The obiigation for leave encashmentis recognised in the same manner as gratuity.

The estimated rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, take into account inflation, seniority promotion
and other relevant factor including supply and demand in the employment market. The above information is certified by
actuary. The expected rate on plan assets is determined considering several applicable factor, mainly the composition of plan
assets held assessed risk ,historical result of return on plan assets and the company's policy for plan assets management.

Defined henefit plans — as per actuarial valuation on 31st March, 2019

Particulars Fug:::&an
March 31, 2019] March 31, 2018

Service Cost

Current Service Cost 9,80,454 7,25,025
Past service cost and {gains)/losses from settlements - 15,62,923
Net interest expense 19,17,786 13,17,408
Components of defined benefit costs recognized in profit or loss 28,98,240 36,05,357
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability
Return on plan assets {excluding amount included in net interest expense) - 2,031,152
Actuarial gains and loss arising form changes in fi ial i {10,172) {6,06,438)
Actuarial gains and loss arising form experience adjustments 38,59,546 46,07,782
Actuarial gains and loss arising from demographic adjustments - .
Componenets of defined benefit costs recognised in other compret ive income 38.49,374 42,02,496
Total 67,47,614 78,07,853
1. Net Asset/(Liability} recognised in the Balance Sheet as at 31st March
1. Present value of defined benefit obligation as at 31st March (287,61,781) (24,65,020)
2. Fair value of plan assets as at 31st March - -
3. Surplus/{Deficit) {287,61,781) (24,65,020)
4. Current portion of the above
5. Non current portion of the abave
I1. Change in the obligation during the year ended 31st March
1. Present value of defined benelfit obligation at the beginning of the year 246,50,200 208,88,046
2. Add/(Less) on account of Scheme of Arrangement/Business Transfer . .
3. Expenses Recognised in Profit and Loss Account

« Current Service Cost 9,80,454 7,25,025
- Past Service Cost - 15,62,923
- Interest Expense {(Income) 19,17,786 15,18,561
4. Recognised in Other Compr ive Income - .
Remeasurement gains / {losses)

- Actuarial Gain {Loss} arising {rom:

i. Demographic Assumptions

ii. Financial Assumptions {10,172} {6,06,438)

iii. Experience Adjustments . 38,59,546 46,07,782
5. Benefit payments (26,36,033) {40,45,699)
6. Others {Specify) - .
7. Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 287,61,781 246,50,200)

127



SADHANA NITRO CHEM LIMITED

111, Change in fair value of assets during the year ended 31st March

1. Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year

2. Add/(Less) on account of Scheme of Arrangement/Business Transfer
3, Expenses Recognised in Profit and Loss Account

- Expected return on plan assets

- Interest Income

4. Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

Remeasurement gains / (losses)

- Actual Return on plan assets in excess of the expected return

- Others {specify)

5. Contributions by employer (inciuding benefit payments recoverable)
6. Benefit payments

7. Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year

IV. The Major categories of plan assets
- List the plan assets by category here
Insurance Fund

V. Actuarial assumptions

1. Discount rate

2. Expected rate of return on plan assets
3. Salary Increase Rate

4. Rate of Employee Turnover

5. Mortality Rate During Employment

- 27,66,881
- 2,01,152
- (2,01,152)
- (27,66,881)
7.79% 7.78%
7.79% 7.78%
4.00% 4.00%
2.00% 2.0%

Indian Assured
Lives Mortality

(2006-08) (2006-08)
6. Mortality Rate After Employment N.A. N.A.
VI. Other Details
1. No of Active Members 197 211
2. Per Month Salary For Active Members 53,82,647 41,55,054
3. Weighted Average Duration of the Projected Benefit Obligation 5 5
4, Average Expected Future Service 15 15
5. Projected Benefit Obligation (PBO) 287,61,781 246,50,200
6. Prescribed Contribution For Next Year {12 Months) 53,82,647 41,55,054
VIi. Net Interest Cost
1. Interest Cost 19,17,786 15,18,561
2. Interest Income - (2,01,152)
3. Net Interest Cost (1-2) 19,17,786 13,17,409

Indian Assured
Lives Mortality
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Maturity Analysis of Projected Benefit Obligation: From the Fund

Projected Benefits Payable in Future Years From the Date of Reporting

st Following Year 91,74,778 67,85,704
2nd Following Year 16,92,594 23,80,201
3rd Following Year 20,93,052 18,25,501
4th Following Year 26,26,116 18,51,669
Sth Folfowing Year 11,38,551 23,91,589
Sum of Year 6 To 10 181,30,628 62,12,283

Maturity Analysis of Projected Benefit Obligation: From the Employer

Projected Benefits Payable in Future Years From the Date of Reporting

1st Following Year 135,21,983 -
2nd Following Year 18,45,090 -
3rd Following Year 31,06,067 -
4th Following Year 12,38,694 -
5th Following Year 8,09,455 -
Sum of Year 6 To 10 88,03,395 -

Sensitivity Analysis

Projected Benefit Obligation on Current Assumptions 287,61,781 246,50,200 208,88,046
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Discounting {9,56,019) {10,72,464) {8,22,737)
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Discounting 10,85,466 (12,32,053} 9,26,144
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase 10,37,030 {12,67,130), 9,47,439
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase (9,31,706}: (11,18,837) {8,54,858)
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover 3,91,102 (3,96,119) 2,08,452
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover {4,38,793) {4,45,931) 2,31,336
Sensitivity analysis for each significant actuarial assumption is required to be given, (illustration for medical

inflation given below. Company needs to provide for others}

. . 0.01% Increase  |0.50% Decrease
A. Effect of 0.50% change in the assumed discount rate ° °
31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18

Defined Benefit Obligation

B. Effect of 1 % change in the assumed Salary Escalation Rate

& v 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Defined Benefit Obligation
VIII. Experience Adjustments : Year Ended
2019 { 2018
Gratuity

1. Defined Benefit Obligation (287,61,781) (246,88,046)

2. Fair value of plan assets - -

3. Surplus/{Deficit) (287,61,781) (246,88,046)

4. Experience adjustment on plan liabilities [(Gain)/Loss] (38,59,546) 46,07,782

5. Experience adjustment on plan assets [Gain/(Loss)] (10,172) (6,06,438)

The expected rate of return on plan assets is based on the average long term rate of return expected on investments of the fund

during the estimated term of obligation.

The estimate of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, takes account of inflation, seniority, promotion and
other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.
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Additional Details
Methodology Adopted for ALM - Projected Unit Credit Method
Sensitivity analysis is an analysis which will give the movement in liability if the assumption were
not proved to be true on different count. This only signifies the change in the liability if the
difference between assumed and the actual is not following the parameters of sensitive analysis.

Usefulness and Methodology adopted for Sensitivity Analysis -

Stress Testing of Assets - Not Done
Investment Strategy - Not Discussed
Comment on Quality of Assets - Since Investment is with insurance company, Assets are considered to be secured.
Management Perspective of Future Contributions - As per Actuarial Calculation
Notes

*Gratuity is payable as per company's scheme as detailed in the report.

*Actuarial gains/losses are recognised in the period of occurance under Other Comprehensive Income (OC).

*All above reported figures of OCl are gross of taxation.

*Salary escalation & attrition rate are considered as advised by the company; they appear to be in line with the
industry practice considering promotion and demand & supply of the employees.

*Maturity Analysis of Projected Benefit Obligation is done considering future salary, attrition & death in respective
year for members as mentioned above.

*Average Expected Future Service represents Estimated Term of Post - Employment Benefit Obligation.

*Value of asset provided by the client is considered as fair value of plan asset for the period of reporting as same is
not evaluated by us.

Note 30 : Employee Stock Compensation

(a) Sadhana ESOP Plan:

On August 1, 2018 , the Board of Directors approved the Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP 2018) for the grant of
stock options to the employees of the Company. The nomination and remuneration committee{remuneration
committee) adminsters the ESOP. The option under this grant would vest to the employees as percentage of total
grant at the end of the first, second and third year from the date of grant with exercise period ending one year
from the end of last vesting.

Details of Grant

Particulars Number of options Weighted Average Exercise Price
Outstanding at the beginning of the year - -
Granted during the year 2,00,000 1,000

forfeited during the year
Exercised during the year

Expired during the year - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 2,00,000 1,000
Exercisable at the end of the year - -
Weighted average remaining contractual life (in years 23

Range of exercise prices for outstanding options at the end of the year 1000-2000
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Note 31 - Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
{i) Contingent liabilities :
{a) Bank Guarantees/ Letter of Credit - -
(b) Contingent Liabilities for Income Tax, Service Tax and others: - -
- Income Tax # - 55,180
- Sales Tax # 6,98,439 6,98,439
- Service Tax # - -
- Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act 1952# 58,76,715 -
- Employees Claim # 15,42,361 15,42,361
(i) Commitments :
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for 553,86,363 833,39,004
{Net of advance)
Other money for which the Company is contingently liable :
The Company has imported Goods under the Export Promotion Capital Goods Scheme (EPCG), of 0 0
the Government of India, at the concessional rates of duty with an obligation to fulfill the specified
exports. Failure to meet this export obligation within the stipulated timeframe as per Foreign trade
policy 2004-09 would result in payment of the aggregate differential duty saved as mentioned
below along with interest there on. The company is confident of meeting the obligation.
Total export obligation due
Saving in Custom Duty
Total 635,03,878 856,34,984

#The Company is subject to legal proceedings and claims which have arisen in the ordinary cours

e of business from Direct

tax laws{TDS), Indirect tax laws and Other Laws. Future cash outflow, if any in respect of these matters are determinable
only on receipt of judgements /decisions pending at various stages before the appellate authorities. The Management is
of the opinion that the matters would be resolved in favour of the holding Company. The Holding Company Management
does not reasonable expect that these legal action when ultimately concluded and determined would have a material
and adverse effect on the holding Company's result of operations or financial condition.

Note 32
AValue of imports calculated on CIF basis

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Raw Material and Components 1708,09,611 155,88,267
Capital goods 68,86,608 -

1776,96,219 155,88,267

B.Expenditure in foreign currency

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018'
Other matters - Foreign travel, Corporate allocations etc. 18,25,077 8,356,013
Services Availed 344,07,847 -

362,32,924 8,36,013

Note 33 Transfer Pricing

The Company has ‘international transactions with associated enterprises’ wil

hich are subject to Transfer Pricing

regulations in India. These regulations, inter alia, require the maintenance of prescribed documents and information
for the basis of establishing arm’s length price including furnishing a report from an Accountant within the due date of filing

thereturn ofincome.

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2019, the Company has taken necessary stepsinclu

by the regulations and the Accountant’s report in this regard is awaited.

transactions are carried out at arm’s length and no adjustments s expected to arise thereon.

ding conducting a study as required
In the opinion of the management, the
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 34 Segment reporting

Information reported to the chief operating decision maker (CODM) for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance focuses on the types of goods or services delivered or provided. The Company is in the business of
Manufacturing of Chemical intermediates, heavy organic chemicals and performance chemicals and manufacture of wireless
network equipments and services. The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the accounting policies
disclosed in Note 2. The revenues, total expenses and net profit as per the Statement of Profit and Loss represents the revenue,
total expenses and the net profit of both the reportable segments. The reported revenues, profit and assets of one of the
segments(manufacture of wireless network equipments and services) being less than 10% of the combined revenue, profitand
assets of all the reporting segments, no seperate segment disclosure s given as per para 11and 13 of ind AS 108.

Note 35 Events after reporting Period

(1) On April 22, 2019, the Board of Directors has proposed an interim dividend of ¥ 1.25 per equity share having face value of
% 5/-each.

(i) On May 28, 2019, the Board of Directors have proposed a final dividend of Z 0.75 per equity share having face value of
Z 5/-each. The proposed dividend is subject to approval of the shareholders in the annual general meeting.

(ifi Pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation {the Scheme ) sanctioned by the National Company Law Tribunal Mumbai Bench
vide its order dated May 09, 2019, Strix wireless systems Pvtltd {SW5sPL) have been merged with the Company with effect from
April 01, 2018 (the Appointed Date). The merger is accounted under absorbtion method in terms of the scheme sanctioned by
the Company law tribunal Mumbai Bench and all assets, liabilities and reserves have been recorded in the books of accounts of
the Company at the respective carrying amounts and in the same form. The difference between the share capital of the
transferor company and the gross value recorded as investments is adjusted and the difference is adjusted in reserves in
accordance with the scheme.

Accordingly, the assets and liabilities of Strix wireless systems Pvt Ltd are accounted at the following summarized value

Particulars Amount
Property , Plant and Equipment 76,06,275
(including capital work in progress)
Intangible assets -
Taxes 17,19,671
Inventories 55,66,052
Trade receivables 36,23,511
Cash and Bank Balances 6,66,670
Financial assets - Investments , Loans & others
{Non Current & Current) 3,16,38,514
Non Current and Current Liabilities (15,58,50,543
Other Equity 10,89,49,860
Share Capital 39,20,010
Gross Value recorded as investments (6,523)
To Be Adjusted Against Reserves 39,13,487
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 36: Significant estimates and assumptions

Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year,
are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes will be reflected in the
assumptions when they occur.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or Cash Generating Unit (CGU) exceeds its recoverable amount, whichis
the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on
available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm's length, for similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived
from the budget for the next five years and do notinclude restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or
significant future investments that will enhance the asset's performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amounts
sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for
extrapolation purposes.

Defined Benefit Plans {Gratuity Benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of the gratuity
obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may
differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases
and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long term nature, a defined benefit obligation is
highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operatedin
india, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the
post-employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publically available mortality tables for the specific countries. Those mortality tabies tend to
change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on
expected future inflation rates.

Details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 29.

Fairvalue measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on
quoted prices in active markets, the fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to
these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is
required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.
Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value target and the discount factor.

The Company has valued its financial instruments through profit & loss which involves significant judgements and estimates
such as cash flows for the period for which the instrument is valid, EBITDA of investee company, fair value of share price of the
investee company on meeting certain requirements as per the agreement, etc. The determination of the fair value is based on
expected discounted cash flows. The key assumptions take into consideration the probability of meeting each performance
target and thediscount factor.
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 37 - Related party transactions

1)List of related parties

I} Holding Company M/S Manekchand Panachand Trading Investment Co pvt Itd
ii) Subsidiary

a - M/S Anuchem B.V.B.A Belgium

b - M/S Spidigo Net Pvt. Ltd.

1) Key Management Personal

1) Shri.Asit D.Javeri Executive Chairman

Smt.Seema A Javeri wife of Shri A.D Javeri

Mr.Abhishek A Javeri son of Shri A.D Javeri

ii} Abhishek A Javeri Managing Director & Chief Financial Officer
iii) Shri Nitin R Jani Company Secretary

1l1) Disclosure in respect of material related party transaction during the year.

1) Sale of Goods to Anuchem BVBA, Belgium X 70,50,15,098 (PY T10,55,09,151/- )

¢) Related party transactions during the year

SrNo | Nature of Transaction Holding C%'Jmpany Subslgarles Key Manage%nent Person
a) Sale of Goods 7050,15,098
{1055,09,151) -
. . - 1181,08,535
b} Managerial Remuneration — 1210,06,047)
c) Dividend Received 1’20_'056 .
d}) | Loan Given 1842.94.647) ~
e) Interest on Loan : :
f) Guarantee Commission — (142,00,000]
g Outstanding Balance as on 2098,25,328 351,80,863
31st March 2019 - -
For Chandrashekar lyer & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number :114260W
Asit D Javeri Arvind R Doshi
Executive Chairman Director
Chandrashekhar lyer Abhishek A Javeri Priyam S Jhaveri
Partner Managing Director & CFO Director
Membership Number :47723
Smt. Seema A Javeri Pradeep N Desai
Executive Director Director
Administration
Mumbai, May 28, 2019 Nitin R Jani Amit M Mehta
Company Secretary Director
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Independent Auditors' Report
To the Members of Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited {hereinafter referred to as the 'Holding
Company”} and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise
the consolidated balance sheet as at March 31, 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information {(hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based on the consideration
of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries as were audited by the other auditors, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2019, of its consolidated profit and other comprehensive income,

consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
provisions of the Act. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by other
auditors in thereon in terms of their report referred to in other matters section below is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.
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Sr. No. Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response
1 Accuracy of recognition, measurement, Our audit approach is combination of test of

presentation and disclosures of revenues internal controls and substantive  procedures

and other related balances in view of on adoption of Ind AS 115, Revenue from

adoption of Ind AS 115 “Revenue from contracts with Customer s (‘Ind AS 115), the

Contracts with Customers” (new revenue new standard on revenue recognition,

accounting standard) include the following -

The application of the new revenue « Evaluated the design and implementation

accounting standard involves certain key of the processes and internal controls relating

judgments  relating to identification of to implementation of the new revenue

distinct performance obligations, recognition standard

determination of transaction price of the

identified performance obligations, the « Evaluated the detaile d analysis performed

appropriateness of the basis used to mea sure | by management across revenue streams by

revenue recognised over a period. selecting samples for the existing contracts

Additionally, new revenue accounting with customers and verified the

standard contains disclosures which appropriateness of identification of distinct

involves collation of information in respect performance obligations, determination of

of disaggregated revenue and periods over the transaction price, allocat fon of the

which the remaining performance transaction price to identified performance

obligations will be satis  fied subsequent to obligations and the appropriateness of the

the balance sheet date. revenue recoghition methodology
« Evaluated the appropriateness of the
accounting policy and disclosures provided

Refer Note 20 to the Consolidated Financial | under the new revenue standard and

Statements assessed the completeness and mathematical
accuracy of the relevant disclosures.

2 Evaluation of uncertain tax positions Principal Audit Procedures

The Holding Company has material Obtained details of completed tax

uncertain tax positions including matters assessments and demands for the year ended

under dispute which involves significant March 31, 2019 from management. We

judgment to determine the possible outcome involved our inte rnal tax team to review the

of these disputes. management’s underlying assumptions in
estimating the tax provision and the possible
outcome of th e disputes. Our internal tax
team also considered legal precedence and

Refer Note 31 tothe Consolidated Financial | giher rulings in evaluating management’s

Statements position on these uncertain tax positions. The
internal tax team also additionally evaluated
whether any change was required to
management’s position on these
uncertainties in light of new amendments in
tax laws.
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Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditors' Report Thereon

The Holding Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures to
Board's Report , Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholders information , but does not include
the Consolidated financial statements and our auditors' report thereon.

Qur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtainedin the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed and
based on the work done/ audit reports of other auditors, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to reportin thisregard.

Responsibilities of Managementand Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the consolidated
state of affairs, consolidated profit and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated cash flows of the in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards {Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding the assets of each company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors
of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective management and Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of each company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative butto do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group is responsible for overseeing the financial reporting
process of each company.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

(=]

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting 3 material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(f ) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Holding Company and such companies incorporated in India which are its subsidiary
companies have adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparation of
consolidated financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the appropriateness of this assumption. if we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report, However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group {Company and its subsidiaries) to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and eventsin
amanner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of such entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of financial information of such entities included in the
consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the
consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion. Our responsibilities in this regard are further described in para (a) of the section
titled 'Other Matters' in this audit report.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us along with the consideration of audit reports of the other auditors referred
to in sub-paragraph (a) of the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
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We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities included in the
consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may

reasonably be thought to bear on ourindependence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most

significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.

We describe these matters in our auditors' report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

Other Matters

(a} We did not audit the financial statements of one wholly owned subsidiary included in the consolidated financial results of
the Group. This subsidiary account for total assets of Rs 5,17,70,926/- as at March 31, 2019, total revenue of Rs
52,45,50,874/- and a net profit amounting to Rs 60,96,214/- for the year ended on that date. These financial statements
have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Holding Company's management and
our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in
respect of this subsidiary, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the

aforesaid subsidiary is based solely on the audit reports of other auditors.

This subsidiary is located outside India whose financial statements and other financial information have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in their respective countries and which have been audited by
other auditors under generally accepted auditing standards applicable in their respective countries. The Holding Company's
Management has converted the financial statements of such subsidiary located outside India from accounting principles
generally accepted in their respective countries to accounting principles generally accepted in India. We have audited these
conversion adjustments made by the Holding Company's Management, Our opinion in so far as it relates to the balances
and affairs of such subsidiary located outside India is based on the reports of other auditors and the conversion adjustments

prepared by the management of the Holding Company and audited by us.

The consolidated financial statements also include the unaudited financial information of one wholly owned subsidiary
whose financial information reflect total assets of Rs 7,75,84,156/- as at March 31, 2019, total revenues of Rs 81,131/-
for the year ended March 31, 2019 and total net loss of Rs 4,22,487/- for the year ended March 31, 2019, as considered in
the consolidated financial statements, whose financial statements have not been audited either by us or by other
auditors. These unaudited financial statements have been furnished to us by the Holding Company's Management and our
opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect
of this wholly owned subsidiary and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act in so far as it
relates to the aforesaid wholly owned subsidiary, is based solely on such unaudited financial statements. In our opinion and

(b
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according to the information and explanations given to us by the Holding Company's Management, these
financial statements are not material to the Group.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on OtherLegal and Regulatory Requirements below, is
not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other
auditors and the financial statements/financial information certified by the Holding Company's Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of reports of the other auditors on
separate financial statements of such subsidiaries as were audited by other auditors, as noted in the '‘Other Matters'
paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

¢. The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial

statements.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid consoclidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the
Act.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on March 31, 2019 taken
on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary
companies incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on
March 31, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding
Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our

separate Report in “Annexure A",

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements of section
197{16) of the Act, asamended :

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid
by the Holding company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit
and Auditor's) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us
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and based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries,
asnoted in the 'Other Matters' paragraph:

i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at March 31, 2019 on the consolidated

financial position of the Group. Refer Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

ii. The Group did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material
foreseeablelosses.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company

orits subsidiary companies incorporated in India during the year ended March 31, 2018.

For Chandrashekar lyer & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 114260W

(Chandrashekarlyer)
Partner

Membership Number:47723
Mumbai, Miay 28,2019
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

{Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under 'Report on Other Lega! and Regulatory Requirements' section of our report to the Members
of Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited “the group” of even date)

Report on the internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited(hereinafter referred to
as the 'Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), as of
March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that
date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the holding company and its subsidiaries is responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the respective
companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india. These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company's palicies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the holding company and
its subsidiaries based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the
Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our auditinvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls aver financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the internal financia! controls system over financial reporting of the holding company and its subsidiaries.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
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the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial

statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion
or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the
risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or

that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

in our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, holding company and its
subsidiaries has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the respective companies considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Chandrashekar lyer & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number : 114260W

Chandrashekar lyer
Partner
Membership Number : 47723

Mumbai, May 28, 2019
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019

{Amountin X}
PARTICULARS Note No,| AsatMarch31, | AsatMarch3i,
2019 2018
A SSEIS
1 Non-current assets
{a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3A 6987,80,216 3933,90,926
(b} Intangible Assets 8 636,23,270 1042,03,979
{c) Capital work-in-progress 3A 155,43,597 1137,37,444
(d) Financial Assets
{i} Investments aA - -
(ii} Loans SA 11,05,539 856,73,593
{e) Income Tax Asset [net) - 286,46,404
{f) Delerred Tax Asset (net) 7 - 325,69,062
(g) Other non current assets 8A 284,73,503 469,96,625
Total Non-Current assets 8075,26,125 8052,18,033
1l Current assets
{a) Inventories g 4106,82,414 2183,46,915
(b) Financial Assets
(i} Current Investments 48 520,22,442 -
(i) Trade receivables 10 1558,99,105 1528,66,705
{iii} Cash and cash equivalents 1 902,25,316 714,58,013
{iv} Bank Batances other than (i) above 12 28,01,925 81,13,425
{v] Loans 58 11,13,679 6,75,341
{vi} Other financlal assets [ 1033,35,556 4,11,500
(¢) Other current assets 88 1449,86,605 1356,86,312
Total current assets 9610,67,042 5875,59,211
TOTAL 17685,93,167 13927,77,244
8 EQUITY AND UARBILITIES,
| Equity
{a) Equity Share capital 13 931,51,490 931,51,490
(b} Other Equity 14 9588,66,294 3653,96,630
10520,17,784 4585,48,120
Liabilities
11 Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
{i} Borrowings 15A 304,29,127 654,30,727
{ii) Other financial liabilities 16 - -
(b} Provisions 174 280,95,058 256,23,511
{c) Deferred Tax Liabliities(Net) 7 159,00,985 -
{d) Other non-current liabilities 18A - -
Total Non current liabilities 744,25,170 910,54,238
I Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i} Borrowings 158 433,37,931 836,42,575
(i) Trade payables 13 1210,98,086 2324,43,877
(i) Other financial liabilities 16 788,64,495 366,39,410
{b) Pravisions 178 341,34,902 128,80,204
(c) Other cursent liabilities 18 2200,90,553 4775,68,820
(d} tncome Tax Liabilities {net) 1446,24,246 -
Total cursent llabllities 6421,50,213 8431,74,886
TOTAL 17685,93,167 13927,77,244

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial stalements. {Refer Notes 1- 39)
As per our regort of even date attached

For Chandrashekar lyer & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Asit D Javerl Arvind R Doshl
Firm Registration No :114260W Executive Chalrman Director
Chandrashekar lyer
b ¥ Abhishek A Javer] priyam  Jhaverl
artner Managing Director & CFO Director
Membership No :47723
Mumbai, May 28,2019 Smt, Seema A Javesi
Executive Director :’:‘dup N Desal
Administration rector
Nitin R Jani Amit M Mehta
Company Secretary Director
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Statement of Consolidated Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2019

(AmountinX)

Particulars l\;o;e As at March 31,2019 As at March 31, 2018
{1} |INCOME
{) |Revenue from operations 20 26702,67,323 11434,79,772
(i1} [Other income 21 124,72,131 28,86,563
{Iv) |[Total Income {u+m) 26827,39,454 11463,66,335
(v} |ExpENSES
{a) Cost of materials consumed 22A 9269,41,268 4191,44,514
{b} Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in: 228 149.91.965
progress (2365,98,265) M
(c) Excise Duty 22C - 37,66,507
{d) Employee benefits expense 23 3027,75,779 974,90,240
{e} Finance costs 24 1199,17,568 520,64,934
{(f) Depreciation and amortization expense
{g) Depreciation Expense (Refer Note No 3) 288,82,058 192,04,458
(h) Other expenses 25 4721,68,309 2597,21,713
Total Expenses (V) 16140,86,717 8663,84,331
(V1) |Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax {IV-V) 10686,52,737 2799,82,004
{VIl} |Exceptional Items - -
viny |Profit/{toss) before tax (Vi - VII) 10686,52,737 2799,82,004
{IX) |Tax Expense
Current tax 2614,07,039 480,45,206
Less: MAT Credit entitlement - {480,45,200)
Deferred tax Assets 489,27,874 (309,19,391)
Total tax expense 3103,34,913 {309,19,385),
(X) [Profit/(loss) for the period (VUII - 1X) 7583,17,824 3109,01,389
(X1} |Other Comprehensive Income
(i) Items that will not be re-classified subsequently to profit or loss
Re-measurement on defined benefit plans (27,28,437) (42,02,496)
Change in Fair value of Current Investments through other comprehensive
income 19,18,946 —_
{ii) Items that will be re-classified subsequently to profit or loss
{XIl) |Total of Other Comprehensive Income () + (i) {8,09,491) (42,02,496)
{(xu) |Total Comprehensive Income {X +X1) 7575,08,333 3066,98,893
{Xv) [Earnings per equity share (¥)
Basic & Diluted 27 40.70 33.30

The accompanying notes are an integral part
As per our report of even date attached

For Chandrashekar lyer & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No :114260W

Chandrashekar lyer
Partner
Membership No :47723

Mumbai, May 28,2019

of the consolidated financial statements. (Refer Notes 1- 39)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Asit D Javeri Arvind R Doshi
Executive Chairman Director
Abhishek A Javeri Priyam S Jhaver}
Managing Director & CFO Director

Smt, Seema A Javeri

Executive Director

Pradeep N Desal

Administration Director
Nitin R Jani Amit M Mehta
Company Secretary Director
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Ci d Cash Flow for the year ended March 31,2019
{Amountin3)
Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2039 For the yoar ended March 31, 2018
A. Cash {low from operating activities
Profit before tax 10686,52,737 2757,79,508
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amaortisation expenses 288,82,058 192,04,458
Share based compensation expenses 97,06,989 -
Profit on Sale of assets (11,38,559) -
Finance costs 1199,17,568 520,64.934
1573,68.056 712,69,392
Operating profit / (loss) before working capital changes 12260,20,793 3470,48,900
Changes in warking capital:
i (1923,35,499) {460,99,412)
Loans and advances 427,53,669 (2452,81,528)|
Trade Payables / current liability / Provisions (4582,35,909) 2630,05,347
Trade receivables {22,03,568) (455,18,357)
{6105,21,307]| 261,06,050
Cash generated from operations 6154,99,486 3731,54,950
a.Direct Taxes (Paid) (881,36.387} {232,28,158)/
Net cash flow from / {used in) operating activities {A) 5273,63,099 3499,26,792
8. Cash flow from / {used In) investing actlvitles
a.Capital expenditure on Fixed Assets {2071,97,225) {615,10,654)
(Net of Adj for capital Work-in-progi
b.Acquisition /Sale of Fixed asset (Net) 16,59,218 14,818
c. isition /Sate of {Net) {501,03,496)
d.Cash arising on acquisition of subsidiary 10,88,221 7,05,613
e. Investment in subsidiary {1,000 {6,523)
Net cash flow from / {used In) investing activities (B} {2545,54,282) {607.,96,746}
C. Cash flow from / {used in} financing activities
2.Secured Borrowings -Net of Repayment 54,95,079 298,08,278
b.Unsecured Borrowings -Net of Repayment {1016,08,930) {1031,47,511}
c.Finance cost paid {1199,77,547) (636,68,088)
d.Dividend paid including dividend distribution tax {112,30,344) -
e.1ssue of fresh equity {including premium) - 50,23,177
Net cash flow from / {used In} financing activities (C} (2273,21,742) {1319,84,144)
Net increase / {decrease) in Cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C) 454,872,075 1571,45,902
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 25,32,294 {1546,13,608)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 480,19,369 25,32,298
Cash and cash equivalent as per above comorises of the following
Cash and cash equivalent as per note 11
Cash tn hand 2,22,730 19,99,183
Balance with banks (an current accounts) 889,71,728 694,59,830
Fixed deposit shown under cash and cash equivalent 10,30,858
902,25,316 714,59,013
Bank overdrafts / Cash credit (Note 158} 422,05,947 689,26,719
Batance as per statement of cash flows 480,19,369 25,32,294
Notes:
Figures in brackets represent outflows -
Notes to the Statement of Cash Flow
The accompanying noles are an integral past of the consofidated financial statements, {Refer Notes 1- 39)
As per our report of even date attached
For and an behalf of the Board of Dlrectors
for Chandrashekar lyer & Co
Chartered Accountants AsitD Javeri Arvind R Doshi
Firm Reglstration No :114260W Exceutive Chalrman Director
Chandrashekar lyer Abhishek A Javeri Priyom S Jhaverl
Partner Managing Disector & CFO Director
Membership No 147723
Mumbal, May 28, 2019 Smt, Seema A Javeri Pradeep N Desal
Executive Director Administration Director
Nitin RJani Amit M Mehta
Company Secretary Dircctor
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Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

1.1 Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited {"sncl” or the “parent company"” or "the company"), together with its subsidiaries (collectively, the
Group) is engaged in Manufacturing of chemical intermediates' , heavy organic chemicals, performance chemicals and wireless
network equipment and services. The Company is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in India and has its registered
office in Mumbai, Maharashtra india and manufacturing facility is located at Roha, Raigad Dist, Maharashtra India. The companies
shares are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

2.01 Statement of Compliance The standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards(Ind AS) as per the Companies(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules , 2015 notifies under Section 133 of Companies
Act,2013(the "Act")and other relevant provisions of the Act.

2.02 Basis of preparation and presentation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments which
are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally
based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services, Fair value is the price which that would be
received or paid to transfer aliability inan orderly transaction betweenmarket participants at the measurement date.

2.03 Principles of Consolidation

(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when itis exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. The financial
statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date on which controi commences until the
date on which control ceases.

The financial statements of the Group are consolidated on line - by - line basis, Intra - group transactions , balances and any unrealised
gains arising from intra group transactions , are eliminated. Un realised losses are eliminated , but only to the extent that there is no
evidence of impairment. All temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup
transactions are recognised asper Ind AS12, Income Taxes.

For the purpose of preparing these consolidated financial statements, the accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to align them with the policies adopted by the Company.

Non - controlling Interests (NC1)

NCI are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree's netidentifiable assets at the date of acquisition.

{i)Loss of Control

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary , it derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary , and any related NCl and
other components of equity. Any interest retained in the former subsidiary is measure at fair value at the date the control is lost.
Any resulting gain or loss is recognised in statement of profitand loss.

(i) Goodwill

Goodwill comprises the portion of the purchase price for an acquisition that exceeds the Groups' share in the identifiable assets, with
deduction for liabilities , calculated on the date of acquisition.b.Goodwill is deemed to have an indefinite useful life and is reported at
acquisition value with deduction for accumulated impairments, An impairment test of goodwill is conducted once every year or more

oftenif there is anindication of a decrease in value. The impairment loss on goodwillis reported in the statement of profitand loss.

2.04 Use of estimate

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of ind AS requires the
management of the Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities, disclosures
relating to contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expense for the
periods presented.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimates are revised and future periods are affected. The management believes that the estimates used in
preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results could differ due to these estimates and differences
between actual results and estimates are recognized in the periodsinwhichtheresultsare known/materialize.
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Key source of estimation of uncertainty at the date of the financial statements, which may cause a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, is in respect of impairment of investments, useful lives of property, plant
and equipment, valuation of deferred tax liabilities and provisions and contingent liabilities.

Impairment of investments
The Company reviews its carrying value of investments carried at cost annually, or more frequently when there is indication for
impairment. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the impairmentloss is accounted for.

Useful lives of property, plantand equipment
The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period. This reassessment may
resultin change in depreciation expense in future periods.

Valuation of deferred tax assets
The Company reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period. The policy for the same has been
explainedunderNote 2.11.

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; itis probable that
anoutflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount can be reliably estimated.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money (if the impact of discounting is significant) and the risks specific to
the obligation. The increase in the provision due to unwinding of discount over passage of time is recognized as finance cost. Provisions
are reviewed at the each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Ifit is no longer probable that an outflow of
economic resources will be required to settle the obligation, the provisionis reversed.

A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company from a contract are lower
than adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, is in respect of impairment of
investments, useful lives of property, plant and equipment, valuation of deferred tax liabilities and provisions and contingent liabilities.
doption of Ind AS 12 Appendix

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made where there is a possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of
which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not whally within the control
of the Company or a present obligation that arises from the past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the
financial statements. A contingent asset is neither recognised nor disclosedinthe financial statements.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes
Some of the Company’s assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. The Company has obtained

independent fair valuation for financial instruments wherever necessary to determine the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs for fair value measurements. In some cases the fair value of financial instruments is done internally by the management of the

Company using market-observable inputs.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level
1 inputs are not available, the Company engages third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The qualified external valuers
establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The external valuers report to the management of the
Company their findings for every reporting period to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the assets and liabilities.

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in determining the fair value of various assets and liabilities are disclosed
in notesno 29.
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2.05 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns,
rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of pramised goods to customers in anamount that reflects the consideration which the

Company expects to receive in exchange for those goods.
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control is transferred to the customer which is usually on dispatch/

delivery of goods based on contract with customers.
Revenue is measured on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume discounts, price concessions, incentives

and returns, if any, as specified in the contracts with customers. Revenue excludes taxes collected from customers on behalf of the
government. Accruals for discount/ incentive and returns are estimated(using the most likely method) based on accumulated
experience and underlying schemes and arrangements with customers. Due to the short nature of credit period given to customers,
there is no financing componentin the contract.

The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contract with Customers, with effect from April 1,2018. Ind AS 115 establishes
principles for reporting information about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainity of revenue and cash flows arising from the
contracts with its customers and replaces Ind AS 18 Revenue and Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts.

The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 using cumulative effect method whereby the effect of applying this standard is recognised at the
date ofinitial application (i.e., April 1,2018) Accordingly, the comparative information in the statement of profit and Loss is not restated.
The effect of the adoption of Ind AS 115 was insignificant.

Revenue (applicable up to March 31,2018}
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns,

rebates and other similar allowances.

1.Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the following
conditions are satisfied:

« the Company has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

» the Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold;

« the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

« itis probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Company; and

» the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably. Revenue from sales and operation includes

Excise Duty but excludes Sales Tax, Value Added Tax & GST

11. Sale Of Services

Revenue from Operations is recognised on accrual basis based on underlying subscription plan or agreements with the concerned
subscribers / parties. Revenue from prepaid Internet Service plans, which are active at the end of accounting period, is recognised on
time proportion basis. in other cases of Internet Service plans, entire revenue is recognised in the period of sale.

iii.Other Income

a. Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive payment has been established which is
when the shareholders approve the dividend. {provided thatitis probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
amount of income can be measured reliably).

b. Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at
the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

2,06 Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to

the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
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Operating Lease

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Finance Lease

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets of the Company at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement of
financial position as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

2,07 Foreign Currency

The functional currency of the Companyis Indian rupee.

Income and expenses in foreign currencies are recorded at exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. Foreign currency
monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the exchange rate prevailing on the balance sheet date and exchange gains and losses
arising on settlement and restatement are recognised in the statement of profitand loss.

2.08 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use. Interest income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

Aliother borrowing costs are recognised in profit or lossin the period in which theyareincurred.

2,09 Governmentgrants

(i) Government grants in respect to manufacturing unites located in developing regions:

The Company is entitled to various incentives from government authorities in respect of manufacturing units located in developing
regions. The Company accounts for its entitlements on accrual basis on approval of the initial claim by the relevant authorities and
there is reasonable assurance that the grants will be received.

(i) Government grants in respect of additional Capital Expenditures:

Government grants whose primary condition is that the Company should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire capital assets is
accounted for as deferred income. The grant is recognised as income over the life of a depreciable asset by accounting deferredincome
in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful life of the asset.

(iii) Export Incentives

Exportincentives under various schemes are accountedin the year of export.

2.10 Employee benefits

{1) Defined Contribution Plan:

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes viz. Company's Provident Fund Scheme and Superannuation Fund are
recognised as an expense when the employees have rendered the service entitling them to the contribution.

(2) Defined Benefit Plan:

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefitsis determined using the projected unit credit method, with
actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and
losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding interest), is reflected
immediately in the statement of financial position with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in
which they occur,

Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and will not be reclassified
to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment. Netinterest is calculated by applying
the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Defined benefit costs are categorised as
follows:

o service cost {including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and settlements);

= netinterest expense orincome; and

o remeasurement.
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(1) Gratuity:

The Comp‘;ny has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. The plan provides fora
lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount
equivalent to 15/26 days salary payable for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. The
Company accounts for the liability for gratuity benefits payable in future based on an independent actuarial valuation. The Company
has taken a Group Gratuity cum Life Assurance Scheme with Life Insurance Corporation for future payment of gratuity to the eligible
employees.

(li) Compensated Absences:
The Company provides for the encashment of compensated absences with pay subject to certain rules. The employees are entitled to

accumulate compensated absences subject to certain limits, for future encashment. Accumulated leave, which is expected to be
utilised within the next twelve months, is treated as short-term employee benefit and the accumulated leave expected to be carried
forward beyond twelve month is treated as long-term employee benefit which are provided based on the number of days of un utilised
compensated absence on the basis of an independent actuarial valuation.

2.11 Taxation
Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability during the year. Current and

deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively. Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Currentincome tax
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income/statement of profit or loss because of items of income or expense thatare
taxable or deductible in otheryears and items that are never taxable or deductible.

The Company's current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Advance taxes and provisions for current income taxes are presented in the balance sheet after off-setting advance tax paid and income
tax provision arising in the same tax jurisdiction and where the relevant tax paying units intends to settle the assetand liability ona net

basis.

Deferred income taxes

Deferred income tax is recognised using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognised for
deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount, except
when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred income tax asset are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised. The carrying
amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using substantively enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the yearsin
which the temporary differences are expected to be received or settled.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the relevant
entityintends to settleits current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT} paid in accordance with the tax laws in India, which is likely to give future
aconormic benefits in the form of availability of set off against future income tax liability. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as deferred tax
asset in the balance sheet when the asset can be measured reliably and it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with

the asset will be realised.
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2.12 Property, Plantand Equipment
Property, plant and equipment held for use in production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes are stated at cost

less accumulated depreciation/amortization less accumulated impairment, if any. The cost of fixed assets comprises its purchase price
net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from the tax
authorities), any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use, and interest on borrowings

attributable to acquisition of qualifying fixed assets up to the date the asset is ready forits intended use.

Capital work-in-progress for production, supply of administrative purposes is carried at cost less accumulated impairment loss, if any,
until construction and installation are complete and the asset is ready for itsintended use.

Depreciation is recognized (other than on capital work-in-progress) on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of assets in
respect of property plant & equipment & computers acquired after 1st April 2006. Property plant & equipment including non factory
building furniture fixtures & vehicles acquired prior to 1st April 2006 are depreciated under WDV Method at the rates prescribed under
Schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013, Depreciation on assets acquired/ purchased, sold/discarded during the year is provided on a pro-
rata basis from the date of each addition till the date of sale/retirement.

The economic useful lives of assets is assessed based on a technical evaluation, taking into account the nature of assets, the estimated

usage of assets, the operating conditions of the assets, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, maintenance
history, etc.The estimated useful life is reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with effect of any change in estimate being

accounted for on a prospective basis.
Where the cost of part of the asset is significant to the total cost of the assets and the useful life of that part s different from the useful of

the remaining asset, useful life of that significant part is determined separately. Depreciation of such significant part, if any, is based on
the useful life of that part. Freehold land is not depreciated.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment,
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, is recognized in the Statement of Profit
or Loss.

2.13 intangible Assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortization. Amortization is
recognized on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives of 3 years, which reflects the pattern in which the asset’s economic
benefits are consumed. The estimated useful life, the amortization method and the amortization period are reviewed at the end of ea
chreporting period, with effect of any change in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses
arising from de- recognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying

amount of the asset, and are recognized in the profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

2.14 Impairment Financial assets {other than at fair value)
The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets isimpaired.
Ind AS 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The Company recognises lifetime expected losses

for all contract assets and / or all trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction.
For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12 month expected credit losses or at an

amount equal to the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition.

2.15 Inventories

Inventories of raw materials, stock-in-trade, stores & spares ,Fuel, packing material, work in progress, stock in trade and finished goods
are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value after providing for obsolescence and other losses, where considered necessary.
Stock of scrap and spent acid is valued at net realizable value. Cost comprises all cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition . Stores and spares are valued on weighted average cost
basis and all others are valued on a FIFO basis.
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2.16 Financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities {other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability.

Cashand cash equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash that are

subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and having original maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase, to be
cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist of balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

Financial assets atamortised cost
Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is to

hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business

whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through profitor loss
Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other

comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are immediately recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are measured atamortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial guarantee contracts:
A Financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it

incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when duein accordance with the terms of a debtinstruments.
Financial guarantee contracts issued by a holding company are initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated as at FVTPL,

are subsequently measured at the higher of :

o The amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of IND AS 109; and

o The amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance with
the principles of IND AS 18.

Equityinstruments
An equity instrument is a contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the company after deducting all of its liabilities.

Equity instruments recognised by the Company are recognised atthe proceeds received net off direct issue cost.

Reclassification of Financial Assets
The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no

reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt
instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the
business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior management determines change in the business model as a
result of external or internal changes which are significant to the company’s operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A
change in the business model occurs when a company either begins or ceasesto perform an activity that is significant to its operations.
If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first
day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously
recognized gains, losses (includingimpairment gains and losses) orinterest.
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Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis to realize the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

2.17 Earnings Per Share (EPS)

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Ind AS 33 on Earnings per share. Basic earnings per share
is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the period by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the period by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period as adjusted for the effects of all diluted potential equity shares except where the results
are anti-dilutive.

2.18 Cash flow statement
The Cash Flow Statement is prepared by the indirect method set out inInd AS 7 on Cash Flow Statements and presents cash flows by
operating, investing and financing activities of the Company.

2.19 Current/Non-Current Classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classification. An asset is classified as
current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

-Itis expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

-Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

-Itis expected to be realized within 12 months after the date of reporting period, or

- Cash and cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12 months after
reporting period.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

Aliability is current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

-Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

- Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

-1tis due to be settled within 12 months after the reparting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period Current
liabilities include the current portion of long term financial liabilities.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets and their realization in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has
identified 12 months as its operating cycle.

2.20Share Capital Ordinary Shares
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. incremental costs, ifany, directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are recognizedasa
deduction from other equity, net of any tax effects.

2.21 Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received from the sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sellan
asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

-in the principle market for the asset or liability

-inthe absence of principle market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principle or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or  liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the assetor
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economicbestinterest.
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The fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by
using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset inits highest and best
use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the jowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

-Level 1-Quoted {Unadjusted) Market prices in active markets forincidental assets or liabilities

- Level 2 —Valuation techniques for which the lowest levelinput that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable

. Level 3—Valuation Technigues for which the lowest level input that s significant tothe fairvalue measurement is unobservable

fFor assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether
transfers that have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement asa whole)at the end of each reporting period.

Determination of Fair Value

1) Financial Assets - Debt Instruments atamortized cost

After initial measurement the financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR}
method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or cost that are anintegral
partoftheEIR.

2) Financial Assets - Debt Instruments at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCH)
Measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the Other Comprehensive
income {OCl). Onderecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OClis reclassified from the equity to P&L.

3) Debtinstruments, derivatives and equity instrumentsat Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)
FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at
amortized cost or as FVTOC], is classified as at FVTPL.

4) Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit & loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instrumentsinan effective hedge, as appropriate.

Al financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs. The Companies financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including

bank overdrafts and derivative financialinstruments.

Subsequent Measurement

Fair value through Profit & Loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit & loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit orloss. All changesin fair value of such liabilities are recognized in statement of profitor

loss.

Loans and Borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method.
Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.
The EIR amortization isincluded as finance costsin the statement of profit and loss.

2,22 Dividend
Dividend on shareis recorded as liability on the date of approval by the shareholders.
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2.23 Investments
Long Term Investments are carried at cost. Provision for diminution is made to recognize the decline, other than temporary in the

value of these investments. Current investments are carried at lower of the cost and fair value.

2.23 Segment Report

The Company identifies primary segments based on the dominant source, nature of risks and returns and the internal organisation
and management structure. The operating segments are the segments for which separate financia! information is available and for
which operating profit / loss amounts are evaluated regularly by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) in deciding how to
allocate resources and in assessing performance.

"The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies of the Company. Segment revenue,
segment expenses, segment assets and segment liabilities have been identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to
the operating activities of the segment. Inter- segment revenue is accounted on the basis of transactions which are primarily
determined based on market / fair value factors. Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which relate to the Company as a whole
and are not ailocable to segments on reasonable basis have been included under “unallocated revenue / expenses / assets /
liabilities”.

2.24 Recent accounting pronouncement

Ind AS 116 Leases:
On 30 March 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 116, Leases. Ind AS 116 will replace the existing leases Standard, Ind AS 17 Leases, and

related Interpretations. The Standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both partiestoa
contract i.e., the lessee and the lessor. ind AS 116 introduces 2 single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognize assets and liabilities for
all leases with a term of more than twelve months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. Currently, operating lease expenses are charged to the
statement of profit & loss. The Standard also contains enhanced disclosure requirements for lessees. Ind AS 116 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirementsinInd AS17.

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 116 is annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019. The standard permits two possible methods of

transition:
o Full retrospective — Retrospectively to each prior period presented applying Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates

and Errors
o Modified retrospective — Retrospectively, with the cumulative effect of initially applying the Standard recognized at the date of initial

application. Under modified retrospective approach, the lessee records the lease liability as the present value of the remaining lease

payments, discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and the right of use asset either as:
o its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the commencement date, but discounted at lessee’s incremental borrowing

rate at the date of initial application or
o Anamountequal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments related to that lease recognized

under Ind AS 17 immediately before the date of initial application.

Certain practical expedients are available under both the methods.
On completion of evaluation of the effect of adoption of Ind AS 116, the Company is proposing to use the ‘Modified Retrospective Approach’ for

transitioning to Ind AS 116, and take the cumulative adjustment to retained earnings, on the date of initial application { April 1,2019). Accordingly,
comparatives for the year ended March 31,2019 will not be retrospectively adjusted. The Company has elected certain available practical expedients

on transition.

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after 1 April 2019. The Company is currently evaluating the effect
of this amendment on the financial statements.

Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments:
0On 30 March 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments which s to be applied while

performing the determination of taxable profit (or loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over
income tax treatments under Ind AS 12. According to the appendix, companies need to determine the probability of the relevant tax authority accepting
each tax treatment, or group of tax treatments, that the companies have used or plan to use in their income tax filing which has to be considered to
compute the most likely amount or the expected value of the tax treatment when determining taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses,
unused tax credits and taxrates.
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The standard permits two possible methods of transition - i) Full retrospective approach — Under this approach, Appendix C will be applied retrospectively
to each prior reporting period presented in accordance with Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, without using
hindsight and ii) Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying Appendix C recognized by adjusting equity on initial application, without
adjusting comparatives.

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C is annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019. The Company wilf adopt the standard on 1

April 2019 and has decided to adjust the cumulative effectin equity onthe date of initial applicationi.e. 1 April 2019 without adjusting comparatives.
The Company is currently evaluating the effect of this amendment on the financial statements.

Amendment to Ind AS 12—

Income taxes: On 30 March 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to the guidance in Ind AS 12, 'Income Taxes', in connection with
accounting for dividend distribution taxes.

The amendment clarifies that an entity shall recognise the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or
equity according to where the entity originally recognised those past transactions or events.

tffective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after 1 April 2019. The Company is currently evaluating the effect of this
amendment on the financial statements.
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SADHANA NITRO CHEM LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2019

Note 3B: Intangible Assets

{Amount in¥)
Sr. No Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Goodwill
(a) - On consolidation of Strix Wireless Systems Private
Limited - 1042,03,979
(Refer Note (i) below)
{b) - On consolidation of Spidigo Net Private Limited 636,23,270 -
(Refer Note (ii) below)
Total 636,23,270 1042,03,979
Footnotes:

(i)

(ii)

Pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation (the Scheme ) sanctioned by the National Company Law
Tribunal Mumbai Bench vide its order dated May 09, 2019, Strix wireless systems Pvt Itd (SWSPL) have
been merged with the Company with effect from April 01, 2018 (the Appointed Date). The merger is
accounted under absorbtion method in terms of the scheme sanctioned by the Company law tribunal
Mumbai Bench and all assets, liabilities and reserves have been recorded in the books of accounts of the
Company at the respective carrying amounts and in the same form. The difference between the share
capital of the transferor company and the gross value recorded as investments is adjusted and the
difference is adjusted in reserves in accordance with the scheme. (Refer Note no 35(iii})

During the year the company acquired the entire shares of Spidigo NetPvtLtd. Asaresult Spidigo NetPvt
ttd has become its wholly owned subsidiary with effect from March 11, 2019 and Goodwill on
consolidation amounting to R 6,36,23,270 being the difference between the net assets and the value of
investments recorded in the books of the holding company.
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SADHANA NITRO CHEM LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2019

Note

4A: Investments

{Amountin3}
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
. Face
Sr.No Particular Value
Holdings As At g Holdings As At k4
Non Current Investments
(i) |Other Investments {At cost)
Quoted
Anco Communication Ltd Rs10 500 71,788 500 71,788
Enarai Finance Ltd Rs 10 3,900 78,000 3,900 78,000
Indian Extractions Ltd Rs 10 15,000 5,08,194 15,000 5,08,194
Indo-biotech Itd Rs 10 5,000 1,91,250 5,000 1,91,250
First object Technoliges ttd Rs 10 2,000 81,400 2,000 81,400
Maxworth orchards Ltd Rs 10 1,300 13,000 1,300 13,000
Ojas Technochem Products Ltd Rs 10 5,000 1,31,495 5,000 1,31,495
10,75,127 10,75,127
Less: Provision for decline other than temporary, in value of non current 10.75,127
i 10,75,127 T
Total - -
Footnotes :
(i) Aggregate cost of quoted investments 10,75,127 10,75,127
Aggregate market value of quoted investments - 3,78,800
{ii) Aggregate value of i - -
(iii) Aggregale amount af i i in value of i 10,75,127 10,75,127
Note 4B:Current Investments
Face
Sr. No Particular Value March 31,2019 March 31,2018
3 at fair value through other comprehensive income
(i) {in Mutual Funds
Quoted
HDFC Liquid Fund 563.129 Units (PY. NIL} Rs 10 1,03,496 0
L& T Long Duration Growth 12,98,141 Units {PY. NIL}* Rs 10 259,95,415 0
HDFC Long Duration Growth 6,62,552 Units (PY. NIL)* Rs 10 259,23,531 0
Total 520,22,442 0]

* Refer note no 15C(d) for infarmation on Mutual Funds pledged as security.

161



SADHANA NITRO CHEM LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2019

Note 5 - Loans (Amount in<)
Sr. No Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
A Non Current Loans
(Unsecured Considered Good , unless otherwise stated)
(i) Loan to related party at amortised cost 842,94,647
-Subsidiary company {Refer Note 37 )
{ii} Loan to staff 11,05,539 13,78,946
Total 11,05,539 856,73,593
Loans to related parties comprise loans to the following Wholly
Owned subsidiaries
{i)| Strix Wireless Systems Private Limited - 842,94,647
Maximum amount outstanding during the year - 842,94,647
B Current Loans
(Unsecured Considered Good , unless otherwise stated)
{i) Loan to staff 9,98,230 6,75,341
(i) |other* 1,15,449 -
Total 11,13,679 6,75,341
* Others include
Salary Advance 79,460 -
Other Advances Receivable in cash & Kind 35,989 -
Total 1,15,449 -
Note 6 - Other financial assets .
{Amount in<)
Sr. No Particulars March 31, 2019 | March 31,2018
B Current Financial Assets
(i} Inter corporate Deposits(Refer Note {i)Below) 566,56,711 -
Others:
Interest accrued on deposit 36,525 4,11,500
Advance recoverable in cash or kind 453,74,855 -
Prepaid expenses 12,51,424 -
Others 16,041 -
Total 1033,35,556 4,11,500
Footnotes:
) Includes secured Inter Corporate Deposits of T 4 Crores, however charge is yet to be created in

favour of the Company.
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SADHANA NITRO CHEM LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2019

Note No. 7 - Deferred tax Liabilities/(Asset) (Net)

{Amount in )
Sr.No  |Particulars March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Deferred Tax Liability
(i) Depreciation on fixed assets 332,69,095 226,27,770
(i) Gross Deferred Tax Liability (1) 332,69,095 226,27,770
Deferred Tax Asset
(i) Employee Benefit obligations (168,28,561) (104,67,974)
{ii) Brought forward unabsorbed depreciation to be carried forward to next years - (426,24,893)
Other disallowable expenses {5,39,549) {21,03,965)
MAT Credit Entitlement
Others
Gross Deferred Tax Asset {2} (173,68,110) (551,96,832)
Net Deferred Tax Liability/{Asset) (1-2) 159,00,985 (325,69,062)
Footnote:

Deferred tax asset on unabsorbed depreciation as per the income Tax Act, 1961 has been recognised, since it is probable that taxable profit will be
available to adjust them in the future years. Unabsorbed depreciation which forms major portion of the Deferred Tax Asset can be carried forward
and set off against the profits for unlimited nurmber of years under the Indian Income Tax Act, 1961 and profitability projections based on current
margins show sufficient profits for set-off in future.

Recopalsedin | Onaccount of Recognlsed In Adjustmenton
F ,
or the year ended March 31,2019 Openlng Balance profitortoss | consolldation ol atcount of merger Closing Balance
Deflered Tax Liabitity
Plant Property Equipment 226,21,710 106,41,325 - .- . 332,69,055
Gross Deffered Yax Liability 226,21,770 10641325 - - - 33269095]
Delfered Tox Asset . o - .
Opening Balance on Consolidation - E (4,52,827) - . (4,57,827)
Defined benefit obligation (104,67,974) (63,60,587)| - - . (168,28,561)
Other Disallowable Expenses {21,03,965) 1564416 - - - (5,39,543)
Brought forward unabsarbed depreciation to be carried fonward to next years 426,24,833) 430,82,720 - - - 4,521,827
Gross Deffered Tax Asset (551.96.832) 382.86,549 {4.57.827) - - (173,68.110)
{325,69.062) 489,27,874| - - . 159,00,985]
ised in ised in on
For the year ended March 31,2018 Openi I account of Closing Balance
¥ pening Balance profitorloss ot ccount of 5
merger
Deffered Tax Liability
Plant Praperty Equipment - 227,96,497 - {1,68,727) {226,21,770)
Gross Deffered Tax Liability - 227,96,497 - {1,68,727)) {226,27,770)
Deffered Tax Asset
Defined benefit obligation . (103,20,533), - (3.47,441)) (104,67,974}
Other Disallowable Expenses - {9,70,462) - {11,33,503) {21,03,965)
Brought forvsard unabsorbed depreciation to be carried forward to next years - {426,24,893) - - {426,24,893)
Gross Deffered Tax Asset . {537,15,888) - (14,50,944)| {55196832)
- {309,19,391) - (16,49,671]] {325,69,062}
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2019
Note 8 - Other Assets

(Amountin¥)
Sr. No Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
A Non Current Assets
(i) Capital advance 174,53,187 314,86,328
(if) Security Deposits with Public Bodies and others 99,21,343 65,56,439
(iii) Balance with Statutory/Revenue Authorities 5,50,000 84,40,076
(iv) Prepaid Expenses 5,48,973 5,13,782
Total 284,73,503 469,96,625
B Current Assets
(1) Balance with Statutory/Revenue Authorities 1384,69,437 1144,10,853
(i) Advance to Vendor 38,63,092 193,20,916
(iif) Prepaid Expenses 26,54,076 19,54,543
Total 1449,86,605 1356,86,312
Note - 9 : Inventories (At lower of cost and net realisable value)
(Amount in<)
Sr. No Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
{i) Raw materials(include Packing Materials ¥ 20,26,557/- ( March 31,2018 254,85,600 658,23,895
¥ 19,30,457/-)
(ii) Work-in-progress 923,68,622 745,14,398
(iii) Finished Goods 2479,15,645 325,42,888
Stock in transit 35,93,749 14,05,998
(iv) Stores & Spares 396,70,210 418,53,144
{v) Others (Fuel,Packing Material) 16,48,588 22,06,592
Total 4106,82,414 2183,46,915
Footnotes:
(i) Refer Note no 15C{d) for information on Inventories mortgaged as security for borrowings .
Note No. 10 - Trade receivables N
{Amount in )
Sr. No Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Unsecured
i) |considered good 1558,99,105 1528,66,705
{ii} Considered doubtful - 17,00,239
1558,99,105 1545,66,944
Less : Allowance for doubtful debts - 17,00,239
Total 1558,99,105 1528,66,705
Footnote :

1. Trade receivables are dues in respect of goods sold in the normal course of business.

2. The normal credit period allowed by the company ranges from 60 to 90 days.

3. No trade or other receivables are dues from directors or other officer of the group either servally or jointly with any other
person nor any trade or other receivables are due from firm or private companies respectively .

4. Refer Note no 15C{d) for information on Trade Receivables mortgaged as security for borrowings .

S.Refer note no 26(i} for Credit Risk
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2019

Note - 11 : Cash and Cash Equivalents

(Amount in T)
Sr. No Particulars March 31,2019 | March 31, 2018
(i) Cash in hand 2,22,730 19,99,183
(i) Balance with bank in current account 889,71,728 694,59,830
Fixed Deposits 10,30,858
Total 902,25,316 714,59,013

Note - 12 : Other Balances with Bank
{Amount in )

Sr. No Particulars March 31, 2019 | March 31,2018

Call and short term deposit accounts

(i) Margin money Deposits with original Maturity <12 Months 15,01,925 81,13,425
[Refere Note no (a) below)
Fixed Deposit with Bank 13,00,000 -
28,01,925 81,13,425
Footnotes :

{a) Deposits with carrying amount of ¥ 15,01,925 (March 31, 2018 - 7 81,13,425 ) are subject to first
charge against bank guarantees.
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2019

Note 13 : Equity Share Capital

{Amountin %)

Particulars march 31,2019 | March 31,2018
Authorised Capital:*
2,00,00,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 5/- each 100000000 100000000
{March 31, 2018: 1,00,00,000 Equity Shares of T 10/- each)
{Refer note no [i & ii}below
100000000 100000000
Issued Subscribed & Paid up:
1,86,30,298 Equity Shares of ¥5/- each fully paid 931,51,490 931,51,490
{March 31, 2018: 93,15,149 Equity Shares of 10/- each)
Total 931,51,490 931,51,490
Footnotes:

{i): Authorised capital of 11000000 {2018 :11000000 }, 1% Non convertible Non Cumulative Redeemable Preference Share of 10/- each is not

const above.
15C (c)

shares issued have been considered as borrowings in accordance with the requirement of Ind AS. Refer Note

{ii} - Sub - division of Equity shares : On 29th January 2019, Pursuanttoa approval of the members in the extra ordinary general meeting, the Company
sub divided the equity shares of the face value of 10/- to share of the value of S/- per share Unless otherwise noted, impacted amounts and share

information in the fi ial

{a) Reconcitiation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

relating to authorised , issued and subscribed capital have been adjusted for the subdivision .

{AmountIn X}

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Particulars Equity Share Equity Share
No.of Shares Amaount No.of Shares Amount
Equity
No of shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 93,15,149 931,51,490 92,00,830 920,08,300
Add: Additional shares issued during the year - . 1,14,319 11,43,190
Add : Increase on account of shares sub -divided during the year (Refer Note
no {ii] above) 93,15,149 - - -
Less: Shares forfeited/Bought back during the year - - - -
No of shares outstanding at the end of the year 186,30,298| 931,51,490 93,15,149 93,151,490

(b)Terms/Rights attached to Equity shares:

The company has only one class of cquity shares having at par value of 5/-(PY 10/-) per share.Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per

share.The company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees.The dividend proposed
dation of the ¢

In the event of li

holders in the ensuing annual general

by the Board of Dlrector is subject to the approval of the share
the holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining

bution will be in proportion to aumber of shares held by share holder.

assets of the company after distributionofallp tal The

|(c) holding more than 5% shares in the Company ]
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
£quity Share Equity Share
Equity Shares of ¥ 5/- each (PYX 10/-} fully paid No of Shares * % of Holding No of Shares % of Holding
Manckchand Panachand Trading Investment Co.Pvt.Ltd 119,21,222 63.99! 59,60,611 64.78|
Asit Javeri 9,56,180 5.13 - -
« adjusted for sub-division of shares.
As per records of the Company, its register of holders / bers and other d {ram 151 garding beneficial
interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and benefical ownership of shares
None of the shareholders other than the holding company and Mr Asit Javert hold more than 5% as on the reporting date
I(d) Equity Shares in the entity held by holding ]
Particulars tiarch 31, 2019 March 31,2018
i No of Shares * | % of Holding No of Shares | % of Holding
hand P d Trading Co.Pvt.Ltd 119,21.222 | 63.99 59,60,611 | 64.78
* adjusted for sub-division of shares.
{v)Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up to ¢ {s) without being received in cash, bonus shares and shares
bought back for the period of 5 years immediately preceding the balance sheet date - Nil(March 31, 2018 - Nil)
{e) Shares reserved for issue under Options
For details of shares reserved for issue under the employee stock option plan (ESOP) of the Company - Refer Note 30
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2019

Note 14 : Other Equity

{Amount in )

Sr.No Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Reserves and Surplus
(i} Capital Reserve
Opening balance 2,44,848 2,23,525
Addition / (deletion}) {4,952) 21,323
Closing balance 2,39,896 2,44,848
(i} Capital Redemption Reserve
Opening balance 5,00,000 5,00,000
Add: Additions {Refer note no 15C{c}) 960,00,000 -
Closing Balance 965,00,000 5,00,000
(i} Securities Premium Account
Opening balance 93,76,727 54,96,740
Add:Premium on issue of sweat equity shares - 38,79,987
Closing balance 93,76,727 93,76,727
{iv) Retained Earnings
Opening balance 1334,95,722 (2160,94,059)'
Other comprehensive income - 385,60,823
Profit for the year 7575,08,333 3109,01,389
Adjustment on account of amalgamation (Refer Note No. 35(iii) )
a) Balance in Statement of Profit and Loss of Transferor Company {1089,49,860} -
b} Surplus being the difference between share capital of transferor company 39,13,487 R
and investment of the company
Adjustment on account of preference shares [Refer note no 15C{c }} (586,07,130) -
Transfer to Capitat Redemption Reserve (Refer note no 15C(c )} {960,00,000) -
Dividend including dividend distribution tax {112,30,344)
Add/(less):Foreign currency monetary item account 11,33,141 1,27,609
Closing balance 6212,63,349 1334,95,722
{v) Transition Reserve
Opening and Closing balance 884,49,427 884,49,427
{vi} General Reserve
Opening and Closing balance 1333,29,906 1333,29,906
{vii}  |Employee Share Based Payment reserve{Refer Note No 30) 97,06.989 -
97,06,989 -
Total 9588,66,294 3653,96,630

Capita! Reserve :
Capital Reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

Capital Redemption Reserve

Capital redemption reserve represents reserve created on redemption of preference shares. It is non distributable reserve

Securities Premium Reserve

Securities Premium Reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares . This reserve is utilised in accordance with the

provisions of the Act.

Retained Earnings
The amount that can be di!

ibuted by the as dividend to its equity sh

Transition Reserve
Transition Reserve represents reserve created on transition from Accounting Standards to Ind AS.

General Reserve
General reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purpose.

Share based Payment Reserve

Refer

The Company has established equity settled share based payment plans for certain categ ies of emp! of the
note 30 for further details of these plans.
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SADHANA NITRO CHEM LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2019

Note - 15 : Borrowings {Amount in ¥}
Sr. No Particulars March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
A |Long Term Borrowings

(a)
(i)

(ii}

(b)

Secured Borrowings:

Term loan - Bank (Refer Note 15C{ a ) below} 196,00,265 -
Term Loan - Others (Refer Note 15C( b ) below) 161,18,068 302,23,254
357,18,333 302,23,254
Less :Current Maturity of Long term borrowings disclosed under the head other financial 74,124,206 77,94,327
(Refer Note 16)
283,04,127 224,28,927

Unsecured Borrowings

Inter Corporate Deposit 21,25,000 -
Redeemable preference shares - 430,01,800
9600000 1% Non convertible , Non cumulative {2017 - 9600000 9% Non convertible,
Cumulative and 2016 - 9600000 5% Non Convertible , Cumulative ) Redeemable
Preference Shares of T 10 /-{2017 -¥ 10/- and 2016 -¥ 10/-) [Refer note 15C (c)

below}
21,25,000 430,01,800
Total 304,29,127 654,30,727
B |Short Term Borrowings
{a) |Secured Borrowings
(i} |working Capital Loan from Bank [Refer Note 15C(d)] 422,05,947 689,26,719
{b) |Unsecured Borrowings
(i) |inter Corporate Deposit [Refer note 15C{ e ) below] 11,31,984 147,15,856
Total 433,37,931 836,42,575
C Footnotes:

(a) Term loan from a bank is secured by charge on motor vehicles. Refer Note (f) below for terms of repayment , interest etc.

Term loan - others is secured by charge on motor vehicles and plant and machinery. Charge is yet to be registered in respect of two
motor vehicles . Refer Note {f) below for terms of repayment , interest etc.

{b) Redeemable Preference Shares :During the year the company redeemed its 96,00,000 Non convertible , Non cumulative Preference
shares of ¥ 10/-, at a premium of X 8/- per share (early redemption). The amount paid on early redemption is allocated to the
liability and equity component at the date of early redemption in the same method that was used to make the original allocation of
the proceeds upon initial transition to Ind AS. The premium amounting to ¥ 7,68,00,000 /- is shown as finance cost. On redemption,
the nominal value of shares redeemed amounting to ¥ 9,60,00,000 has been transfered to capital redemption reserve in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act.

{c) The company has working capital facilities from a Bank at interest rate libor plus 4.25% pa. These facilities are secured by exclusive

{d){i)

{d)ii}

(e)

charge on present and future stocks and book debts, exclusive charge on entire plant and machinery , charge by way of pledge on
debt mutual funds of € 5 crores . Further secured by personal guarantee of Chairman and Managing Director and Corporate
Guarantee of Holding Company.

# Working capital foan from a bank carrying interest rate of 12.95 % p.a. These facilities are repayable on demand, secured by way
of first pari passu charge on the present and future current assets of the company, second pari passu charge on entire movable and
immovable fixed assets of the company, present and future at plot no 47, MIDC, Roha Industrial Area, Raigad District - 402116 and
further secured by personal guarantee of Chairman and Managing Director of the company

# These details relates to previous year

Inter Coporate Deposits are carrying interest rate of 12% and repayable on or before April 2019.

168



SADHANA NITRO CHEM LIMITED

{11)9z ou 330U Ul pasoIsIp 31e SYsU AJUILIND puE 33l 1SAINU Aypinby 03 ansodxa sauedwod ay),  (3)

L26'82'vLT L21'Y0E8T (e)vst Jad se aoueleg [EI0L
219'v6'29 oyT'SL'6ZT asue|eg
[AZR:1A4 8T6'TY'IE saiqel) Jualnd
131430 uj umoys sdumolloq
w19} 8uoj Jo Anjews JuaLIND: 5597
¥S2'ET 80T 890'81'191 |eoL
0 0 re'1e'sy vT-€20z 65 vZ-€202 ST60°0 [8YTTO89T
0 0 'TEsy YT-€20C 65 vZ-£202 ST60°0 [SETTO89T
S6Yv8°0T 8S 6S0€T'LY £2-720C -1 £2-220C SLTT'0 |L68LEDT
€LL'65'LT sS 208'8v'7¢ £2-220C 137 €2-720C SLTT'0 {LSE09LT
801°20'8Z S STL'E8'TT €2-220C (47 £2-220¢ SLTT'0 |9vY0TLT
8L8'9L'TE 1T - - - - 169T°0 |VESTLL
J3qQWINN JUN0JJY Ueot
SIAYIQ - UBOT] WY,
STE'VE'TOT £86'8T'€ST 9duejeg
§89'G92E 8LLT'TL'CY saqe)|
JUa1INd U} uMoys mm:_\so‘:on wla)
Suo| jo Ajanjew JuaIn) : s53
000°00°V61 18301 597°00'961 [e30L
000°00'v6 09 S99°L1'8L £2-2207 8y £2-220T S780°0 |0989
000°00°00T 09 059'91'€8 €2-220C 8y £2-720C ST80°0 |LEGE
0 0 SLE'CE'LT $T-€20¢ 0s ¥T-€20¢ S80'0 |S91S
0 0 SLE'TELT vZ-€202 0s ¥Z-€20¢C $80°0 |0T9S
JaGWNN JUNOJJY Ueo]
. 1497 sjuaw|jeisy] Aanien 3591334
8102’ 1€ Ya1e Y1 6T0Z' TE YeW | Awmenw JooN FLRELY joaey sigjnafied
jese w:_v:mumuao Sjud||RISU| O ON jese m:__u:wumuzo jo Jeaj
junowy junouly
8TOZ'TE Ydse 6102°TE YoseW

{2 utunowy)

sjueg - U] WAL
uawAedal o swaa| n

**panuiuo) JST $310U3004

169



SADHANA NITRO CHEM LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2019

Note 16 - Other financial liabilities (Amount in <)
Sr. No Particulars March,31 2019 | March 31,2018
Current Financial Liabilities
(i) Current maturity of long term borrowings 74,14,206 77,94,327
(Refer note 15 A(a))
(ii) Other payables -Advance from customers 83,20,357 50,06,564
(iii) Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 2,36,318 2,96,297
(iv) Redeemed Preference Share & Excess right issue {Unclaimed) 27,393 27,393
(v) Creditors for Capital Expenditure 603,21,673 233,63,662

{vi) Unclaimed Dividend 1,45,216 -

{vii) Services 7,86,038 -

{viii)  |Security Deposit from Customer 11,74,650 -

(ix) Dividend payable 4,38,644 1,51,167
Total 788,64,495 366,39,410
Note 17 - Provisions
{Amount in )
Sr. No Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

A Non Current
Employee Benefit Obligations

(i) Compensated absences 84,15,690 51,28,365

ii) Gratuity (Refer Note No. 29) 196,79,368 204,95,146

Total 280,95,058 256,23,511
B Current
Employee Benefit Obligations
{i) Compensated absences 206,12,919 87,25,150
{ii) Gratuity (Refer Note No. 29) 135,21,983 41,55,054
Total 341,34,902 128,80,204
{Amountin)

(i) Movement in provisions Gratuity Compensated absences
Opening balance 246,50,200 181,21,165
Add/Less :Provision recognised /(reversed) during the year 41,11,581 65,29,035
Closing balance 287,61,781 246,50,200
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2019

Note 18 - Other Liabilities

{Amount in ¥)

Sr. No Particulars March 31, 2018
March 31, 2019
B Current
(i) Statutory Dues 597,33,233 134,09,321
(ii) Employee Dues 261,58,302 249,22,621
(iii) Deposit from Customer 113,75,067 -
(iv) Income received in advance 167,85,573 -
(v) Advance From Customer 561,85,055 3246,50,751
(vi) Other current liabilities 66,43,001 1145,86,127
(vii) Bank Temporary Overdraft 432,10,322 —
Total 2200,90,553 4775,68,820
Note - 19 : Trade Payables (Amount in %)
Sr. No Particulars March 31,2019 | March 31,2018
(i} Micro and Small Enterprises - -
(ii) Others 12,10,98,086 23,24,43,877
Total 12,10,98,086 23,24,43,877
{(a) Disclosure required under Clause 22 of Micro , Small and Medium Enterprises Development
{*MSMED') Act, 2006
Particulars March 31, 2019 | March 31,2018
a) the principal amount and the interest due thereon {to be shown seperately)
remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of accounting year: - -
-Principal amount due to Micro and small enterprises: 81,57,010 -
-interest due on above: 5,30,475 -
b) the amount of interest paid by the buyer under MSMED Act,2006 along
with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the
appointment day during each accounting year _ _
¢) the amount of interest due and payable for the period(where the principal
has been paid but interest under the MSMED Act 2006-Not paid
5,30,475 -
d)The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of
accounting year.
5,30,475 -
@)The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding
year,until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the
small enterprises, for the purpose of disallowances as a deductible
dit tion 23.
expenditure under section 3,67,065 -

(b)  Alltrade payables are 'current’. The Company's exposure to currency and liquidity risks related

to trade payables is disclosed in note no 26(ii)
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SADHANA NITRO CHEM LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2019

Note 20: Revenue from Operations

Details of revenue from contract with customers recognised by the company, net of indirect

1 taxes in the statment of profit and loss.

(Amount in<)

Sr. No Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(i Sales of Products
(a) Finished Goods 25579,10,422 11132,29,522
(b) Traded Goods 109,91,528
TOTAL 25689,01,950 11132,29,522
(i} Sale of services 274,02,203
{iif) Other Operating Revenue
Sale of scrap & sales other 15,84,837 3,81,681
Export Benefit 723,78,333 283,89,687
Sundry balances written back - 14,78,882
Total 26702,67,323 11434,79,772

2 Disaggregate revenue Information:

The table below presents disaggregated revenue by product type/brand. The company
believes that this disaggregation best depicts how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainy
of revenues and cash flows are effected by industry, market and other economic factors.

{Amount in<)
Sr No Product Type: March 31,2019 |March 31, 2018
(a) Sale of Products
MAP 17824,22,194 10279,89,049
SND 27 (ODB 2) 6315,32,158 86,76,744
Others 1549,47,598 765,63,729
Total 25689,01,950 11132,29,522
(b) Sale of services 274,02,203 0
(c) Other operating revenue
(i) Sale of scrap & sales other 15,84,837 3,81,681
(it) Export Benefit 723,78,333 283,89,687
(iii)Sundry balances written back 0 14,78,882
Total 739,63,170 302,50,250

3 sales includes excise duty upto 30th June 2017 and Hence figures are not comparable.
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SADHANA NITRO CHEM LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2019

Note - 21 Other Income

(Amount in )

Sr. No Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(i) Interest Income on:
a) Deposits with banks and financial institutions TDS
3791 (PY. ¥ 23108) 7,907 6,87,462
b) Others 33,39,955 8,15,555
(i) Balances Written Back 76,67,240 -
(iii) Other Miscellaneous income 51,084 4,00,202
(iv) Foreign Exchange Gain (Net) 43,833 9,83,344
(v} Profit on sale of Assets 11,38,559 -
(vi) Dividend Received 2,23,553 -
Total 124,72,131 28,86,563
Note 22A - Cost of materials consumed
(Amountin )
Sr. No Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(i Inventory at the beginning of the year 635,89,248 153,30,549
i) Inventory on account of merger 22,34,646 -
(iti) |Add: Purchases 8830,22,102 4696,37,859
9488,45,996 4849,68,408
(iv) [Less: Inventory at the end of the year 219,04,728 658,23,894
Cost of materials consumed 9269,41,268 4191,44,514
Value of Raw Material Consumed {Amountin<)
Sr No Particular March31, 2019
1 Imported 0.0045 18,52,263
2 Indigenous 0.9955 4172,92,251
(Amount in T)
SrNo Raw Material Consumed March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
{i) Benzene 1141,55,201 892,25,847
(if) Nitric acid 595,91,522 294,46,980
(iil)  {Castiron powder 1106,86,187 699,41,019
(iv) |Oleum 65% 530,88,532 318,11,171
{v) |Caustic Potash Flakes - 22,59,049
{vi} |Packaging Material 42,29,337 31,98,851
{vii) |Other 5851,90,489 1932,61,597
Total 9269,41,268 4191,44,514
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Note 22B- Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress

(Amount in T)
Sr. No |Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(1) Opening Stock
Raw materials and packing materials 33,31,405 -
Work in progress on a/ of merger 711,82,993 712,15,981
Finished goods 327,52,476 800,52,648
Scrap 3,25,000 3,00,000
Total {i) 1075,91,874 1515,68,629
(i) |Closing Stock
Raw materials and packing materials
Work in progress 959,498,494 745,14,398
Finished goods 2479,15,645 617,37,266
Scrap 3,25,000 3,25,000
Total {if) 3441,90,139 1365,76,664
Changes in Inventories Decrease/(increase)(i-ii) (2365,98,265) 149,91,965
Total (2365,98,265) 149,91,965

Note 22C Excise Duty

The Government of India has implemented Goods and Ser
duty, service tax and various other indirect taxes. Excise duty for the yearen

the period of 3 months (April to June 2017).

Note 23- Employee Benefit Expenses

vice Tax {GST) from July 1, 2017 replacing excise
ded March 31, 2018 pertains to

{Amount in<)
Sr. No Particulars March 31,2019 | March31, 2018
(i) Salaries and wages, including bonus 2673,63,291 831,37,579
(ii}) Employee Share Based compensation expense 97,06,989 -
(iii) Contribution to Provident and other funds (Refer Note No. 29(a)) 74,56,207 34,76,318
{iv) Gratuity {Refer Note No. 29(b} ) 28,98,240 40,86,270
{v) Leave Encashment expense 126,44,255 50,23,117
{vi) Staff welfare expenses 27,06,797 17,66,956
Total 3027,75,779 974,90,240
Note -24 Finance Cost
{Amount inX)
Sr. No Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(i) Interest expense on term loans and other financial liabilities 26,64,419 213,77,235
(ii) Interest cost on preference share liability 11,57,376 56,08,930
{ii} Other borrowing cost 55,91,261 200,57,902
{iv) Interest on Delayed Payment of tax 114,26,023 24,00,000
{v} Share premium on preference share(Refer note 15C{c ) 768,00,000 -
{vi) Foreign Exchange Fluctuation 222,78,489 26,20,867
Total 1199,17,568 520,64,934
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2019

Note 25 - Other Expenses
{Amount in<)
Sr. No Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
{i) Power and fuel 1578,30,099 1006,80,299
{ii) Rent 46,49,006 7,90,423
{iii) Rates & Taxes 224,13,862 99,18,001
{iv) Insurance 40,37,316 15,04,013
(v) Printing & Stationery 18,13,324 12,05,922
{vi) Postage, Telegram & Telephone (Communication Expenses) 22,47,819 13,24,540
{vii) Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 254,25,802 61,84,298
(viii) |Legal & Professional fees 141,46,938 73,03,781
(ix) Directors Fees 4,25,000 1,41,000
{x) Electricity charges 6,46,889 2,02,050
(xi) Security Charges 26,45,246 21,14,734
(xii) Stores & spares Consumed 635,37,183 265,31,107
(xiii) |Repairs & Maintenance
Plant & Machinery 81,23,353 22,15,336
Others 277,33,159 30,30,344
(xiv) Other Manufacturing Expenses 157,41,834 99,81,809
{xv} Effluent Expenses 115,96,495 36,91,962
(xvi} |Research & Development Expenses 93,700 2,56,100
(xvii) |Payment to auditors (Refer Note A below) 5,00,000 3,80,000
(xviii) |Selling Expenses
Freight and Forwarding Expenses 174,49,387 271,22,546
Commission Charges 387,20,898 26,57,914
Local Freight & other expenses 250,49,326 128,85,849
{xix) |Foreign Exchange Fluctuation 42,67,325
(xx) Bad debts & Sundry Debit Balances written off 31,02,201 72,25,158
{xxi) |Guarantee Commission - 144,00,000
(xxii} |Amortisation of Lease hold land - 804
(xxiii) |Miscellenous Expenses 199,72,147 -
(xxiv) |Preference Shares Dividend - 180,53,723
Total 4721,68,309 2598,01,713
Note A : Payment to Auditors :
Sr.No Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
As Auditor*
{i) Statutory Audit Fee 5,00,000 3,80,000
Total 5,00,000 3,80,000
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2019
Note No - 26 Financial Instruments and Risk Review

Capital Management

The key objective of the Group's capital management is to easure that it malntalns 3 stable capital structure with the focus on total equity to uphold the investor , creditor and customer
conlidence and to ensure luture developmant of its business. The Group focused on keeping strong total equity base to ensure independence , security as well high financiat flexibility for
potential future borrowings , if required without impacting the risk profile of the Group. The Group's goal is to continue to be able to return excess liquidity to sharcholders by continuing to
distribute annual divicends in future periods. The amount of future dividends of equity shares willbe balaneed with elforts to continue to maintain an adequate liquidity status.

{Amountin X)
|Particulars March 31,2019 | March 31,2018
Total equity attril ble to equity of the company 10520,17,784 4585,48,120
As a percentage of total capital 93 75
Long term borrowings 304,29,127 654,30,727
Short term borrowings 433,37,931 836,42,575
Total borrowings 737,67,058 1490,73,302
As a percentage of total capital 7 25
Total Capital {Equity and Borrowings) 11257,84,842 6076,21,422

The company business plan coupled with global macro economic scenarla have helged the company achieve enhanced profiability and liquidity resulting impraved equity
base and lower the sisk profile of the company.

Financla) Risk Management Framework

The company has exposure 1o the following risks arising from financiat instruments :
a)Credit sisk

blLiquidity risk

ciMarket risk

1) Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract feading to financial loss. The credit tisk arises principally fromits.
opefating activities ( arimarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities including deposits with banks and financial institutions and ather financiatinstruments.

The customer credit 1s managed by the group’s established policy , procedures and controls relating t t rcredit The group has i a credit policy under which
each new customer is analysed individually for credit worthiness belore the group’s standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. The group’s seview includes external
ratings where available and other publicaly available financial ion, O i i are segularly i and any shipment to major customers are generally
covered by terter of credit or other forms of eredit insurance.
The following table gives details In respect of of revenues from top five
Particulars ] March31,2019] March 31,2018
Revenue from top five customers | 74.61 38.54
The company i an for that Tixed estimate of expected fosses in respect of trade and other receivable. The maximum exposure ta credit risk as at
coporting date is primarily from trade receivable amounting to ¥ 32,28,35,289/- (PYX 7,68,17,476/-) . The in for i in trade and other receivables during the
year was s follows :

Allowance for Impalrment March 31,2019} March 31, 2018
Opening balance 17,00,239 -
Impairment loss recognised / seversed (17,00,239} 17,00,239
Closing balance - 17,00.239

—l

Credit risk on cash and cash cquivalenet is limited as the Company generally transacts with banks and financlal institutions with high credit ratings assigned by Interaational and domestic credit
ratings agenties.

ijtiquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the nsk that the company will encounter difficulty in mecting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financlal asset.
The company's approach to managing liquidity is ta ensure as far as possible that will have sufficlent liguidity to meet Its liabilitles when they are due under both normal and stressed conditions
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage 1o company's reputation.

The Company belicves that the working capital is sufficient to meet ils current requirements. Accordingly, no liquidity riskis perceived. In addition , the company maintains the following line
of credit.

a} Working capital foan from a bank carrying interest rate of 12.95% p.a. These facilities are repayable on demand, secured by way of first parl passu charge on the present and future current

assets of the company, second pari passu charge on entlire movable and Immovable fixed assets of the company, present and future at plot no 47, MIDC, Roha Industrial Area, Raigad District -
402116 and further secured by personal guarantee of Mr A. D. Javeri Chairman and Managing Director of the campany.

The table below provides details regarding the undiscounted contractual maturities of sipnificant financial liabilities 35 of March 31, 201
Particulars Loss than 1 year 1to 2 years 2to5years Total
Long term borrowings. 81,43,020 111,580,711 110,95,396 304,29,127
Shorl term borrowings 433,372,931 - - 433,37,931
Trade payable 1210,98,086 . - 1210,98,086
Other financial liabilities 488,64,495 - - 488,64,495
Total 2214,43,532 111,90,711 110595 396 2437,29,633
The table below provides details regarding the i ias of i financial liabilities as of March 31,2019
Partieulars Loss than 1 year 1to2years 21to Syears Total
Long term borrowings 430,01,800 105,54,704 118,734,223 654,30,727
Short term borrowings 836,42,575 - . 836,42,575
Trade payable 232443877 - - 2324,43,877
Other financial liabilities 366,39.410 - - 366,39,410
Tatal 3957, 175662 105,534,704 11874223 4181,56,589
it} Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the falr value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Such changes in the values of financial Instruments may
result fram changes in the loreign currency exchange rates, interest rates, eredit, liquidity and other market changes. The Group's exposure to market rigk is primarify on account of foreign
currency exchange rate rlsk.

Foreign Currency exchange rate risk
The Group operates internationally and major portion of the business is din several ies and ly the group is exposed to foreign exchange risks through operating
activities in foreign currency. The group does not engage in hedging and the unhedged forelgn currency exposure s as follows :
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1) Details of foreign currency exposures that are not hedged by a derivative
instrument or otherwise : {Amountin )

Amount in forelgn currency Equivalent amount {)
Particulars Currency March 31,2018 March 31,2018 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2038
Financial Assets
Trade Receivables EURO . 1,073 3105,96,544 86,528
usD 44,76,757 8,09,181 531,49,476
Financial Liabilities
Trade Payables EURO 3,93,297 - 274,38,049 -
Advance Received usp 54,425 1,56,326 37,65,595 101,68,068
Net Asset / (liability) 40,29,035 6,53,928 2793,92,900 430,67,936
Note 27 - Earnings Per Share (Amount in%)
Sr. No Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
a) [Net Profit for the year attributable to the equity shareholders 7583,17,824 3109,01,389
b} |Opening number of equity shares outstanding 93,15,149 92,00,830
¢} [Closing Number of Equity shares outstanding 93,15,149 93,15,149
d) |Basic/Diluted earning per share (% 10/- per share) 40,70 33.30
{P. Y.¥ 10/- per share}
Note 28: Disclosures under Ind AS 17 (Amount in T}
. For the year ended | For the year ended
Note Particulars
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Details of leasing arrangements
Operating Lease
{i) Leasehold land 804 804
The Company has entered into operating lease arrangements
for certain facilities and office premises. The leases are
non-cancellable and are for a period of 1 to 5 years and may
be renewed for a further period based on mutual agreement
of the parties.
(it} Euture Non - Cancellable minimum lease commitments
not later than one year 20,31,880 29,31,804
later than one year and not later than five years 51,03,520 30,98,616
later than five years 38,592 39,396
Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 46,49,006 7,90,423
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2019

Note 29 : Employee benefits

{a) Defined Contribution Plan

The Company makes Provident Fund contributions to defined contribution plan administered by the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner.
Under this scheme, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost to fund the benefits. The Company has
recognized 74,56,207 for Provident Fund and other fund contributions {March 31, 2018: 34,76,318 } in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The provident fund and ESIC contributions payable by the Company are in accordance with rules framed by the Government from time to time.

{b) Defined Benelit Plans:

Gratuity

The employee’s gratuity fund scheme managed by a trust is a defined benefit ptan.The present value of the obligation is determined based on actuarial
valuation using the projected unit credit method,which recognises each period of service as giving rise to adlitional unit of employee benefit entitlement and
measures each unit seperately to build up the final obligation. The for leave encash is recognised in the same manner as gratuity.

The estimated rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation,take into account inflation,seniority promotion and other relevant factor including
supply and demand in the employment market. The above information is certified by actuary. The expected rate on plan assets is determined considering
several applicable factor,mainly the composition of plan assets held assessed risk ,historical result of return on plan assets and the company's policy for plan
assets management.

Defined benefit plans — as per actuarial valuation on 31st March, 2019 {Amount in )
Particulars Funded Plan
Gratulty
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
1a. Exg recognised in the of Profit and Loss
for the year ended 31st March:
Service Cost
Current Service Cost 9,80,454 7,25,025
past service cost and {gains)/losses from settlements - 15,62,923
Net interest expense 19,17,786 13,17,408
Components of defined benefit costs reconised in profit or loss 28,98,240 36,05,357

Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability

Return on plan assets (excluding amount included in net interest expense) - 2,01,152
Actuarial gains and loss arising form changes in financial assumptions {10,172) {6,06,438)
Actuarial gains and loss arising form experience adjustments 38,59,546 46,07,782

Actuarial gains and loss arising from demographic adjustments - -

Componenets of defined benefit costs recogl ised in other comprehensive income 38,49,374 42,02,496

Total 67,47,614 78,07,853

1. Net Assct/{Liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet as at 31st March

1. Present value of defined benefit obligation as at 31st March (287,61,781) {24,65,020}
2. Fair value of plan assets as at 31st March - -
3, Surplus/(Deficit) (287,61,781), {24,65,020)

4. Current portion of the above
5. Non current portion of the above

I, Change in the obligation during the year ended 31st March

1. Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 246,50,200 208,88,046
2. Add/{Less) on account of Scheme of Arrangement/Business - -
Transfer

3. Expenses Recognised in Profit and Loss Account

- Current Service Cost 9,80,454 7,25,025
- Past Service Cost - 15,62,923
- Interest Expense {tncome} 19,17,786 15,18,561
4. Rec ised in Other Comprehensive Income - -

Remeasurement gains / {losses}
- Actuarial Gain (Loss) arising from:
i. Demographic Assumptions

ii. Financial Assumptions . (10,172) (6,06,438)
iii. Experience Adjustments 38,59,546 46,07,782
5. Benefit payments {26,36,033) {40,45,699)
6. Others (Specify}
7. Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 287,61,781! 246,50,200]
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111, Change in fair value of assets during the year ended 31st March

1. Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year

2. Add/{Less) on account of Scheme of Arrangement/Business Transfer
3. Expenses Recognised in Profit and Loss Account

- Expected return on plan assets
- Interest Income
4. Rec d in Other Compretl
Remeasurement gains / (losses)
. Actual Return on plan assets in excess of the expected return

- Others (specify)

5. Contributions by employer {including benefit payments recoverable)
6. Benefit payments

7. Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year

Income

V. The Major categories of plan assets
- List the plan assets by category here
Insurance Fund

V. Actuarial assumptions

1, Discount rate

2. Expected rate of return on plan assets
3. Salary Increase Rate

4. Rate of Employee Turnover

S. Mortality Rate During Employment

- 27,66,881
- 2,01,152
. (2,01,152)
- (27,66.881)
7.79% 7.78%
7.79% 7.78%
4.00% 4.00%
2.00% 2.0%

Indian Assured
Lives Mortality

Indian Assured
Lives Mortality

(2006-08) {2006-08)
6. Mortality Rate After Employment N.A. N.A.
V1. Other Details
1. No of Active Members 197 211
2. Per Month Salary For Active Members 53,82,647 41,55,054
3. Weighted Average Duration of the Projected Benefit Obligation 5 5
4. Average Expected Future Service 15 15
5. Projected Benefit Obligation (PBO) 287,61,781 246,50,200
6. Prescribed Contribution For Next Year (12 Months) 53,82,647 41,55,054
VIil. Net Interest Cost
1. Interest Cost 19,17,786 15,18,561
2. Interest Income - (2,01,152)
3. Net Interest Cost {1-2} 19,17,786 13,17,409
Maturity Analysis of Projected Benefit Obligation: From the Fund
Projected Benefits Payable in Future Years From the Date of Reporting
1st Following Year - 91,74,778 67,85,704
2nd Following Year - 16,92,594 23,80,201
3rd Following Year - 20,93,052 18,25,501
4th Following Year - 26,26,116 18,51,669
Sth Following Year - 11,38,551 23,91,589
Sum of Year 6 To 10 - 181,30,628 62,12,283
Maturity Analysis of Projected Benelit Obligation: From the Employer
Projected Benefits Payable in Future Years From the Date of Reporting
1st Following Year - -
2nd Following Year - -
3rd Following Year - -
4th Following Year - -
5th Following Year - -
Sum of Year 6 To 10 - -
Sensitivity Analysis
Projected Benefit Obligation on Current Assumptions 287,61,781 246,50,200 208,88,046
Deita Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Discounting {9,56,019) {10,72,464) (8,22,737)
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Discounting 10,85,466 {12,32,053) 9,26,144
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase 10,37,030 {12,67,130) 9,47,439
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase {9,31,706) (11,18,837) (8,54,858)
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover 3,91,102 (3,96,119) 2,08,452
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover (4,38,793) {4,45,931) 2,31,336
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Sensitivity analysis for each significant actuarial assumption is required to be given, {illustration for medical inflation given below. Company needs to provide for
others)

A. Effect of 0,50% change in the assumed discount rate 0.01% Increase  [0.50% Decrease

31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Defined Benefit Obligation
8. Effect of 1% change in the assumed Salary Escalation Rate

31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Defined Benefit Obligation

VIl Experience Adjustments : Year Ended
2018 | 2017
Gratuity

1. Defined Benefit Obligation (287,61,781) (246,88,046)
2. Fair value of plan assets - -
3. Surplus/(Deficit) (287,61,781) (246,88,046)
4. Experience adjustment on plan liabilities [{Gain)/Loss] (38,59,546) 46,07,782
5. Experience adjustment on plan assets [Gain/(Loss)] (10,172) (6,06,438)

The expected rate of return on plan assets is based on the average long term rate of return expected on investments of the fund during the estimated term of
obligation.

The estimate of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, takes account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as
supply and demand in the employment market.

Additiona) Details

Methadology Adaopted for ALM - Projected Unit Credit Method
Useful and Methodol " dior Sensitivity analysis is an analysis which will give the movement in liability If the assumption were
Sensitivity Analysis - not proved to be true on different count. This only signifies the change in the Iiabllily if the
Difference between assumed and the actual is not ing the p of ive analysis.
Stress Testing of Assets - Not Done
Strategy - Not Discussed
Comment on Quality of Assets - Since Investment is with insurance company, Assets are considered to be secured.
A [2 ive of Future Contril - As per Actuarial Calculation
Notes

*Gratuity is payable as per company's scheme as detailed in the report.

*Actuarial gains/losses are recognised in the period of e under Other Comprehensive Income (OCI).

*All above reported figures of OCI are gross of taxation.

*Salary escalation & attrition rate are considered as advised by the company; they appear to be in line with the industry practice considering promotion and

demand & supply of the employees.

*Maturity Analysis of Projected Benefit Obligation is done considering future salary, attrition & death in respective year for bers as ioned above.
*average Expected Future Service represents Estimated Term of Post - Employ Benefit Obli
*value of asset provided by the client is considered as fair value of plan asset for the period of reporting as same isnot

I d by us.

Note 30 ; Employee Stock Compensation

{a) Sadhana ESOP Plan:

On August 1, 2018, the Board of Directors approved the Employee Stock Option Plan {ESOP 2018) for the grant of stock options to the employees of the
Company. The nomination and remuneration committee(remuneration committee) adminsters the ESOP. The option under this grant would vest to the
employees as percentage of total grant at the end of the first, second and third year from the date of grant with exercise period ending one year from
the end of last vesting.

Details of Grant

Particulars |Number of options Weighted Average Exercise Price
Outstanding at the beginning of the year - -
Granted during the year 2,00,000 1,000

forfeited during the year
Exercised during the year
Expired during the year

Outstanding at the end of the year 2,00,000 1,000
Exercisable at the end of the year - -
Weighted average remaining contractual life {in years 23

Range of exercise prices for outstanding options at the end of the year 1000-2000
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Notes forming part of the Consc

d financial St

Note 31 - Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

for the year ended March 31,2019

{Amountin %)
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
(i) Contingent liabilities :
{a) Bank Guarantees/ Letter of Credit 0 -
{b) Contingent Liabilities for Income Tax, Service Tax and others:
- income Tax ff 0 55,180
- Sales Tax # 6,98,439 6,98,439
- Service Tax # - -
- Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act 1952# 58,76,715 -
- Employees Claim # 15,42,361 15,42,361
(ii) Commitments :
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not
provided for (Net of advance) 553,86,363 833,39,004
(ifi)Other money for which the Company is contingently liable :
The Company has imported Goods under the Export Promotion Capital Goods Scheme
(EPCG), of the Government of India, at the concessional rates of duty with an obligation
to fulfill the specified exports. Failure to meet this export obligation within the stipulated
timeframe as per Foreign trade policy 2004-09 would result in payment of the aggregate
differential duty saved as mentioned below along with interest there on. The company is
confident of meeting the obligation.
Total export obligation due -
Saving in Custom Duty -
Total 576,27,163 856,34,984

#iThe Holding Company is subject to legal proceedings and claims which have arisen in the ordinary course of business from Direct tax
laws(TDS), Indirect tax laws and Other Laws. Future cash outflow, if any in respect of these matters are determinable only on receipt
of judgements /decisions pending at various stages before the appelfate authorities. The Management is of the opinion that the
matters would be resolved in favour of the holding Company. The Holding Company Management does not reasonable expect that
these legal action when ultimately concluded and determined would have a material and adverse effect on the holding Company's

result of operations or financial condition.

Note 32
AValue of imports calculated on CIF basis
Particulars March 31 2019 March 31 2018
Raw Material and Components 1708,09,611 155,88,267
Capital goods 68,86,608 -
Accessories (Bought out item) - -
1776,96,219 155,88,267
B.Expenditure in foreign currency
Particulars March 31 2019 March 31 2018
Other matters - Foreign travel, Corporate allocations etc. 18,25,077 8,36,013
Services Availed 344,07,847 -
362,32,924 8,36,013
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2019

Note 33
Transfer Pricing

The Company has ‘international transactions with associated enterprises’ which are subject to Transfer Pricing regulations in India.
These regulations, inter alia, require the maintenance of prescribed documents and information for the basis of establishing arm’s
length price including furnishing a report from an Accountant within the due date of filing the return of income,

for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2019, the Company has taken necessary steps including conducting a study as required by the
regulations and the Accountant’s report in this regard is awaited. In the opinion of the management, the transactions are carried out
at arm’s length and no adjustments is expected to arise thereon.

Note 34
Segment reporting

Information reported to the chief operating decision maker {CODM} for the purposes of resource allocaticn and assessment of
segment performance focuses on the types of goods or services delivered or provided. The Company is in the business of
Manufacturing of Chemical intermediates, heavy organic chemicals and performance chemicals and manufacture of wireless network
equipments and services. The accounting poticies of the reportable segments are the same as the accounting policies disclosed in
Note 2. The revenues, total expenses and net profit as per the Statement of Profit and Loss represents the revenue, total expenses
and the net profit of both the reportable segments. The reported revenues, profit and assets of one of the segments{manufacture of
wireless network equipments and services) being less than 10% of the combined revenue, profit and assets of all the reporting
segments, no seperate segment disclosure is given as per para 11 and 13 of Ind AS 108.

Note 35
Events after reporting Period

On April 22, 2019, the Board of Directors has proposed an interim dividend of ¥ 1.25 per equity share having face value ofT 5/-
each.

On May 28, 2019, the Board of Directors have proposed a final dividend of 0.75 per equity share having face vaiue of X 5/- each.
The proposed dividend is subject to approval of the shareholders in the annual general meeting.

pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation (the Scheme ) sanctioned by the National Company Law Tribunal Mumbai Bench vide its
order dated May 09, 2019, Strix wireless systems Pvt Itd {SWSPL) have been merged with the Company with effect from April 01,
2018 (the Appointed Date). The merger is accounted under absorbtion method in terms of the scheme sanctioned by the Company
law tribunal Mumbai Bench and all assets, liabilities and reserves have been recorded in the books of accounts of the Company at the
respective carrying amounts and in the same form. The difference between the share capital of the transferor company and the
gross value recorded as investments is adjusted and the difference is adjusted in reserves in accordance with the scheme.
Accordingly, the assets and liabilities of Strix wireless systems Pvt Ltd are accounted at the following summarized value.

Particulars Amount
Property , Plant and Equipment 76,06,275
(including capital work in progress)
Intangible assets -
Taxes 17,19,671
Inventories 55,66,052
Trade receivables 36,23,510
Cash and Bank Balances 6,66,670
Financial assets - Investments , Loans & others (Non
Current & Current} 316,38,514
Non Current and Current Liabilities (1558,50,543)
Other Equity 1089,49,860
Share Capital 39,20,009
Gross Value recorded as investments (6,523)
To Be Adjusted Against Reserves 39,13,486
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2019

Note 36 : Significant estimates and assumptions

Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the Group 's financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of assests or liabilities affected in future periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were
prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or
circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Group. Such changes will be reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or Cash Generating Unit (CGU) exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available
data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm's length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget
for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the group is not yet committed to or significant future
investments that will enhance the asset's performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amounts sensitive to the discount
rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

Defined Benefit Plans (Gratuity Benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of the gratuity obligation
are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due
to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in
these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in
india, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-
employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicaly available mortality tables for the specific countries. Those mortality tables tend to change
only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future
inflation rates.

Details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 31,

Eair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted
prices in active markets, the fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models
are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing
fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions
about these factors could affect the reported fair value target and the discount factor.

The Group has valued its financial instruments through profit & loss which involves significant judgements and estimates such as
cash flows for the period for which the instrument is valid, EBITDA of investee company, fair value of share price of the investee
company on meeting certain requirements as per the agreement, etc. The determination of the fair value is based on expected
discounted cash flows. The key assumptions take into consideration the probability of meeting each performance target and the
discount factor.
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2019

Note 37 - Related party transactions

List of related
1) parties
i)Holding Company M/S Sadhana Nitro Chem Ltd
ii) Subsidiary a - M/S Anuchem B.V.B.A Belgium
b - M/S Spidigo Net Pvt. Ltd.
1) Key Management Personal
i)Shri.Asit D.Javeri Executive Chairman
Smt.Seema A laveri wife of Shri A.D Javeri
Mr.Abhishek A Javeri son of Shri A.D Javeri
ii)Abhishek A Javeri Managing Director & Chief Financial Officer
iii)Shri Nitin R Jani Company Secretary
m) Disclosure in respect of material related party transaction during the year.
Related party transactions during the year
Key Management
Sr No Nature of Transaction Subsidiaries v 8
Person
7050,15,098 -
a) Sale of Goods (1055,09,151) -
- 1181,08,535
b) Managerial Remuneration - (210,96,047)
c) Director Sitting Fees - -
d) Loan Given (842,94,647) -
e) Interest on Loan - -
f) Guarantee Commission - (144,00,000)
2098,25,328 -
g) Outstanding Balance as on 31st March 2019 - -
Outstanding Loan Balance as on 31st March - -
h) 2019 - -

Note: Previous years figures are given in brackets

184




SADHANA NITRO CHEM LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2019

Note 38 -Transfer Pricing

The Group has ‘international transactions with associated enterprises’ which are subject to Transfer Pricing regulations in India.
These regulations, inter alia, require the maintenance of prescribed documents and information for the basis of establishing arm’s
length price including furnishing a report from an accountant within the due date of filing the return of income.

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2019, the Group has taken necessary steps including conducting a study as required by the
regulations and the Accountant’s report in this regard is awaited. In the opinion of the management, the transactions are carried out

at arm’s length and no adjustments is expected to arise thereon.

Note 39- Additional information as required by Paragraph 2 of the General forp of C fated Financlal to Schedule il to the € Act2013
Net Assets Share in Profit or Loss
As % of consolldated Profit
SrNo __|Name of the Entity As % of d net assets Amount_for Loss Amount

Parent Company

1 Sadhana Nitro Chem Ltd 0.996 10476,32,180 0.99] 7522,92,437
Maharashtra, India

2 ‘Wholly Owned Subsidiaries

i) Anuchem BVBA (Foreign) 0.005 52,65.921 0.01 60,96,213
Antwerpen, Belgium

i) Spidigo Net Pyt Ltd {W.E.F 11-03-2019) {0.001), (8,80,317)| {0.001) {8,80,317)
Guijarat, India
Total 1 10520,17,784 1.00 7575,08,333

Subsidiaries

The Group's subsidiasies as at March 31, 2019 are set out below. Unless otherwise stated, they have share capital consisting solely of equity shares that are held by the Group, and
proportion of ownership Interests held equals the vating rights held by Group. The country ol incorporation or registration s also their principal place of business.

SrNo Name of entity Country of Incorp

o bt

Principal activities

1 Parent Company

dhana Nitro Chem Ltd India

Manufacturing of Organic Chemicals and wireless network
and services

2 Wholly Owned Subsidiaties

i} Anuchem BV.B.A Belgium

100%]| Trading of Chemicals

ii) Spidigo Net Pvt Ltd. India

100%|Manufacturing of wireless network equipments

For Chandrashekar lyer & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number :114260W

Chandrashekar lyer
Partner
Membership Number :47723

Mumbai , May 28, 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Asit D Javer]
Executive Chairman

Abhishek A Javeri
Managing Director & CFO

Smt. Seema A Javeri
Executive Director
Administration

Nitin R Jani
Company Secretary

Arvind R Doshi
Director

Priyam S Jhaveri
Director

Pradeep N Desal
Director

Amit M Mehta
Director
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Spidigo Net Pvt. Ltd.
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019

(Amountin T )

Particulars Note No. As at March 31, 2019
ASSETS
Non-current asscts
{(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2 2,89,95,639
(b) Capital work-in-progress -
{c) Financial Assets
(i) Loans 3A 2,73,920
(d) Deferred Tax Asset (net) 4q -
(e) Other non current assets 5A 75,000
2,93,44,559
Current assets
{a) Inventories 6 -
(b) Financial Assets
(I) Trade recelvables 7 28,084
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 8 10,311,257
(iii) Loans 3B -
(iv) Other Financial Assets =] 4,66,42,320
(c) Other current assets 5B 97,440
4,77,99,102
Total 7,73,43,661
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equlty
(a) Equity Share capital 10 1,00,000
(b) Other Equity 11 (6,46,02,587)
(6,45,02,587)
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
{a) Provisions 12A 44,39,570
(b) Financial Liabilities
{i) Borrowings 13A 21,25,000
Current liabilities 65,664,570
{a) Financial Liabllitles
{i}) Borrowings 138 -
(if) Trade payables 14 1,04,65,198
(b) Provisions 128 -
(c) Other current liabilities as 12,46,16,480
13,50,81,678
Total Equity and Liabilities 7,71,43,661
statements. {Refer

Notes 1- 24)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Standalone financia

Mumbai, May, 28th, 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Asit javeri
Director
DIN : 00268114

Abhishek Javeri
Director
DIN : 00273030

Seema Javeri
Director
DIN : 01768936
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Spidigo Net Pvt. Ltd.
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 32, 2019
(Amountin ¥ )

N For the year ended March
Particulars .
Note No. 31, 2019
()] Revenue from operations 16 81,131
({1} Other income 17 -
({113} Total Income (1 + 11) 81,131
{(1v) EXPENSES
{a) Cost of materials consumed 18A -
{b) Changes In inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and 188 -
work-in-propress
(c) Employee benefits expense 19 -
{d} Finance costs 20 -
(e} Depreciation 2 4,085,296
{f) Other expenses 21 98,322
Total Expenses {IV) 5,03,618
(V) Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax (i1l - V) (4,22,487)
(v1) Exceptlonal Items -
(Vi) Profit/(loss) before tax (V - V1) (4,22,487)
vy Tax Expense
(1} Current tax -
(2) Deferred tax 4 4,57,829
Total tax expense 4,57,829
{1X) Profit/(loss) for the period (VI - VIHI} (8,80,316)
{X) Other Comprehensive Income
(i) items that will not be re-classified subsequently to profit or loss -
Re-measurement on defined benefit plans -
Income Tax effect -
(ii) ltems that will be re-classified subsequently to profit or loss -
Exchange differences in translating financial statements ofa
foreign operation
Income Tax effect
{x1) Total of Other Comprehensive Income ((i) + (i)} -
(xt) Tota! Comprehensive Income (IX + X1) (8,80,316)
{(xu) Earnings per equity share (Rs.) 23
(1) Baslc (88.03)
(2) Diluted (88.03)
The occompanying notes are an integral part of the Standalone financial statements.
(Refer Notes 1- 24}
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Abhishek Javeri Asit javeri Seema Javeri
Director Director Director
Mumbai, May, 28th, 2019 DIN : 00273030 DIN : 00268114 DIN : 01768936
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Spidigo Net Pvt, Ltd.

Statement of Change in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2019
{Amountin ¥ )

A. Equity Share Capital
Particulars Opening balance Changes during the
year
(i) As at 31st March 2019 1,00,000 -
{ii) As at 31st March 2018 1,00,000 -
B Other Equity
Particulars Reserves and Surplus Ot:er ive
(Retained Earnings) com-pre ensiv
income
(i) Balance as at 01 April 2018 (6,37,22,271) -
(i) Addition during the year - -
(iii) Surplus in the Statement of Profit and loss -
Balance as at 10 March 2019 (6,37,22,271) -
(i) Balance as at 11 March 2019 (6,37,22,271) -
(i) Addition during the year (8,80,316) -
(iii) Surplus in the Statement of Profit and loss
Balance as at 31 March 2019 (6,46,02,587) -

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Abhishek Javeri Asit javeri Seema Javeri
Director Director Director
Mumbai, May, 28th, 2019 DIN : 00273030 DIN : 00268114 DIN : 01768936
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Spidigo Net Pvt. Ltd.

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2019
(Amountin ¥)

Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2019

A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax (4,22,487)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 4,05,296
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets -
Finance costs -

4,05,296
Operating profit / (loss) before working capital changes {(17,191)
Changes in working capital:
Inventories -
Loans and Other Financial Asstes (75,000)
Trade Payables (2,00,479)
Current Liability 4,29,25,860
Provisions -
Trade receivables -
4,26,50,380
Cash generated from operations 4,26,33,189
a.Direct Taxes (Paid) -
Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities (A) 4,26,33,189

8. Cash flow from / {used in) investing activities
a.Purchase Of Fixed Assets -
(Net of Adjustment for capital Work-in-progress
b.Acquisition /Sale of Investment(Net) -

Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (B)
¢. Cash flow from / (used in)} financing activities
a.Secured Borrowings -Net of Repayment -
b.Unsecured Borrowings -Net of Repayment (4,26,90,153)
c.Interest Paid -

(4,26,90,153)

Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities (c) (4,26,90,153)
Net increase / (decrease) in Cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (56,964)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 10,88,221
cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 10,31,257
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Abhishek Javeri Asit javeri Seema Javeri
Director Director Director
Mumbai, May, 28th, 2019 DIN : 00273030 DIN : 00268114  DIN : 01768936
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Spidigo NetPvtLtd

Notes to the Financial Statements

Note: 1- Significant Accounting Polices:
A: Basis of Accounting:

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention on the "Accrual Concept" of accountancy in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India and they comply with the Accounting Standards
prescribed in the Companies [Accounting Standards] Rules, 2006 issued by the Central Government to the extent applicable
and with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act,2013.

B: Use of Estimates:

The preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with the Accounting Standards generally accepted in India requires the
management to make estimates and assumptions that effect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent liabilities as at the date of the Financial Statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the
reporting period while actual results could differ from these estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised
prospectively in current and future periods.

C: Fixed Assets and Depreciation:
iTangible Assets are stated at historical cost of acquisition / construction less depreciation.

ii All direct cost attributable to respective assets are capitalised to the assets. Preoperative expenses are capitalised to major
assets.

iii Depreciation of Fixed Assets has been provided on the written down value method based on useful life of assets specified in
part “¢" of Schedule-1l of the Companies Act, 2013.

iv Depreciation on additions / disposals of the tangible assets during the year is provided on pro-data basis according to the
period during which assets are putto use.

D:lmpairment of Fixed Assets:

i The carrying amount of assets, other than inventories, is reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there
is any such indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset recoverable amount is estimated.

ii The impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generation unit exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the assets' net selling price and value in use which is
determined based on the estimated future cash flow discounted to their present value. Allimpairment losses are recognised
in the Statement of profit and loss.

iii Animpairment loss is reversed if there hasbeena change in the estimates, used to determine the recoverable amount and
itis recognised in the Statements of Profit and Loss.

E:Borrowing Costs:

i Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assetsare capitalised as a part of cost of
suchasset.

ii Aqualifying assetis one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready forintended use.

jiii All other borrowing costs are charged to revenue.
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F: Revenue Recognition:

i Revenue is recognized when no significant uncertainty as to its determination or realization exists.

ii Interestincome is recognized on time proportionate method.

G: Foreign Currency Transactions:

i Thetransactions in foreign currencies are stated at the rates of exchange prevailingon the date of transaction.

ii At the year end, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies, other than those covered by forward contracts, are
converted into rupee equivalents at the year end exchange rate.

iii Exchange difference relating to fixed assets is adjusted in the cost of assets. Any exchange difference are dealt with in the
Statements of Profitand Loss.

H: Taxes onlncome:
i Taxexpensescomprises current tax and deferred tax.
{i Currenttaxismeasured at the amount expected to be paid inaccordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

ii Deferred tax reflects the impact of current year timing differences between book and tax profits and reversal of timing
differences of earlier years. Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted as of the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that
sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred taxassets can berealised.

|: Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts / Advances:

Provision is made in accounts for bad and doubtful debts / advances which in the opinion of the management is considered
doubtful of recovery.

1: Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

Provisions is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that the
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation add in respect of which reliable estimates can be made. A
disclosure for contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation, that may, but probably will not require an
outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow
of resources is remote, no provisions / disclosure is made. Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements.
Provisions and contingencies are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the correct management
estimates.
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Spidigo Net Pvt. Ltd.

Notes forming part of the financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 3: Loans

(Amountin ¥ )

Sr. No Particulars

As at March 31, 2019

A Non Current Loans
(Unsecured Considered Good, unless otherwise stated)

(i) Security Deposits 2,73,920
Total 2,73,920

B Current Loans

{Unsecured Considered Good, unless otherwise stated)

(i) Loan to related party at amortised cost

(ii) Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received -
Total -

Note 4: Deferred Tax Asset (Net)
Sr. No Particulars As at March 31, 2019

Deferred Tax Asset

(i) Employee Benefit obligations
(ii) On Account of Depreciation
(1ii) Other disallowable expenses
{iv) Others

Items that will not be re-classified subsequently
(v) Re-measurement on defined benefit plans

Net Deferred Tax Liability/(Asset)

Deferred Tax Asset

Note 5: Other Asstes

Sr. No Particulars

As at March 31, 2019

A Other Non Current Asstes
(Unsecured Considered Good, unless otherwise stated)
(i) Balance with Statutory Authorities

(i) Prepaid expenses 75,000
Total 75,000
B Other Current Asstes
(Unsecured Considered Good, unless otherwise stated)
(i) Balance with Statutory Authorities 97,440
Total 97,440
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N
kﬁl
AL,
Spidigo Net Pvt. Ltd.
Notes forming part of the financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
Note 6: Inventories (At lower of cost and net realisable value) (Amountin ¥ )
Sr. No Particulars As at March 31, 2019
(i) Raw materials -
(i) Work-in-progress -
Total -
Note 7: Trade receivables
Sr. No Particulars As at March 31, 2019
Unsecured
(i Considered good 28,084
(i)  |Considered doubtful )
28,084
(iii) Less : Allowance for doubtful debts -
Total 28,084

Footnote :

1 Trade receivables are dues in respect of goods sold or services rendered in the normal course of business.
2 The normal credit period allowed by the company ranges from 60 to 90 days.

Note 8: Cash and Cash Equivalents

Sr. No [Particulars As at March 31, 2019
1)) Cash in hand 399
(ii) Balance with bank in current account -
(i) Fixed Deposit 10,30,858

Total 10,31,257
Note 9: Other Financial Assets
Other Current Financial Assets
(i) Advance recoverable in Cash or Kind 4,53,74,855
(if) Prepaid Expenses 12,51,424
(iii} Other 16,041
Total 4,66,42,320
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Spidigo Net Pvt. Ltd.
Notes forming part of the financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 10: Equity Share Capital
(Amountin ¥ )

Particulars As at March 31, 2019

Authorised Capital:
10,000 Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each 1,00,000
(March 31, 2019: 10,000 Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each)

1,00,000

Issued Subscribed & Paid up:
10,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid 1,00,000
{March 31, 2019: 10,000 Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each)

Total 1,00,000

Footnotes :
(i) The company has only one class of equity shares having at par value of Rs.10/- per share.

(if) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

Particulars As at March 31, 2019
Equity Share
No.of Shares Amount
Equity
No of shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 10,000 1,00,000

Add: Additional shares issued during the year -
Less: Shares forfeited/Bought back during the year - -
No of shares outstanding at the end of the year 10,000 1,00,000

(iii) Equity Shares in the entity held by holding company:

Particulars As at March 31 2019
No of Shares % of Holding
Seema Asit Javeri -
Ami Abhishek Javeri -
Sadhana Nitro Chem Ltd 10,000 100%
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Spidigo Net Pvt. Ltd.

Notes forming part of the financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 11: Other Equity (Amountin ¥)

As at March 31, 2019

Sr. No Particulars

i Retained Earnings

Opening balance (6,37,22,271)
Add: Current Years Profits (8,80,316)
Closing Balance (6,46,02,587)

i Other Comprehensive Income {OCl)
Opening Balance -
Add:Movement in OCI (Net) during the year -
Closing Balance -

(6,46,02,587)

Note 12: Provisions

As at March 31,

Sr. Particulars
r. No 2019
A Non Current
Employee Benefit Obligations
(i) Compensated absences -
(ii) Gratuity 44,39,570
Total 44,39,570
B Current
Employee Benefit Obligations
(i) (i) Compensated absences
(ii) (ii) Gratuity -
Total -
Note 13: Borrowings
Sr. No Particulars As at March 31, 2019
A Non-Current Term Borrowings
(i) Inter Corporate Deposit 21,25,000
Total 21,25,000
B Current Term Borrowings
[(}] Inter Corporate Deposit -
(ii) Book overdraft -
Total -

Note 14: Trade Payables

As at March 31, 2019

Sr. No Particulars
(i) Micro and Small Enterprises (Refer Note A) -
(ii) Others 1,04,65,198
Total 1,04,65,198

Note A: There is no amount due from any of the Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in the
"The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006".

196




SADHANA NITRO CHEM LIMITED

Spidigo Net Pvt, Ltd,
Notes forming part of the financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 15: Other Liabilities (Amountin T )
Sr. No Particulars As at March 31, 2019

Other Current Liabilities

(i) Statuatory Dues 94,56,841

(ii) Advance From Customer 5,24,19,459

{iii) Deposit from Customer 1,13,75,067

{iv} Payable to Employees 14,36,790

{v) Other Provision 67,18,001

(vi) Bank temporary overdraft 4,32,10,322
Total 12,46,16,480

Note 16: Revenue from Operations

For the year ended

Sr. No Particulars March 31, 2019
Sales
(a) Internet Service Sale 81,131
{b) Traded Goods -
{c) Less: Excise duty -
81,131
Total 81,131

Note 17: Other Income

For the year ended

Sr. No Particulars March 31, 2019
(i) Duty Draw Back Income -
(ii) Other Income -
(iii) FD Interest Income -
{iv) Discount Received -
{v) Freight on Sales -
(vi) Foreign Exchange Gain -

{vii) interest on TDS W/back -
Total -

Note 18A: Cost of materials consumed

For the year ended

Sr. No Particulars March 31, 2019
(i) Inventory at the beginning of the year -
(ii) Add: Purchases -
{iti) Less: Inventory at the end of the year -

Cost of materials consumed -

Note 18B- Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress

For the year ended

Sr. No Particulars 31 March, 2019

{i) Opening Stock
Work In progress -
Finished goods
Total (i) -
{ii) Closing Stock
Work in progress -
Finished goods
Total (ii) -
Changes in Inventories Decrease/{Increase)(i-ii) -

Total -
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Spidigo Net Pvt. Ltd.
Notes forming part of the financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 19: Employee Benefit Expenses {Amount in )

sr. No Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2019
(i) salaries and wages, including bonus -
(ii} Contribution to Provident and other funds -

{iii) Gratuity (Refer Note No. 19(i) and (ii) below) -
{iv) Leave Encashment -
{v) Staff welfare expenses -
Total -

(ii) During the year sadhana nitro chem ltd ( SNCL} acquired 100 % of paid up equity shares in the capital of the company from
the company's erstwhile shareholder accordingly company has become 100 % subsidiary of SNCL as from 11th March 2019. All
the employees on the roll of the company have been transferred to SNCL as from this date with continuity of service
accordingly as at 31st march 2019.

Note 20: Finance Cost

. For the year ended March
Sr. No Particulars y31’ 2019
(i) Interest expense on term loans and other financial liabilities -
(ii) Bank Commission and QOther Interest Charges -
Total -
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Spidigo Net Pvt. Ltd.
Notes forming part of the financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 21: Other Expenses (Amount in ¥ )
Sr. No Particulars For the year ended March
31, 2019
(i) Power and Fuel -
(it} Rent, Rates and Taxes 10,000
(iii) Repair and Maintenance Expenses 1,500
(iv) Travelling and Conveyance Expenses -
(v) Deployment Expense 21,197
(vi) Fiber Expense -
{vii) Computer Repairing Exp -
(viii) Fiber Rent -
(ix) Freight Charges -
(x) Stores & Spares (Consumable Exps) -
(xi) Software Support Charges -
{xii) Membership Fees - Forign Currency 3,698
(xiii) Commission Exp. -
(xiv) Recruitment Charges -
(xv) Telephone and Mobile Expenses 8,450
(xvi) Loading-Unloading Charges -
{xvii) Office and Other Expenses 6,477
(xviii) L.oss on Sale of Fixed Assets -
{xix} Registration Fees and Exp. -
(xx) Internet and Domain Charges -
(xxi) Printing and Stationery Charges -
{xxii) Legal and Professional Charges 47,000
{xxiii) Books & Periodicals -
{xxiv) Interest on TDS -
(xxv) House Keeping Charges -
(xxvi) Postage and Courier Exp -
(xxvii) Insurance Charges -
(xxviii) Late Fee, Fine, Penalty, Etc. -
{xxix) Security Services -
{xxx) Sales & Marketing Exp. -
{xxxi) Audit Fees -
98,322
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d. Liquidity Risk:

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at a
reasonable price. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

e. NMiarket Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and commodity
prices, will affect the Company’s income or the value of its financial instruments. Market risk is attributable to all
market risk sensitive financial instruments including foreign currency receivables and payables, long term debt and
commoeodity prices. The Company is exposed to market risk primarily related to foreign exchange rate risk, interest rate
risk and commodity price risk.

Interest rate risk:

Interest rate risk can be either fair value interest rate risk or cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value interest rate risk is
the risk of changes in fair values of fixed interest bearing investments because of fluctuations in the interest rates, in
cases where the borrowings are measured at fair value through the Statement of profit and loss. Cash flow interest rate
risk is the risk that the future cash flows of floating interest bearing investments will fluctuate because of fluctuations in
the interest rates.

Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital, convertible instruments and
reserves. The primary objective of the Company’s Capital Management is to maximise shareholder value. The company
manages its capital structure and makes adjustments, if any, required in the light of the current economic environment
and other business requirements.

Spidigo Net Pvt, Ltd.

Notes forming part of the financial statements, for the year ended 31st March, 2019

Note 22A: Name of the Related Parties and Nature of the Related Party Relationship :

Name of Related Parties Relationship
a | Sadhana Nitro Chem Ltd. Holding Company
b | Strix Wireless System Pvt. Ltd. Group Company
¢ | Chandra Net Pvt. Ltd. Group Company
d | Abhishek A. Javeri Director

Note 23: Calculation of Earnings per Equity Share [EPS] : (Amountin ¥ )

Particulars As at March 31,
2018
a Profit after tax attributable to Shareholders (8,80,316)
b Weighted average number of Equity Shares 10,000
¢ Nominal value of equity share 10
d Basic EPS (88.03)

Note : 24 - General Notes :
I a l Balance of depositors, debtos and creditors and other perties subject to confirmation

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Abhishek Javeri Asit javeri Seema Javeri
Director Director Director
Mumbai, May, 28th, 2019 DIN : 00273030 DIN : 00268114 DIN : 01768936
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Annual Report of the Subsidiary Company
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Mr. Asit D. Javeri
Mr. Nitin R. Jani
Mr. Ronny Verchaeren

AUDITORS
Mr. Luc Verreyken
Accontantskantoor,
Agiver BVBA
Bisschoppenhoflaan 588,
B-2100 Deume.
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DIRECTOR'S REPORT

The Directors of Anuchem BVBA are pleased to submit herewith the annual report
and Audited statement of accounts for the year ended 31st December 2018

Review of business:

The principal activities of the company continued to be marketing of Chemicals. The
Turnover during the year was EUR 6.317,127.46 (2017 - EUR 1.029.814,08). The
Profit after Tax at EUR 78.228,14 (2017 Loss for the'year as at - EUR 22.487,85)

The directors opined that, barring unforeseen circumstances the performance of
compahy is expecled fo improve in the current financial year.

DIVIDEND :

The directors have decided that there will be a dividend of 30% for the year 2018.
AUDITORS :

The auditors, Mr Luc Verreyken of Agiver BVBA, accountantskantoor have expressed

their willingness to continue as Auditors and the Directors will place a resolution
before the general mesting for their re-appointment.

On behalf of board

A. D. Javeri
Antwerpen, 09th April 2019 Director
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AUDITORS REPORT

AGIVER BVBA ACCOUNTANTSKANTOOR
BISSCHOPPENHOFLAAN 588

2100 DEURNE

REG. N° 4755 2N 53

To the shareholders of Anuchem BYBA

| have audited the balance sheet of Anuchem BVBA as at 31% December 2018 and
the related Profit and loss account which have been prepared on the basis of
accounting policies stipulated under Chapter Il of the royal decree of 8" October
1876.

The sald accounting policles have not been altered In refation to the previous
financial year. The profit and loss account is not being majorly influenced by yislds
and costs that have to ba ascribed to the previous financial year.

| have conducted my audit in accordégnce with the auditing standards issued by 1AB
Accountants organisation. An audit includes examination, on a test hasis, of evidence
relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financlal statements. It also includes
an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the Directors’in
the preparation of the financial statements and of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the companies clrcumstances, consistently applied and adeguately
disclosed.

| planned and performed my audit so as lo obtain all the information and expianatians
which | cansidered necessary in order o provide me with sufficient evidence to give:
reasonable assurance thal the financial statements are iree from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. in forming my
opinion 1 also considered the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in
the financial statement,

In my opinlan the financial statement give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the company at 31st December, 2018 and of the profit or Loss for the year then
ended and have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirement of fhe
Belgium Company law,

For Agiver Bvba
Luc Verreyken

Antwerpen, 09th April 2019 Reg. No. 4755 2N 53
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ANNUAL STATEMEMNT OF ACCOUNTS OF ANUGHEN BYBA
BALANCE SHEET A¥TER DiSTRIBIUTION DF PROFIT

Asal  3i-decl0id

20138 2017
{eurtency T Eury) (eamigy Biiso)
LIABILITIES
1} Shareliolders Funds !
a) Share Capilal - lssuad Cagiial 18,750,600 13.760,00
b} Rasemes
I} Legal teseve 1.878,00 1,675,00
) ProR and tss. Accoun! 5250512 -20:088,02
5438012 «18.223,02
2 Current Liabllittes -
ay ‘Trade Payables ¢,00 53.043,61
b} asdvasce from clienl 104819814 -
t) Sendtes §7.641,83 151781
dy Dividond Payable 5,625,00 1.875,00
8} Tax pryab’z (net of paid} 328,72
1.071.780,74 56,436,92.
TOTAL OF LIABILITIES TA40,815,65 £6.082,90
ASSETS
1} Non-current assels
a} Fixed Assals )
Fixed Argels (go5se) 1,830,897 1.630,97
Less : doprecialion (1830.97) (1820.97)
0,00 0,00
2) Gurrent Assols
8) nveniorias 208.997,34 231,63
b) Recizvables .
I Trada recaivablos 317.353,82 i0.695,89
1Y) advance fo supplier 550,475,038 -
1y Val recsivables 2045,13 857,63 .
B870.874,03 51.683,52
3) Liquid resourcas B.040,48 516775
TOTAL OF ASSETS 1.144.515,86 . _58,962,90
AGIVER BVBA On behalf of board
Accountantskantoor
Reg. No. 4755 2N 53 A. D. Javeri
Antwerpen, 09th April 2019 Director
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ANRUAL STATEMENT OF AGGOUNTS GF AHUCHEN BVEA

PROEIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
Asal  21-g=c-2018
2614 2017
{mezancy * RG] fewteniy ¢ Evio}
INGOME
TFurmavar 6.317.127,45 1.029.814,09
Intrest recelvad +{7BAZ ¢00
lnetossetdutrense Ik cloaing steck 256765, (SRVETS,
Incomafloss) an oxschange filuciuation (67442,08) ATA75,08
©,509.929,15 719.513,54
EXPENSES :
Putchases £.276:916,86 §50.397.24
Cleafing on fonwarding charges 126.346,89 GA.765.30
Vravelling and sdmirisiralive syponses 16.847,50 7.282,05
Loenl Taxes ' 443,50 444,50
Finznclal exponses 18.574.03 1@ 494,30
Deprocaifonfarmourd wiitlan off frade debles 0.00 9,00
©,43(.230,80 74200139
PROFIT{LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION ¢ 78699,26 (22457,85)
Less . Provision tax fer tha year 870,12 2,00
PROFITILOSS) AFTER TAX 78224814 {224B7,35)
Ads  Cavled over profid(lass) of last yoar {200£8,02) 2385,33
L.855 1) Provision for glvitesid {8625,00) 0,00
profidlosslto he caeriod over 5280512 {20093,52}
AGIVER BVBA On behalf of board
Accountantskantoor
Reg. No. 4755 2N 53 A. D. Javeri
Antwerpen, 09th April 2019 Director
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NOTES ON &MNUAL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNY OF ANUCHEM BVBA FQR 2618

1} ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

The Principal acczunting pelicles adopted by Ihe company ne as idows:
) BASIS OF ACCOUNTING:

The sccounts are prepared ungder the histaricel cost convention and In sccoxiancs wills spslivabls
aceaunting sArngdasd.

1) BTOCKS:

Stacka are vajued at lower of costor not rostisati walea,
€] GURRENCIES:

This agzounls lave boen grepsred in Euro. (6

uy FOREIGN CURRENCIES:

Revenue tramseelions in doroign cumenclos ara tranaluted i Eurs 21 e exchsags fate provaling
<o thn dade of Eransaclion,

Fe Ihe end of the linanclal ysarihe Assols and kablities axpresaed Iy foralgn cerenclas oro
traslalc: In o Euro 4 he ratd af exchenga wing af tho nod of ficancisd year,

o} DEPREGIATION

Deprogintan on Fied assels 3 a8 e ala of 20% pet sarum on straight lino basts.
£y TAXATION:

Tax payshiy 15 provicad on wwxlde pralitus the cuirent lax ate.

21 SHARE CAPITAL

Austnorised, aliotiod and fully paict-up: 750 shuses of £25,03 Euta ascl.

3) RECIEVARE ES (due within one year)

micre lhon G Menlhs omners
2018 &m7 2016 2017
a) Trade recgivaby 0,00 1.557,02 3%7.983.62. 49.333,07
by Adiance lo suppliss Q00 Q06 5E0.475.98 [11hs]
oy Val teceivadle - - 201513 867,63
0,00 - 879.474,03 £4,205,50
4} $UPPLIERS {due within one vear}
tlomg than G Moitths Dthers
2018 a7 20t8 2017
n) For Puschiases - - 0,00  53.04381
k) Advance fram clan! 1.048.996,54
D) For services - B 17841.69 1.239,75

- - 1.066.038.02  Z4.283.38

AGIVER BVBA On behalf of board
Accountantskantoor

Reg. No. 4755 2N 53 A. D. Javeri
Antwerpen, 09th April 2019 Director
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NOTES ON AMNUAL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT OF ANUCHEW BVBA FOR 2018

TRAVELLING AND AMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Fees & profassional charges
Regater and puzbcatlon costs
Other businoss expelses

GLEARING AND FORWARDING CHARGES

Freight sales
Freight purchasefslomge
fee for booxkesping

LOCAL TAXES

Lecal laxes

FINANCIAL EXPENSES

Interesis

genxeharges

Facloting few + subscription
Interests on Fastoring
biéference 1n paymaents

LIGYID RESOURCES

Baltars (Usd)

Bolfirs {Ewre) + Dapesi factoring
Stais bank of indis {Usd)

State bank of indiz {Euro)

Cash Balance

AGIVER BVBA
Accountantskantoor
Reg. No. 4755 2N 53

Antwerpen, 08th April 2019

2013

9.592,79
70,20
1.284,60

10,947 .50

B6259,37
18.079,22
12.000,00

126,348,83

443.50

T 4d3E0

§1.05
3.694,81
11.762,27
75.88
0,02

15.574,03

G.04648

0.00

6.1148,40

2017

6.327,58
187,48
767,00

7.282,05

46.690,1%
§.076,14
12,000.00

64.766,30

441.50

441,50

73,86
4.239,16
4.646,29
1,785,29

0,00

$0.114,30

4.202,57
DA, 48
0,00
0.9

5.167.75

0,00

5.167,76

On behalf of board

A. D. Javeri
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SADHANA NITRO CHEM LIMITED
CIN: L24110MH1973PLC016698

Hira Baug, 1st Floor, Kasturba Chowk (C.P. Tank), Mumbai - 400 004

Tel. 022-23865629 Fax 022-23887235 E-Mail: sadhananitro@sncl.com, Website: www.sncl.com

Form No. MGT-11
PROXY FORM

(Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and

Administration) Rules, 2014}

Name of the member(s):

Registered address:

No. of Shares held:

Folio No / DP [d & Client ld:

Joint Holder (s):

E-mail Id:

1/We, being the member (s) of
1.

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poli) for me/
(AGM) of the Company to be held on 25th September,

shares of Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited, hereby appoint:

or failing him / her

or failing him / her

Name: ........ Address:
E-mail ID: Signature:
Name: ........ Address:

E-mail ID: ....... Signature:
Name: Address:
E-mail ID: . Signature:

1st Floor, Kasturba Chowk (C.P. Tank), Mumbai - 400 004.

or failing him / her

us and on my/our behalf at the Forty Sixth Annual General Meeting
2019 at 3:00 P.M at Sheth Hirachand Gumanji Trust Hall, Hira Baug,

Resolution No. Optional *
Ordinary Business: For Against
1. To receive consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement (Including the
standalone and Consolidated Statements) of the Company for the Financial Year
ended 31st March, 2019 together with the Reports of the Directors' and Auditors'
thereon.
2. To confirm interim Equity dividend declared for Financial Year 2018-19 and to
approve Final Equity Dividend for the Financial Year 2018-19.
3. Toappoint a Director in place of Mr. Asit D. Javeri (DIN: 00268114) who retires by
rotation and is eligible for re-appointment.
4, Toappoint Auditors and tofix their remuneration.
Special Business:
1. To ratify remuneration of the Cost Auditors for the financial year ending 31st
March, 2019.
Signed this Dayof 2019
Please affix
Revenue Stamp
Signature of Shareholder Signature of Proxy holder(s) of Rs. 1/-
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Notes:

1.A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING [S ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE
INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND A PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. THE PROXY IN ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE MUST
BE DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT LESS THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF
THE MEETING.

2.A person can act as a proxy on behalf of member's up to and not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than
ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than ten percent of the
total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall notactasa
proxy for any other person or shareholder.

3.In case the Member appointing proxy is a body corporate, the proxy form should be signed under its seal or be signed by an
officer or an attorney duly authorized by it and an authenticated copy of such authorization should be attached to the proxy
form shall not act as proxy for any other person or Member.

4.Appointing a proxy does not prevent a Member from attending the meeting in person if he/she so wishes.

5.In case of joint holders, the signature of any one holder will be sufficient, but names of all the joint holders should be stated.
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SADHANA NITRO CHEM LIMITED

Route Map of the Company
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SADHANA NITRO CHEM LIMITED

SADHANA NITRO CHEM LIMITED

CIN: L24110MH1973PLC016698

Hira Baug, 1st Floor, Kasturba Chowk (C.P. Tank), Mumbai - 400 004

Tel. 022-23865629 Fax 022-23887235 E-Mail: sadhananitro@sncl.com, Website: www.sncl.com

ATTENDANCE SLIP

FORTY SIXTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING ON WEDNESDAY, 25TH SEPTMEBER, 2019
AT 3:00 PM

Please fill this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the venue of the meeting:

Regd. Folio / DP ID & Client ID

Name and address of the Member(s)

Joint Holder 1

Joint Holder 2

| hereby record my presence at the Forty Sixth Annual General Meeting {AGM) of the Company on Wednesday, 25th
September, 2019 at 3:00 P.M at Sheth Hirachand Gumanji Trust Hall, Hira Baug, 1stFloor, Kasturba Chowk (C.P. Tank), Mumbai -
400004

Signature of the Attending Member:

Signature of Proxy:

NOTES:

(1) Shareholder / Proxy desiring to attend the meeting must bring duly filled in and signed Attendance Slip to the meeting and
hand over at the entrance.

(2) Shareholder / Proxy desiring to attend the meeting should bring his / her copy of the Notice along with Annual Report for
reference at the meeting

Note: Please fill in this attendance slip and hand it over at entrance of the Meeting Hall.
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